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iy Financial Highlights
&1k
2020 2019 Change
= Y ——
2 For the year ﬁ:’ﬁ:ﬁgg ﬁf&t&g +- %
BRSPS A Net operating income before impairment
allowances 2,786,349 2,776,623 +0.35
Sl Operating profit 1,027,773 1,486,368 -30.85
W AT R Profit before taxation 1.020.196 1.493.937 31.71
A Profit for the year 843,260 1,262,568 -33.21
— Y ——
L At year-end ﬁﬁ?ﬁgg /ﬁ%tgg +- %
HAYE Total equity 17,894,300 14,122,989 +26.70
ST AR A Issued and fully paid up share capital 6,577,871 3,245,980 +102.65
RN Total assets 163,514,373 149,854,781 +9.12
A% LELER Financial ratios % % +- %
S R Return on average total assets ' 0.54 0.95 -0.41
SR B R R 2 Return on average shareholders’ equity 526 10.61 5.35
AR EER Cost to income ratio 40.20 34.03 +6.17
SR S Loan to deposit ratio 3 63.46 65.41 -1.95
BN LR Average value of liquidity coverage ratio *
FFE First quarter 224.76 218.71 +6.05
FoFE Second quarter 301.99 191.46 +110.53
E=FE Third quarter 214.89 205.53 +9.36
LUt s Fourth quarter 250.22 210.17 +40.05
TBEE S FELRIIFRELSE  Quarter-end value of net stable funding
18 S ratio °
FFE First quarter 143.92 123.50 +20.42
BFE Second quarter 148.39 127.14 +21.25
F=FH Third quarter 149.48 131.08 +18.40
B Fourth quarter 148.60 142.44 +6.16
AR © Total capital ratio 6 19.23 17.71 +1.52
eyl

1. PIOHAE R

Return on average total assets

2. PHRFEA IR

Return on average shareholders’ equity

Profit for the year

H & s E

Daily average balance of total assets

AT R IEAS A

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Bank

A FRITHE SRIEAG R A (A (78 2 A 0] S AR R EREREY P39 (E

Average of the beginning and ending balance of capital and reserves

attributable to equity holders of the Bank
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Financial Highlights (continued)

3. Loan to deposit ratio is calculated as at year end. Loan represents gross advances
to customers.

4. The average value of liquidity coverage ratio is computed on the consolidated basis
which comprises the positions of local offices, overseas branches and subsidiaries
of the Bank specified by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA”) for its
regulatory purposes and in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules.

5. The net stable funding ratio is computed on the consolidated basis which comprises
the positions of local offices, overseas branches and subsidiaries of the Bank
specified by the HKMA for its regulatory purposes and in accordance with the
Banking (Liquidity) Rules.

6. Total capital ratio is computed on the consolidated basis which comprises the
positions of local offices, overseas branches and designated subsidiaries of the Bank
specified by the HKMA for its regulatory purposes and in accordance with the
Banking (Capital) Rules.



AR g Ay

Chiyu Banking Serperation Fid.

B BT

SEHEIE

2020 4 - B EEAR S B 2R R ERTS
SEEVH AT AN B Ry iR ]
R SN BT R 2 5 - IRBRAOK ¥ 5=
D BR BOR DR BB B A R R B E R R
s - RSP SRACE IR K T LAY R
ERZE -

BERERTTSRACE IR DB > AEEH4Ea
SRALEER T - AN AT B T it 5 A SR
A B PR B T ERME ST BRE - (e S R4S
HIEAL - SREIER > eEe S EEE -

2020 £ > 2&%.%@%%”%‘*@% SRR
B W BHNEE TS @R RS - BiRiEES
JRIRACE RS S - EWK??i%FﬁJ%E’U%E
AR CRYID ARA T TR SRS IR
B R A B CRYID AR AT E 58 L
Pﬁuxﬂ%‘i‘“’ - HATRIZ A SR ER AR

E’.

K%E’Jﬁﬁfkgﬁéﬁ}% AW AE EPI?@LEZ‘H
AR ST - N ER L] - 8
/ﬁ 5~ SRV EE S, - R T THE R
PR R iR S TR - (B AR RSP
% B REFRIVEEIIIRTIRE R -

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Business Review

In 2020, the outbreak of Covid-19 had brought shock and far-reaching impact
to all industries around the globe. The external economic environment became
more complex and uncertain as well. The global economy still suffered due to
the uncertainty of the Brexit withdrawal agreement and the ongoing trade
tension between China and the United States, which caused the overall
business environment to be more unstable.

In view of uncertainties and challenges in the operating environment, the Group
aims to strengthen its risk management and set forward-looking management
strategy. Also, the Group plans various measures such as structural
optimisation to encourage quality of growth and efficiency, these efforts have
enabled the Group to tackle the challenges.

In 2020, the Group's businesses maintained a promising development, seized
the development opportunities of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater
Bay Area, and actively structured a multi-license business. During the year, the
Group’s recently established subsidiaries, #£&FHZAIFT (&Y BIE/AE and
R IRERREET (YD) BPR/AE], successfully obtained business licence and
finished business registration procedure respectively. Therefore, those two
subsidiaries will be operational shortly.

With branches in Hong Kong, together with 3 branches and 2 sub-branches in
Fujian and Shenzhen in the Mainland China, the Group remains committed to
enhancing facilities of our branches in order to improve our corporate image as
well as to provide better services to our customers. This is also to represent our
ongoing pursuit of sincere, flexible, customized and professional cross-border
banking and financial services for our customers.
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843,260,000 7T » AR 33.21% > £
KE 5%*&%&!5(}\9’\])@29 R LA T 3
TIFTEL - PR SR 2R O ¥R s I R
[ ¥R 5751 By 5.26%F7 0.54% -

FEPRFFEUA R Al 1,712,318,000 7T 2
2019 4EJ/D 15.17% > FEHN 4 EE
FEERRE LT 17.05% » 3 S s Rl 2=
R 43 (HEE T2 1.13% < JFR 8 K
qu AEFEAE FF 24.95% % i 803,423,000

o BB H B EE 1,120,223,000 5T - [FEE
i'UD 18.55% » [ A AL ZRRIE 4R ]
A ETF 6.17 {EF 47 BEZE 40.20% -

RN SRS B S (B TE 638,353,000
TC » EEZSAE EI ARG i 293,008,000 It - 4

JE 5y B BRE B R R 2019 R T E
0.03 {lH & 4574 0.36% -

HE 2020 K - AEESTEEEE ST
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(continued)

Financial Review

For the year 2020, the Group recorded a profit attributable to shareholders of
HK$843,260,000, decreased by 33.21% from last year. This was mainly due to
decrease in net interest income and increase in net charge of impairment
allowances. The return on average shareholders’ equity and the return on
average total assets were 5.26% and 0.54% respectively.

Net interest income for the year was HK$1,712,318,000, decreased by 15.17%.
It was mainly due to increase in average interest bearing assets by 17.05%, with
net interest margin decreased by 43 basis points to 1.13% compared with 2019.
Net fee and commission income increased by 24.95% to HK$803,423,000.
Operating expenses increased by 18.55% to HK$1,120,223,000, while the cost
to income ratio increased by 6.17 percentage points to 40.20%.

In 2020, net charge of impairment allowances was HK$638,353,000, increased
by HK$293,008,000 as compared with last year. The classified or impaired loan
ratio decreased by 0.03 percentage points to 0.36% compared with the end of
2019.

As of 31 December 2020, the total consolidated assets of the Group increased by
9.12% to HK$163,514,373,000 compared with the end of 2019. Advances to
customers increased by 2.25% to HK$77,780,646,000. Customer deposits also
increased by 5.40% to HK$122,573,031,000.

Prospect

Looking forward to 2021, the economic environment remains complex and
uncertain. It is expected that the Hong Kong dollar and US dollar’s market interest
rates to stay at an ultra-low level, which will restrict the improvement of the rate
differentials. However, as the vaccine for Covid-19 gradually enters the
application stage, global economic activities are expected to recover as well.
Since China’s economy recover ahead of the globe and the continuous
development of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area, there are
still development opportunities for the Group dispite the challenges presented in
2021. The Group will pursue a more stable and steady development strategy, and
strengthen its risk management at the same time, the Group will continue to fulfil
its commitment to corporate social responsibilities and a dedicated customer
service.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(continued)

Corporate Social Responsibility

Chiyu Bank was founded in Hong Kong in 1947. With over 70 years of
development, the Bank strives to provide quality and convenient banking
services to Hong Kong, Mainland and overseas Chinese customers, with a view
to actively promoting financial inclusion. While driving forward our business
growth, we inherit and continuously advocate “Kah Kee Spirit” by helping to
facilitate the financial development, and fulfilling our corporate social
responsibility through organising and participating in a variety of charitable
activities. Our outstanding performance has earned us wide recognition.

1. Full support to the Hong Kong’s financial stability
(1) Launching financial support initiatives amid the epidemic

The global outbreak of COVID-19 in 2020 has caused impact of varying
degrees on various sectors in Hong Kong. As one of the cornerstone members
in the local financial industry, we respond actively to the calls of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (“‘HKSAR”) Government and the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority (“HKMA”) by promptly launching a series of financial support
measures in February. These included providing principal moratoriums of 6
months for residential mortgages to help affected personal customers;
launching a SME Express Loan Scheme, coupled with the Pre-approved
Principal Payment Holiday Scheme for eligible SMEs; as well as offering
financing support to enterprises related to medical and anti-epidemic supplies
and various transitional arrangements. With all these initiatives, we aimed to
help existing customers improve their short-term cashflow and overcome the
difficult times, and make the most of our service capability to support the
economic and financial stability of Hong Kong.

As a token of our appreciation for the selfless commitment of the healthcare
and social welfare personnel, we launched a dedicated account opening award
programme for those on the front lines of this crisis. We also provided express
banking services for non-profit making organisations, charitable institutions,
hospitals, healthcare groups as well as healthcare equipment companies, etc.
Meanwhile, the Bank offered fee waivers for customers who needed to delay
financial payments due to the epidemic situation or special circumstances, in
an effort to fight the virus together with our communities.

We were also one of the designated participating banks of the HKSAR
Government's Cash Payout Scheme. Customers who were Hong Kong
permanent residents qualified for the Scheme could conveniently register
through our branches, Internet or Mobile Banking to receive the HK$10,000.

(2) Driving cross-border financial business development

The year 2020 marked the 40th anniversary of the establishment of the
Shenzhen Special Economic Zone. Following the national introduction of the
“Outline Development Plan for the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay
Area (“GBA”)”, the GBA has since played a significant strategic role in the
development of the country, with Hong Kong and Shenzhen being a dual engine
for growth. This adds even greater impetus and vibrancy to the GBA. Chiyu
Bank’s Shenzhen Branch fully supports the country’s strategy of expanding the
opening-up of its financial industry. We leverage on our branches in Hong Kong
and Shenzhen to provide PRC-guaranteed Foreign Loans, Foreign-guaranteed
PRC Loans, Hong Kong-listed Securities pledged as Collaterals for Loans,
Cross-border Loans, etc. With this range of competitive financial products, we
aim to better serve the needs of corporate customers and residents in the GBA
for flexible and efficient cross-border financial services, and contribute to the
economic integration and mutual access between different regions and financial
markets in the GBA.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(continued)

Corporate Social Responsibility (continued)

1. Full support to the Hong Kong’s financial stability
(continued)

(3) Providing customer-centric and professional services

Deeply rooted in Hong Kong for over 70 years, we assume our responsibilities
to the community by responding actively to the HKMA's call to promote financial
inclusion. We also continuously enhance our customer service experience by
offering customer-centric, professional, flexible and efficient banking services
to the general public as well as corporate customers. On the retail business
front, diversified deposits products and investment plans have been launched
under different wealth management brands to meet the needs of diverse
customer segments. We aim to encourage the public to manage their finances
wisely and help them achieve their financial goals. In addition, the Bank
continues to meet the public needs for basic banking services with a number of
initiatives. These include abolition of minimum monthly balance fee for mid-
segment and grassroot customers who maintain personal accounts with us;
being one of the placing banks of the Silver Bond issued by the HKSAR
Government to provide local residents aged 65 or above with bond subscription
service. Moreover, we joined hands with the Anti-Deception Coordination
Centre under the Commercial Crime Bureau of the Hong Kong Police Force to
actively promote the anti-deception information among the public, the elderly
customers in particular. Related training was organised jointly with the
Coordination Centre for our frontline staff, to strengthen their awareness of
alerting customers to deception and their ability to recognise the defrauding
tricks. As regards our corporate banking business, we provide local corporate
customers with all-round financial services while working closely with our
Mainland branches as well as Chiyu International Capital Limited and Chiyu
Asset Management Limited, our subsidiaries, to render competitive cross-
border services. These include cross-border financing solutions and
consultation services for enterprises, as well as investment funds and dedicated
investment account services for professional investors. Our branches on the
Mainland continue to serve the local micro-enterprises by providing them with
flexible financing options for business expansion. Our Mainland branches also
strive to deepen cooperation with local governments to actively meet the needs
of enterprises, offering strong support to the development of quality enterprises
as well as the real economy.

The Bank embraces fintech in its business development. During the year, we
set up a new wholly-owned fintech subsidiary in Shenzhen, the engine for
growth in the GBA, to develop innovative functions such as an upgraded
information platform, digital application scenarios, etc in an effort to build up a
smart operating system that will lead the Group’s business development.

2. Building a caring and cohesive bank
(1) Providing anti-epidemic protection for customers

In the interests of protecting customers’ and employees’ health and safety, we
have proactively put in place a number of infection control measures at all our
local branches under the epidemic. These include requesting customers who
wish to enter our branches to undergo body temperature checks and wear face
masks, providing antiseptic handrub, as well as implementing our queuing
control measures, etc. We have also stepped up our efforts to promote and
encourage customers’ use of electronic channels to conduct banking
transactions in order to further reduce the risk of cross-infection. In line with the
HKSAR Government's “LeaveHomeSafe” COVID-19 exposure notification
mobile app, we have posted respective QR codes at all of our local branches
for the public to scan via the digital tool and record conveniently the date and
time for checking into and leaving branches.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(continued)

Corporate Social Responsibility (continued)

2. Building a caring and cohesive bank (continued)
(2) Protecting our employees’ health

As a people-oriented bank, we endeavour to safeguard our employees’ well-
being. To make sure that our employees could be protected from infection while
they are at work, we worked hard to source face masks and other anti-epidemic
items in overseas countries to counter the shortage of such items at the
outbreak of COVID-19. We provided different protective items for employees as
well as their family members, aiming to offer them strong protection against
infection. In the meantime, we promptly implemented a series of stringent
infection control measures in all our branch and office premises in line with the
local governmental and regulatory requirements. We also formulated
contingency arrangements and refined our action plans, in order to take
proactive initiatives according to the epidemic development. These initiatives
include arranging some of our employees to work from alternate sites,
introducing flexible working hours, continuously stepping up sterilisation work
and infection control promotion at all office and branch premises, enhancing
employees’ awareness, providing a number of employee benefits such as cash
subsidy, traffic subsidy, lunchboxes and fruits, etc during the epidemic. With the
concerted efforts of employees, all the infection control measures have been
carried out in an orderly and effective manner, and no infection case was
recorded in the Bank during the year.

(3) Offering anti-epidemic support for the communities we serve

In face of worsening global epidemic situation, Chiyu Bank undertakes its role
as a social enterprise to share the fruits of its development with society and help
combat the virus. In this regard, we have given tremendous support to infection
control and joined hands with the Group’s other institutions, Chiyu Tan Kah Kee
Education Foundation and Tan Kah Kee Fund Association to donate medical
supplies to major hospitals in Wuhan, as well as a number of local and overseas
organisations in early 2020. We hope that by taking the lead to make donations,
we could promote the concerted efforts of different segments in society to help
one another counter the epidemic.

Hong Kong people’s well being is still our top priority. To support the anti-
epidemic work in Hong Kong, the Bank, together with Chiyu Tan Kah Kee
Education Foundation and Tan Kah Kee Fund Association, donated medical
supplies to the Hong Kong Hospital Authority in March 2020 to provide
protective gowns for the devoted frontline healthcare personnel and face masks
for children patients. We also donated face masks to the Hong Kong Red Cross
and Caritas Hong Kong, in the hope that we could give as much support, care
and protection as possible to the local healthcare institutions and the local
disadvantaged groups such as students with special needs and elderly people
within the shortest timeframe. To help Jimei University, which was also set up
by Mr. Tan Kah Kee, resolve the shortage of anti-epidemic items, we donated
face masks to the teaching staff and students of the university, helping them
create a safety net. In addition, our Xiamen Branch showed support with actions
by organising blood donation activities to help patients. This is a vivid
demonstration of the Bank’s spirit of helping those in need and serving local
communities, bringing the public more positive energy.

While the pandemic has been spreading worldwide, the Bank proactively
promotes “Kah Kee Spirit” by giving support to places where the member
organisations of Tan Kah Kee Fund Association are located, including a
donation of anti-epidemic supplies to The Kuala Lumpur and Selangor Chinese
Assembly Hall in Malaysia. This contributes to safeguarding the local healthcare
institutions, the overseas Chinese communities and the disadvantaged
impacted by COVID-19.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(continued)

Corporate Social Responsibility (continued)

2. Building a caring and cohesive bank (continued)
(4) Nurturing financial talents

We consider our employees to be the most precious assets. The Bank puts
great emphasis on nurturing talents and helping employees upgrade their
qualifications by providing them with internationalised training of diversified
businesses jointly with the Xiamen International Bank Financial Training Centre
in Hong Kong. We also participate actively in the HKMA'’s Banking Talent
Programme and Fintech Career Accelerator Scheme. Under the programmes,
we offer practical working opportunities as well as professional training of
banking and fintech topics for local university graduates, in support of growing
the financial talent pool in Hong Kong, while laying a solid foundation for future
business development of the Xiamen International Bank Group. In addition, we
continuously strengthen our compliance culture and enhance our staff’s related
knowledge by providing them with compliance and anti-money laundering
seminars and online training during the year. Our employees are also
encouraged and subsidised to enrol in different training courses to enhance
their knowledge of different banking businesses and obtain related
certifications, such as anti-money laundering, internet security, treasury
management, credit risk, etc in line with the HKMA’s Enhanced Competency
Framework (“ECF”) for Banking Practitioners. Moreover, selected staff enrolled
in the ECF programme organised by the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers to be
qualified as Certified Retail Wealth Professionals (CRWP), which is a
qualification well recognised by the HKMA. Our efforts in talent training enable
us to further promote sound risk management and drive steady business
development.

(5) Promoting Core Values

Our Corporate Culture Development Task Force continues to advocate the
Bank’s core values of “Integrity, People-oriented, Innovative Development and
Caring for the Society” by implementing various initiatives to create an
atmosphere for employees to excel. We also publish internal e-magazines
respectively named “Chiyu’'s Wisdom” and “Striving for Success”, to provide
employees with updates of the Bank’s innovation and development as well as
infection control measures, and commend those who demonstrate their can-do
spirit and make significant achievements during the epidemic. In addition, a
series of corporate culture programmes theming “Integrity, Diligence, Vibrancy
and Caring” was launched to promote among our people integrity, compliance
and discipline, as well as commitment in face of challenges.

(6) Caring for our People

With our people-oriented principle, we constantly optimise benefits for our
employees. In 2020, we increased the amount of meal allowance, and
continued to offer a range of employee care initiatives, such as presents and
red packets at Chinese New Year as well as gifts for festivals and birthday, etc.
to create a friendly working environment. The Bank reviews its renumeration
packages periodically and formulates a competitive scheme to retain and attract
talent. An incentive programme has also been introduced to reward outstanding
staff. Another initiative to recognise our employees for their remarkable
performance is our Award Presentation Ceremony. It helps boost morale and
increase our staff’s loyalty and sense of belonging.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(continued)

Corporate Social Responsibility (continued)

2. Building a caring and cohesive bank (continued)
(7) Supporting Education

We remain committed to supporting the development of local education. During
the year, the Bank sponsored the "10th Hong Kong Student Knowledge Contest
on China's National Situation”. It was the second consecutive year that the Bank
helped promote this meaningful national education activity, aiming to strengthen
local students’ skills of independent analysis and critical thinking through
deepening of their understanding of the conditions and history of our
motherland. The Bank has also actively supported the volunteer activities
organised by The Association of Banks by participating in the Project YOL
(Youth Opinion Leader). Members of our volunteer team are appointed to share
and communicate through videos, the Bank’s basic operation as well as the
concept of savings and managing personal finances with primary and
secondary students from grassroot families.

(8) Advocating environmental awareness

To reduce paper consumption and raise the public awareness of environmental
protection, the Bank continuously promotes its internet and mobile banking as
well as e-cheque services among customers. We see a wider use of these
electronic platforms that offer customers secured, convenient and environment-
friendly services to manage their finances. As at the end of 2020, the Bank
recorded an increase of 13% in the respective numbers of customers using
Chiyu Internet Banking and Mobile Banking as compared with the previous
year.

In addition, we have implemented a number of proactive measures to protect
our environment. These include providing paperless “green” workplaces, opting
to use electric appliances and products with “Grade 1” energy label, reducing
waste, avoiding disposable items, and installing electronic sensor water taps in
toilets. On top of promoting concepts of recycling, saving of energy and water
resources among staff, we offer shark-fin free menus at banquets, and continue
to support and participate in the “Charter on External Lighting” organised by the
Environment Bureau of Hong Kong by switching off external lighting
installations at night to minimise light nuisance.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(continued)

Corporate Social Responsibility (continued)

3. Awards and Recognition

During the year, we received the following accolades acknowledging the
achievements we have made in fulfilling our corporate responsibility and driving
our business development:

+ the recognition as a Caring Company by the Hong Kong Council of Social
Service for seven consecutive years;

+ the “Most Outstanding Bank for Sustainability and Corporate Social
Responsibility Award” under the 5th Banking & Finance Awards programme
organised by SkyPost,

- the Grand Prize of the “Outstanding Corporate Social Responsibility Award”
by CTgoodjobs for the second consecutive year;

- the “Best Corporate Social Responsibility Award” by JobMarket for the first
time;

+ the "Youth Nurturing Employer Award” by the Labour Department for two
years in a row and the “Employer of Choice Award” by JobMarket for the
third consecutive year in acknowledgement of our efforts to implement
comprehensive talent recruitment and training strategies;

+ Our proactive efforts to participate in the national economic development
and our contributions to drive cross-border and cross-sector integration
have also been well recognised. We were named the “Best Commercial
Bank in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area” in the
Greater Bay Area Development Forum and Ceremony, which was a
programme organised by the Hong Kong Ta Kung Wen Wei Media Group
for the first time;

+ The Bank’s Fuzhou Branch was recognised as the “2019 Outstanding
Institution for Data Quality of Commercial Credit Reporting System” by the
Credit Reference Center of The People's Bank of China in its 2019 Data
Quality Assessment of the Credit Reporting System of Local Financial
Institutions.
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Report of the Directors

The Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as the “Board”) of Chiyu
Banking Corporation Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Bank”) are
pleased to present their report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries (together with the
Bank hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2020 (hereinafter referred to as the “Financial Statements”).

Principal Activities

The Bank is a licensed bank authorised under the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance. The principal activities of the Group are the provision of
banking and related financial services. An analysis of the Group’s
performance for the year by business segments is set out in Note 37 to
the Financial Statements.

Business Review

For business review of the Group for the year, please refer to the
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis” and “Unaudited
Supplementary Financial Information — Risk Management” section of
this annual report. The above section forms part of this report.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 37.

No interim dividend was declared during the year.

The Board has recommended a final dividend (the “2020 Final
Dividend”) of HK$0.114 per share in respect of the year ended 31
December 2020, subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Bank
at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “2020 AGM”).

Shares Issued

In order to further enhance the capital strength for future development,
the Bank issued 203,994,800, 10,504,200 and 135,489,500 ordinary
shares on 29 September, 31 October and 28 December 2020
respectively at HK$9.52 each to shareholders of the Bank.

Details of the share capital of the Bank are set out in Note 30 to the
Financial Statements.

Donations

The Bank spares no effort in organising and sponsoring different
community activities with a view to fulfilling our corporate social
responsibility. Charitable and other donations made by the Group during
the year amounted to HK$13,120.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

Directors

The directors of the Bank (hereinafter referred to as the “Directors”)
during the year and up to date of this report are:

Chairman Lyu Yaoming
Vice Chairman Zheng Wei

Yu Kwok Chun *
Directors Tsoi Lai Ha #

Chen Cheng # (resigned on 9 February 2021)
Tan Wan Chye #

Woo Chia Wei *

Cheung Wai Hing *

Lee Hoi Yin, Stephen *

Chiu Ming Wah *

Chan Yiu Fai

# Non-executive Directors

* Independent Non-executive Directors

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Bank, the
appointment of directors will be approved by ordinary resolution or by
the decision of the Board of Directors. Approval from the HKMA will also
be obtained in accordance with the Banking Ordinance.

The term of office for each Director of the Bank is approximately three
years. All Directors are subject to retirement and re-election at the
annual general meeting in accordance with the Articles of Association
of the Bank, and the re-election of retiring directors should be subject to
the recommendation and review from the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and the Board before approval is sought from
shareholders at the AGM.

In accordance with Articles 24(2) and 25 of the Bank’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Lyu Yaoming, Mr. Zheng Wei, Ms. Tsoi Lai Ha and Mr.
Tan Wan Chye shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Save for Mr. Zheng Wei and Mr. Chan Yiu Fai being also director of
certain subsidiaries of the Bank, other directors of the subsidiaries of
the Bank during the year and up to date of this report are:

Fung Chi Lap

Wong Siu Man

Tang Chu, Leonard

Kwong Kei Man

Don Wayne Ebanks

Wong Wai Shan

Lee Yuen Hung Kevin

Ye Xin

Liu Xiaoji

Kris Zhao (appointed on 26 May 2020)

Xiao Jingyuan (appointed on 26 May 2020)

Chau Po Yue (appointed on 18 September 2020)

Chung Yuen Hing Charles (appointed on 18 September 2020)

Zhao Lei (appointed on 17 April 2020 and resigned on 26 May 2020)

Gu Kaifan (appointed on 17 April 2020 and resigned on 26 May 2020)

Shen Chengjie (resigned on 31 July 2020)
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Report of the Directors (continued)

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or
Contracts

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance, in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Bank or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director or his/her connected entity had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Bank were entered
into or existed during the year.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year was the Bank or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Bank or any other body corporate.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Bank, every Director shall
be indemnified out of funds of the Bank against all liability incurred by
him/her as Director. The Bank has maintained insurance for the benefit
of Directors against liability which may lawfully be incurred by the Bank.

Compliance with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules

This annual report complies with the applicable requirements set out in
the Banking (Disclosure) Rules under the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance.

Auditor

The financial statements for the year 2020 have been audited by KPMG
who will retire and offer themselves for re-appointment at the 2020
AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Lyu Yaoming
Chairman
Hong Kong, 26 April 2021
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Biographical Details of Directors

Board of Directors

Mr. LYU Yaoming
Chairman and Executive Director

PhD in Economics, Senior Economist, was appointed as the Chairman and is a
member of the Strategy and Corporate Governance Committee of the Bank.
Currently, Mr. Lyu serves as Vice Chairman of the Board of Xiamen International
Bank Co., Ltd., Chairman of the Board of Luso International Banking Limited,
Director of Xiamen International Investment Limited, Deputy Director of Institute
of Finance, Xiamen University. Mr. Lyu had successively served as Branch
Manager of Fuzhou Branch of the Industrial and Commercial Bank of China,
Deputy Branch Head of Fujian Branch of Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China. Since December 1997, Mr. Lyu had successively held the posts of
Executive Director, Vice Executive President and President of Xiamen
International Bank. Mr. Lyu serves as the Vice Chairman and President of
Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd. since December 2012, and resigned from
the post of President in May 2018.

Mr. ZHENG Wei
Vice Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive

Holds a Bachelor's degree in Economics from the Xiamen University and is a
senior economist, was appointed the Vice Chairman and an Executive Director
of the Bank in March 2017 and was appointed the Chief Executive of the Bank in
June 2017 and is a member of the Strategy and Corporate Governance
Committee and the Risk Management Committee. Mr. Zheng is an Executive
Director and Vice President of Xiamen International Bank. Mr. Zheng was the
Deputy General Manager of Xiamen International Bank and the General
Manager of the Shanghai Branch of Xiamen International Bank from July 2007
to February 2017. Mr. Zheng had also previously served Xiamen International
Bank as the Deputy Manager of the Credit Department, the Deputy Manager and
Manager of the Credit Management Department, the General Manager of the
Zhuhai Branch and the Assistant General Manager of Xiamen International Bank.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)

Mr. YU Kwok Chun
Vice Chairman and Independent Non-executive Director

Holds a Bachelor's degree in Commerce from the MacQuarie University,
Honorary University Fellow of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and the
Hong Kong Baptist University and Honorary Doctor of Business Administration
of the City University of Hong Kong, he was appointed Independent Non-
executive Director of the Bank in April 2002 and appointed as Vice Chairman in
December 2018. He is also the Chairman of the Strategy and Corporate
Governance Committee and a member of the Audit Committee of the Bank.
Mr. Yu is Chairman of the Yue Hwa Group and Chairman of Yue Hwa Chinese
Products Emporium Limited. Mr. Yu is active in various social services in Hong
Kong as well as in the PRC. Mr. Yu is Executive Member of the National
Committee of The 13th Chinese National People’s Political Consultative
Conference and Vice Chairman of All-China Federation of Returned Overseas
Chinese. He is Member of the Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University, Founding Chairman and First President of the Federation of Hong
Kong Guangdong Community Organizations Limited, Permanent Honorary
Chairman and Vice Chairman of Friends of Hong Kong Association Limited,
Principal Chairman of The Hong Kong Federation of Overseas Chinese
Associations, Committee Member of The Chinese General Chamber of
Commerce, Permanent Honorary Advisor of the Hong Kong Meizhou Federation,
Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong Overseas Chinese General Association,
Honorary Chairman of Hong Kong Hakka Associations, Permanent Honorary
President and Founding Chairman of the Unified Association of Kowloon West
Limited, and Honorary President of the Hong Kong and Kowloon General
Merchandise Merchants’ Association Limited. Mr. Yu is the Vice President of
Overseas Exchange Association of Guangdong Province, Honorary President of
the Guangdong, Hong Kong and Macau Cooperation Promotion Association of
Guangdong Province, Director and Vice Chairman of the Board of the Jinan
University, Guangzhou, Vice President of the Jinan University Education and
Foundation Fund Limited, Guangzhou, Honorary President of the Board of
Directors of Jiaying University, Meizhou, Guangdong Province, Vice Chairman of
the Board of Directors of Beijing Chinese Language and Culture College, and
Director of the First Board of Advisory Directors of Sun Yat Sen University,
Guangzhou. Mr. Yu was awarded the honour of Justice of the Peace, Silver
Bauhinia Star, Gold Bauhinia Star and Grand Bauhinia Medal by the Government
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region successively in 1998, 1999,
2006 and 2019.

Ms. TSOI Lai Ha
Non-executive Director

Holds a Bachelor's degree in Management Accounting from Hong Kong
Polytechnic University, fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a Chartered Global Management Accountant and
Certified Financial Planner, was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the
Bank in March 2017 and is also a member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee. Ms. Tsoi is the Chief Financial Officer
of Xiamen International Bank. From June 1995 to May 2013, Ms. Tsoi served
Xiamen International Bank as Group Financial Controller. Prior to joining Xiamen
International Bank, she was Manager at the Financial Planning Department of
Nanyang Commercial Bank, Deputy Manager of the Accounting Department of
Asian Oceanic Group and Group Financial Controller of Mbf Asia Capital
Corporation Holding Ltd.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)

Mr. TAN Wan Chye
Non-executive Director

Holds a Bachelor of Engineering Degree from Manchester College of Science
and Technology, University of Manchester, England and a Post Graduate
Diploma in Industrial Administration, he was appointed a Non-executive Director
of the Bank in June 1982. He is also a member of the Strategy and Corporate
Governance Committee and the Audit Committee of the Bank. Mr. Tan is the
largest individual shareholder of the Bank and is the son of Mr. Tan Kong Piat,
the former Chairman of the Bank. Mr. Tan is the Chairman of Tan Kong Piat (Pte)
Ltd, which is a holding company, Tan Kong Piat & Co Pte Ltd, which is an
investment trading company, Asia Industrial Development (Pte) Ltd and Asia
Property Development (Pte) Ltd, which are both property development
companies. He had previously served as a Director of the following companies
importing Chinese canned food and herb, Chung Nam Company (Pte) Ltd, Bin
Hong Co Pte Ltd, Tiong Wan Pte Ltd and Nam Leong Co Sdn Bhd. He took part
in the design & construction of Central Power Stations in England and Singapore.
He is a Chartered Engineer, a Member of the Institute of Mechanical Engineers,
England, and a Member of Institute of Engineers, Singapore. Mr. Tan is active in
the charitable activities in Singapore. He is a board member of Buddhist Lodge
Education Foundation, a board member of Mee Toh School, a Trustee of Kwan
Im Thong Hood Cho Temple and Mee Toh Foundation, they distribute donations
that amount to millions of Singaporean Dollars to schools, hospitals and
charitable organisations.

Prof. WOO Chia-Wei
Independent Non-executive Director

Holds a Master's Degree and a PhD in Physics from Washington University in
St. Louis in the United States, he was appointed an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Bank in April 2002. He is also a member of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the Bank. Prof. Woo is also the Senior Advisor to
Shui On Holdings Limited and the President Emeritus of the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology, an Independent Non-executive Director of
each of Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited and First Shanghai Investments
Limited. Prof. Woo was previously the President, Provost, Department Head, and
a Professor of several prominent universities in the United States of America.
Prof. Woo was awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star by the Government of Hong
Kong, the Commander of the Most Excellent Order of the British Empire by the
United Kingdom, as well as Chevalier de la Legion d’Honneur by the President
of France.

Mr. CHEUNG Wai Hing
Independent Non-executive Director

LLB (Hon.), HKU, he was appointed an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Bank in November 2006. He is also the Chairman of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee of the Bank. Mr.
Cheung is a senior partner of Woo Kwan Lee & Lo, Solicitors and the Head of its
Litigation Department. Mr. Cheung is currently the Chairman of the Board of
Directors of the Applied Research Council of the HKSAR Government. He also
serves as the Honarary Legal Advisor of Po Leung Kuk, The Hong Kong
Tuberculosis, Chest and Heart Diseases Association and Wai Yin Association.
He is a member of Po Leung Kuk Youth Oasis Preparatory Consultative
Committee and panel member of the Disciplinary Committee of Association for
China-Appointed Attesting Officers Limited. Mr. Cheung is a trustee of The D. H.
Chen Foundation and was a trustee of the Association for Celebration of
Reunification of Hong Kong with China Charitable Trust until the winding up of its
operation. Mr. Cheung is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong and qualified to
practise in England and Wales, Australia (Victoria) and Singapore. He is also a
China-Appointed Attesting Officer and a Civil Celebrant of Marriages of the
Government of Hong Kong.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)

Mr. LEE Hoi Yin, Stephen
Independent Non-executive Director

Awarded a Bachelor of Arts (Hons) degree in Accountancy from City of London
Polytechnic, a Fellow Member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales, and an Associate Member of The Institute of Internal Auditors, he was
appointed an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Bank in November
2013. He is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Risk
Management Committee of the Bank. Mr. Lee has over 30 years’ experience
in accounting, auditing and financial management, at KPMG in London and Hong
Kong. He was an audit partner of KPMG Hong Kong before becoming the
Partner-in-Charge of the Risk & Compliance Advisory practices of KPMG in
respect of Hong Kong, the PRC and the Asia Pacific region. He retired from
KPMG in 2011,and is currently serving as an Adjunct Associate Professor at The
Chinese University of Hong Kong and as Immediate Past President of The
Institute of Internal Auditors Hong Kong Limited. He is a Non-executive Director
of the Board of the Financial Reporting Council of Hong Kong and an
Independent Director of Prime Property Fund Asia GP Pte Limited.

Mr. CHIU Ming Wah
Independent Non-executive Director

Awarded a Bachelor of Business Administration in Accounting from Lincoln
University, U.S.Aand was a Certified Fraud Examiner (CFE) during 2000 to 2014.
Mr. Chiu was appointed an Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank in
February 2019. He is also the Chairman of the Risk Management Committee of
the Bank. He is at present a Director of Shanghai Lingang Overseas
Development Co. Limited. During 2001 to 2014, he was the Head of Audit
(General Manager) of Bank of China (HK) Limited as well as a Non-executive
Director and the Chairman of the Audit Committee of Chiyu Bank. He was
member of the Shenyang Chinese National People’s Political Consultative
Conference during 2013 to 2017 and successively been a member of the
National People’s Congress Election Committee of Hong Kong.

Mr. CHAN Yiu Fai
Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive

Holds a Bachelor's Degree in Business Administration from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong and a Master’'s Degree in Corporate Governance from
The Open University of Hong Kong, he was appointed an Executive Director of
the Bank in March 2003 and as the Deputy Chief Executive (formerly known as
Deputy General Manager) of the Bank in December 2002. Presently he is mainly
responsible for the information technology, business support and internal control
functions of the Bank. Between 1981 and 2001, Mr. Chan had served in the Hua
Chiao Commercial Bank in various positions as the Branch Manager, the Head
of Business Development Department, China Business Department, Strategic
Planning Department and Project Research Department. He was the Head of the
Mainland Branch Business Department of Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
after the merger of BOCHK Group in October 2001.
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Corporate Governance

During the year, the Bank has followed the guidelines as set out in the
Supervisory Policy Manual CG-1 entitled “Corporate Governance of Locally
Incorporated Authorised Institutions” issued by The Hong Kong Monetary
Authority (hereinafter referred to as the “HKMA”). The Bank is committed to
maintaining the highest corporate governance standards and considers such
commitment essential in balancing the interests of shareholders, customers
and employees; and in upholding accountability and transparency.

Board of Directors (“Board”) and the Senior
Management

The Board is responsible for setting objectives and formulating long term
strategies as well as managing the Group’s overall business. It currently
comprises ten Directors with a variety of different experience and
professionalism. Among them, three are Executive Directors, remaining seven
are Non-executive Directors. Of the seven Non-executive Directors, five are
Independent Non-executive Directors whose indispensable function is to
provide independent scrutiny. The Board meets regularly and four board
meetings were held in the year with an average attendance rate of 100%. The
Board authorises the Senior Management to implement the strategies as
approved by the Board. The Senior Management is responsible for the day-to-
day operations of the Group and reports to the Board. Senior Management
implements important policies and develops strategies as adopted by the
Board. In order to focus on strategic and material issues that have significant
impact on the Group’s financial performance, risk management, long-term
development and matters relating to the remuneration, appointment and
removal, four committees have been established under the Board to oversee
the major areas of the Group. Details of the committees are given below:
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Strategy and Corporate Governance Committee
(“SC”)

The SC assists the Board in performing the following duties in respect of
the strategy management and corporate governance of the Group:

- study and formulate the Group's development strategy, business
objectives, risk management strategy, capital management strategy,
human resource management strategy, technology development
strategy, organisation and new business development strategy and
medium and long-term development plan;

+ review and evaluate the implementation process of strategies; make
proposal on strategic adjustments in accordance with the changes in
the business environment;

- exercise decision making and monitoring power on behalf of the Board
during the period between the Board meetings;

+ recommend on the setup plan proposed by senior management;

+ monitor corporate governance system, evaluate regularly and make
suggestions to improve the corporate governance of the Group;

- check the implementation of the Group's annual business plan and
major investment plans, make recommendations on major investment
projects of the Bank, and report to the board of directors for
consideration and approval; and

+ perform the relevant duties of such committes under the authorisation
of the board of directors when other committees under the board of
directors are unable to perform certain duties due to conflicts of interest
or other reasons.

The members of SC during the year and up to date of the Report of the
Directors are:

Mr. Yu Kwok Chun (Chairman)
Mr. Lyu Yaoming

Mr. Tan Wan Chye

Mr. Zheng Wei

All of them are Directors of the Bank. Among them, Mr. Yu Kwok Chun is
Independent Non-executive Director. Four SC meetings were held in the
year with an attendance rate of 94%.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Audit Committee (“AC”)

The AC assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight role over the Group in
the following areas:

- integrity of financial statements and financial reporting process;
+ internal control systems;

- effectiveness of internal audit function and performance appraisal of the
General Manager of Audit Department;

- appointment of external auditor and assessment of its qualification,
independence and performance;

+ periodic review and annual audit of the Group’s financial statements;

- compliance with applicable accounting standards as well as legal and
regulatory requirements on financial disclosures; and

+ corporate governance framework of the Group and implementation
thereof.

The members of AC during the year and up to date of the Report of the
Directors are:

Mr. Lee Hoi Yin, Stephen (Chairman)
Mr. Cheung Wai Hing

Mr. Tan Wan Chye

Mr. Yu Kwok Chun

Ms. Tsoi Lai Ha

All of them are Non-executive Directors of the Bank. Among them, Mr. Lee
Hoi Yin, Stephen, Mr. Cheung Wai Hing and Mr. Yu Kwok Chun are
Independent Non-executive Directors. Five AC meetings were held in the
year with an attendance rate of 100%.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Risk Management Committee (“RC”)

The RC assists the Board in performing the following duties in respect of the
risk management of the Group:

- formulation of the risk appetite and risk management strategy of the Group;
+ monitoring of various types of risks faced by the Group;
-+ review and monitoring of the changes in the Group’s risk profile;

+ review and monitoring of the Group’s compliance with the risk management
policies, system, internal control procedures and regulatory requirements;

- review and approval of significant risk-related policies and risk limits of the
Group; and

- review of risk-related information submitted by the Group.

The members of RC during the year and up to date of the Report of the Directors
are:

Mr. Chiu Ming Wah (Chairman)
Mr. Lee Hoi Yin, Stephen
Mr. Zheng Wei

All of them are Directors of the Bank. Among them, Mr. Chiu Ming Wah and Mr.

Lee Hoi Yin, Stephen are Independent Non-executive Directors. Four RC
meetings were held in the year with an attendance rate of 92%.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”)

The NRC assists the Board in performing the duties in respect of the Group
in the following areas:

- human resources strategy, remuneration strategy and incentive
framework of the Group;

- group governance and bank culture promotion;

+ selection, nomination and appointment of Directors, Board Committee
members and Senior Management;

+ structure, size, composition and qualification (including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, geographical
location, professional experience, skills, knowledge and track
records,etc) of the Board and Board Committees;

- remuneration of Directors, Board Committee members, Senior
Management and Key Personnel;

- effectiveness of the Board and Board Committees; and

+ training and continuous professional development of Directors and Senior
Management.

The members of the NRC during the year and up to date of the Report of the
Directors are:

Mr. Cheung Wai Hing (Chairman)

Ms. Tsoi Lai Ha

Mr. Woo Chia Wei

All of them are Non-executive Directors of the Bank. Among them, Mr.
Cheung Wai Hing and Mr. Woo Chia Wei are Independent Non-executive
Directors. Four NRC meetings were held during the year with an attendance
rate of 100%.

Major tasks performed during the year (included the approval, review and
proposal to the Board):

+ review the amendment and formulation on the major human resources
and remuneration policies;

+ review on the NRC mandate;

+ review on the performance appraisal result and bonus payment for the
year 2019 and the proposal on the salary adjustment for the year 2020 of

the Senior Management and Key Personnel;

+ proposal on the Annual Review of the Four Type of Staff as delineated in
the “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System” of HKMA,;

+ review on the change of Senior Management/Key Personnel of the Bank
and related remuneration matters;

+ review on the adjustment of organization chart;

+ review on the 2020 KPI framework of Senior Management and Key
Personnel of the Bank;

+ review on 2019 Independent Review on Compliance of Guideline on a
Sound Remuneration System; and

+ review on the bank culture report of the Group.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism

The Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism of the Group is based on the
principles of “effective motivation” and “sound remuneration management”.
It links remuneration with performance and risk factors closely. It serves to
encourage staff to enhance their performance and, at the same time, to
strengthen their awareness of risk so as to achieve sound remuneration
management.

The Remuneration and Incentive Policy of the Group is generally in line with
the board principles set out in the HKMA’s “Guideline on a Sound
Remuneration System” and applicable to the Bank and all of its subsidiaries
(including the branches and institutions within and outside Hong Kong).

1. Senior Management and Key Personnel

The following groups of employees have been identified as the “Senior
Management” and “Key Personnel” as defined in the HKMA'’s “Guideline
on a Sound Remuneration System”:

+ “Senior Management”: The senior executives designated by the Board
who are responsible for oversight of the bank-wide strategy or material
business lines, including Executive Directors, Chief Executive, Deputy
Chief Executives, Chief Risk Officer and Chief Financial Officer.

- “Key Personnel”: The employees whose individual business activities
involve the assumption of material risk which may have significant
impact on risk exposure, or whose individual responsibilities are
directly and materially linked to the risk management, or those who
have direct influence to the profit, including General Managers of
material business lines, General Manager of Financial Markets
Department, as well as General Managers of risk control functions.

2. Determination of the Remuneration Policy

To fulfil the above-mentioned principles and to facilitate effective risk
management within the framework of the Remuneration Policy of the
Group, Human Resources Department is responsible for proposing the
Remuneration Policy of the Group and will seek consultation from the risk
control units including risk management, financial management and
compliance if necessary, in order to balance the needs for staff
motivations, sound remuneration and prudent risk management. The
proposed remuneration strategy and planning is submitted to the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee for review and thereafter to the
Board for approval. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
the Board will seek opinions from other Board Committees (e.g. Risk
Committee, Audit Committee, etc.) where they consider necessary under
the circumstances.

3. Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism
(1) Performance Management Mechanism

The Group has put in place a performance management mechanism
to formalise the performance management at the levels of the Group,
units and individuals. For individual staff at different levels, annual
targets of the Group will be tied to their job requirements through the
performance management mechanism. Performance of individuals
will be appraised on their achievement against targets, their
contribution towards performance of their units, fulfilment of risk
management duties, execution of the bank culture and compliance.
Not only is target accomplishment taken into account, but the risk
exposure involved during the course of work and their core value could
also be evaluated and managed, ensuring security and normal
operation of the Group.
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Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism
(continued)

3. HESESH TG e (E)

3. Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism
(continued)

(2) ey e

(2) Risk Adjustment of Remuneration
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To put the principle of aligning performance and remuneration with risk
into practice, based on the risk adjustment method of the Group, the
key risk modifiers of the Bank have been incorporated into the
performance management mechanism. Credit risk, market risk,
interest rate risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, legal risk, compliance
risk and reputation risk form the framework of the risk adjustment
method.

(3) Risk-adjusted Remuneration Management

The remuneration of staff is composed of “fixed remuneration” and
“variable remuneration”. The proportion of one to the other for
individual staff members depends on job grades, roles, responsibilities
and functions of the staff with the prerequisite that balance has to be
struck between the fixed and variable portion, so as to encourage the
staff to follow the philosophy of prudent risk management and sound
long-term financial stability. Generally speaking, the higher the grading
/ responsibility of the individual staff, the bigger the portion of variable
pay will be in his/her total remuneration.

Every year, the Group will conduct periodic review on the fixed
remuneration of the staff with reference to various factors like
remuneration strategy, market pay trend and staff salary level, and will
determine the remuneration based on the affordability of the Group as
well as the performance of the Group, units and individuals. As
mentioned above, performance assessment criteria include
quantitative and qualitative factors, as well as financial and non-
financial indicators.

The size of the Variable Remuneration Pool of the Bank is determined
by the Board of the Bank on the basis of its financial performance and
the achievement of non-financial strategic business targets under the
long-term development of the Group. Thorough consideration is also
made to the risk factors in the determination process. The size of the
Variable Remuneration Pool is reached by the Board of the Bank who
makes discretionary adjustment to it if deemed appropriate under
prevailing circumstances. When the Bank’s performance is relatively
weak (e.g. failed to meet the threshold performance level), no variable
remuneration will be paid out that year in principle, however, the Board
of the Bank reserves the rights to exercise its discretion.

As far as individual units and individual staff are concerned, allocation
of the variable remuneration is closely linked to the performance of the
units, and that of each individual staff as well as the unit he/she is
attached to, and the assessment of which should include risk
modifiers. The performance and remuneration arrangement of risk
control personnel are determined by the achievement of their core job
responsibilities, which is independent from the business they oversee;
for front-line risk controllers, a cross-departmental reporting and
performance management system is applied to ensure the suitability
of performance-based remuneration. The better the performance of
the Department and the individual staff, the higher will be the variable
remuneration for the individual staff. For behaviour which is positive
and adhering to the Group’s corporate culture, the variable
remuneration should be tilted forward; for misconduct or behaviour
which is negative and not adhering to the Group’s corporate culture,
the variable remuneration should be forfeited or reduced
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism
(continued)

3. Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism
(continued)

(4) Linking the payout of the variable remuneration with the time

horizon of the risk to reflect the long-term value creation of the
Group

To work out the principle of aligning remuneration with the time horizon
of risk and to ensure that sufficient time is allowed to ascertain the
associated risk and its impact before the actual payout, payout of the
variable remuneration of staff is required to be deferred in cash if such
amount reaches certain prescribed threshold. The Group adopts a
progressive approach towards deferral. The higher the job grade of
the individual staff, the higher will be the proportion of deferral.
Deferral period lasts for 3 years.

The vesting of the deferred variable remuneration is linked with the
long-term value creation of the Group. The vesting conditions are
linked to the yearly performance (financial and non-financial) of the
Group in the next 3 years and the bahavior of the individual staff to the
effect that the variable remuneration could only be vested to such
extent as set for the relevant year in that 3-year period subject to the
condition that the Group’s performance has met the threshold
requirement in the corresponding year. However, if a staff is found to
have committed fraud, or any financial or non-financial factors used in
performance measurement or variable pay determination are later
proven to have been manifestly worse than originally understood in a
particular year, or individual behaviour/management style poses
negative impacts to the business unit and even the Group, including
but not limited to improper or inadequate risk management, significant
incident and economic loss incurred by improper management, etc.,
part of or full of the unvested portion of the deferred variable
remuneration of the relevant staff would be forfeited.

Compared with the previous years, there was no material change in
the nature and type of above mentioned measures during the year, so
it had no significant influence on the remuneration system of the Bank.

4. Annual Review of Remuneration Policy

@)

@

©)

The Remuneration Policy of the Group is subject to annual review
with reference to changes on external regulatory requirements,
market conditions, organisational structure and risk management
requirements, etc.

The review on the “Remuneration and Incentive Policy” and “Variable
Remuneration Management Policy” of the Bank have been
conducted during the year, so as to demonstrate the important
message of human resources strategy by giving the balance of
“effective incentive” and “prudent remuneration management”, which
is in line with HKMA guidance.

Based on the latest organization structure and the business strategy
of the Bank, the identification criteria & position lists of the “Senior
Management” and “Key Personnel” and etc., as delineated in the
“Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System”, were also reviewed.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)

5. Disclosure on Remuneration

The Group has fully complied with the guideline in Part 3 of the “Guideline on
a Sound Remuneration System” issued by the HKMA to disclose information

in relation to our remuneration and incentive mechanism.

There are 6 (2019: 6) Senior Management members and 11 (2019: 12) Key
Personnel in 2020. The aggregate amount of remuneration of the Senior
Management and Key Personnel during the year, split into fixed and variable

remuneration, is set out below:

(i) Remuneration awarded during the year

Fixed remuneration
Total fixed remuneration
Of which: cash-based

Variable remuneration
Total variable remuneration
Of which: cash-based

Of which: deferred
Of which: shares or other share-linked
instruments

Of which: deferred

Total remuneration

(i) Deferred remuneration

Deferred remuneration
Vested
Unvested

At 1 January

Awarded

Paid out

Reduced through performance adjustments
At 31 December

26

2020 2019
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000

34,110 36,760
34,110 36,760
12,888 43,442
11,042 32,546

1,846 10,896
46,998 80,202

2020 2019
BT AETIT
HK$’000 HK$'000

2,953 1,501

17,188 18,295
20,141 19,796
18,295 9,198
1,846 10,896
(2,953) (1,501)
- (298)
17,188 18,295
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Fm R Bt (&) Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)

5. FHHE (&) 5. Disclosure on Remuneration (continued)
e Note:
HS RS RERE A &R A0 As the total number of Senior Management and Key Personnel involved is
KBRS > e B AR A 2 > 5 relatively small, to avoid individual figures being deduced from the
B > ZRLA AR Z%EE}H%%EE%EH% R disclosure, aggregate figures are disclosed in this section.
SRS SREEABRTEAETE For the purpose of disclosure, Senior Management and Key Personnel are
FF ¢ defined as follows:
SREEY  EEIEENSSEERE Senior Management: The senior executives designated by the Board who
AR S B B TS 0 EiE T E are responsible for oversight of the firm-wide strategy or material business
= FTEAAE - BIAAE SRR E R lines, including Executive Directors, Chief Executive, Deputy Chief
FERATEE Executives, Chief Risk Officer and Chief Financial Officer.
FEAE - EAER TR R E AR Key Personnel: The employees whose individual business activities involve
¥ WRlGREAHE AL i@ A the assumption of material risk which may have significant impact on risk
WESHEA ER - EARE > s EF| exposure, or whose individual responsibilities are directly and materially
HHEBEN NS SRR R linked to the risk management, or those who have direct influence to the
KHTERPILEERTE ~ SRl U LELKEE » L profit, including General Managers of material business lines, General
TR TS R A R AL A Manager of Financial Markets Department, as well as the General Managers
ZFHEA - - of risk control functions.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited (“the Bank”) and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”) set out on pages 37 to 183, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2020, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2020 and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Impairment allowances of advances to customers

Refer to notes 2.14, 4.1, 11 and 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

The Group’s advances to customers as at 31 December 2020
amounted to HK$77,780,646,000 , net of total expected credit
losses (“ECL”) of HK$763,790,000. 33% of the Group’s
advances to customers related to exposures in Mainland
China.

Impairment allowances of advances to customers across the
banking industry continues to be an area of concern and
elevated focus due to the uncertain global economic outlook,
including the adverse impact from China — United States
tensions and the COVID-19 pandemic.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the impairment allowances on

advances to customers measured at amortised cost included

the following:

— understanding and assessing the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of key internal controls on
financial reporting over the approval, recording and
monitoring and restructuring of loans measured at
amortised cost, the credit grading process, the ECL model
enhancement , approval, monitoring, governance and
validation process, and the measurement of impairment
allowances;

—  evaluating the accuracy of the classification of advances
to customers. We obtained information on how
management applied the classification requirements of
the financial instruments standard and the classification
results. We assessed, on a sample basis, the contractual
cash flow characteristics of advances to customers and
relevant documents in relation to the business model;
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Impairment allowances of advances to customers (continued)

Refer to notes 2.14, 4.1, 11 and 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter (continued)

The COVID-19 pandemic has led to additional challenges in
assessing impairment provisions. The relief measures such
as moratoriums on repayment of loan principals have
increased the difficulty in identifying those loans which may
have significant increase in credit risk and impaired loans.
Past historical experience on repayment may therefore be
less representative of the borrowers’ financial conditions and
therefore more judgement is required.

ECL may be materially misstated if the classification and
measurement framework for financial instruments is not
properly adopted. Therefore, the determination of impairment
allowances of advances to customers is subject to the
accuracy of the classifications of the Group’s advances to
customers.

The Group has developed its own model for measuring
impairment allowances of financial assets including advances
to customers.

Loan exposures that are not already credit-impaired are
classified as stage 1 on origination and a 12-month ECL
provision is recognised. Loan exposures will transfer to stage
2 if there has been a significant increase in credit risk
compared to origination. Loan exposures are classified as
stage 3 if they become credit-impaired. A lifetime ECL
provision is recognised for loans classified as stage 2 and
stage 3.

ECL may be materially misstated if the exposures with a
significant increase in credit risk are not properly identified,
leading to inaccurate recognition of ECL.

How the matter was addressed in our audit (continued)

33

involving specialists in assessing the reliability of the ECL
model used by management in determining impairment
allowances, including assessing the appropriateness of
the key parameters and assumptions in the expected
credit loss model, the identification of loss stages,
probability of default, loss given default, exposure at
default, discount rate, adjustments for forward-looking
information and other management adjustments;

assessing the completeness and accuracy of data used
for the key parameters in the expected credit loss model,
by comparing individual loan information, on a sample
basis, with the underlying agreements and other related
documentation to assess the accuracy of the loan
information in the expected credit loss model. For key
parameters derived from external data, we selected
samples to inspect the accuracy of such data by
comparing them with publicly available sources;

for key parameters involving judgement, critically
assessing input parameters by seeking evidence from
external sources and comparing it to the Group’s internal
records including historical loss experience and type of
collateral. As part of these procedures, we challenged
management’s revisions, if any, to estimates and input
parameters compared with the estimates and input
parameters and considered the consistency of judgement.
We compared the economic factors used in the models
with market information to assess whether they were
aligned with market and economic development;

for key parameters used in the expected credit loss model
which were derived from system-generated internal data,
assessing the accuracy of input data by comparing the
input data with original documents on a sample basis.
We involved our information technology specialists in
assessing the information systems controls critical to the
credit grading process, such as the compilation of the
overdue reports for advances to customers. We also
assessed the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of relevant automated application controls
within these systems, as well as the key internal controls
over these underlying systems, including controls over
access to these systems and controls over data and
change management;

for selected samples of advances to customers that are
credit-impaired, evaluating management’s assessment of
the value of any collateral held by comparison with
available market information. We also evaluated the
timing and means of realisation of collateral, evaluated the
forecast cash flows, challenged the viability of the Group’s
recovery plans and evaluated other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contract terms;
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Impairment allowances of advances to customers (continued)

Refer to notes 2.14, 4.1, 11 and 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter (continued)

The determination of impairment allowances using the
expected credit loss model is subject to a number of key
parameters and assumptions, including the identification of
loss stages, estimates of probability of default, loss given
default, exposures at default and discount rate, adjustments
for forward-looking information and other adjustment factors.
Management judgment is involved in the selection of those
parameters and the application of the assumptions.

In particular, the determination of the impairment allowances
is heavily dependent on the external macro environment and
the Group’s internal credit risk management strategy. The
expected credit losses are derived from estimates including
the historical losses, internal and external credit grading and
other adjustment factors.

Management also exercises judgement in determining the
quantum of loss given default based on a range of factors.
These include available remedies for recovery, the financial
situation of the borrower, the recoverable amount of collateral,
the seniority of the claim and the existence and
cooperativeness of other creditors. Management refers to
valuation reports issued by qualified third party valuers and
considers the influence of various factors including the market
price, location and use when assessing the value of property
held as collateral. The enforceability, timing and means of
realisation of collateral can also have an impact on the
recoverable amount of collateral and, therefore, the amount
of impairment allowances as at the end of the reporting
period.

We identified the impairment allowances of advances to
customers measured at amortised cost as a key audit matter
because of the complexity of the inherent uncertainty and
management judgment involved and because of its
significance to the financial results and capital of the Group.

Assessment of the fair value of financial instruments

How the matter was addressed in our audit (continued)

— in respect of identifying exposures with a significant
increase in credit risk, evaluating the validity of
management’s assessment on whether the credit risk of
the loan has, or has not, increased significantly since
initial recognition and whether the loan is credit-impaired
by selecting samples for which we checked loan overdue
information, made enquiries of the credit managers about
the borrowers’ business operations, checked borrowers’
financial information and researched market information
about borrowers’ businesses;

— in respect of assessing the accuracy of ECL calculation,
recalculating, on a sample basis, the amount of
impairment allowance for 12-month and life-time credit
losses using the Bank’s expected credit loss model based
on the above parameters and assumptions and
comparing to the results from the Group;

— assessing the appropriateness of material manual
adjustments and overlays, if any, on ECL model outputs;
and

— evaluating whether the presentation and disclosures on
impairment allowances of advances to customers
measured at amortised cost and the relevant disclosures
meet the requirements in the prevailing accounting
standards.

Refer to notes 2.12, 5.1, 21 and 23 and to the consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

Financial instruments carried at fair value account form a
significant portion of the Group’s asset. As at 31 December
2020 the fair value of the Group’s these financial instruments
was HK$49,606,635,000 of which HK$2,064,144,000,
HK$47,521,637,000 and HK$20,854,000 were classified as
level 1, 2 and 3 financial instruments respectively.

The valuation of the Group’s financial instruments, which are
stated at their fair values, is based on a combination of market
data and valuation models which often require a considerable
number of inputs. Many of these inputs are obtained from
readily available data for liquid markets. Where such
observable data is not readily available, as in the case of level
3 financial instruments, estimates need to be developed which
can involve significant management judgement.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the fair value of financial

instruments included the following:

— assessing the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over the processing
of transactions in relation to financial instruments and the
valuation and independent price verification for financial
instruments;

— assessing the fair values of level 1 and certain level 2
financial instruments, on a sample basis, by comparing
the fair values applied by the Group with publicly available
market data;
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Assessment of the fair value of financial instruments (continued)

Refer to notes 2.12, 5.1, 21 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter (continued) How the matter was addressed in our audit (continued)
The Group has developed its own models to value certain —  evaluating the methodology adopted by management and
level 2 and 3 financial instruments, which involves significant assessing the reasonableness of the inputs and
management judgement. assumptions used by management in the valuations;
During the year, the tightened market liquidity and increased —  engaging our internal valuation specialists to perform, on
market volatility resulted in higher estimation uncertainty in a sample basis, independent valuations of certain level 2
management’s assessment of the marketability and valuation financial instruments and comparing these valuations with
of financial instruments held. the Group’s valuations. Our independent valuations

included developing models, obtaining inputs
independently and verifying the inputs obtained
independently; and

We identified assessment of the fair value of financial — assessing whether the disclosures in the consolidated
instruments as a key audit matter because of the degree of financial statements appropriately reflected the Group’s
complexity involved in valuing certain financial instruments exposure to financial instrument valuation risk with
and because of the degree of judgement exercised by reference to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
management in developing its own models and in determining standards.

the inputs used in the valuation models.

Information other than the consolidated financial statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Fong Hoi Wan.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

26 April 2021
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GraliissR Consolidated Income Statement
FaE
#2212 H 31 HilFE For the year ended 31 December Notes 2020 2019
BT ARTIT
HK$°000 HK$000
FEUA Interest income 3,845,995 4,208,147
DA S AT R AR WA Interest income calculated using the effective
interest method 3,816,961 4,192,248
HAthFIRUA Other interest income 29,034 15,899
FIESZH Interest expense (2,133,677) (2,189,574)
BFEULA Net interest income 6 1,712,318 2,018,573
AR5 B A a U A Fee and commission income 834,964 667,254
58 RS Fee and commission expense (31,541) (24,256)
YRR E R ASWA Net fee and commission income 7 803,423 642,998
FAIEME (BBtE) s Net trading (loss) / gain 8 (44,582) 25,941
FUE B LA EE LEt AR 2 Net (loss) / gain on financial instruments
SR TEF (FE) e designated at fair value through profit or loss (6,319) 7,307
Hfh S RIEE 2 R Es Net gain on other financial assets 9 312,269 69,489
HAr L&A Other operating income 10 9,240 12,315
R EZEFER SR BULA Net operating income before impairment
allowances 2,786,349 2,776,623
JEAE R R Net charge of impairment allowances 11 (638,353) (345,345)
TRRBULA Net operating income 2,147,996 2,431,278
KT Operating expenses 12 (1,120,223) (944,910)
A=yl Operating profit 1,027,773 1,486,368
BN EREE (B8 Net (loss) / gain from fair value adjustments on
yaien investment properties 13 (7,330) 4,846
HE EEYE - B8 R Net (loss) / gain from disposal / revaluation of
F (R s properties, plant and equipment 14 (247) 2,723
ERFEETRSF] Profit before taxation 1,020,196 1,493,937
FIE Taxation 15 (176,936) (231,369)
SERERSH] Profit for the year 843,260 1,262,568

5 43 £ 183 H s @A #%#E  The notes on pages 43 to 183 are an integral part of these financial statements.
FZHET
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

fst:
For the year ended 31 December Notes 2020 2019
AETT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
Profit for the year 843,260 1,262,568
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to income statement:
Premises:
Revaluation of premises 25 (58,186) 27,006
Deferred tax 29 11,068 (1,853)
(47,118) 25,153
Equity instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income:
Change in fair value 23 (6,329) 15,108
(53,447) 40,261
Iltems that may be reclassified subsequently to
income statement:
Debt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income:
Change in fair value 23 (159,925) 305,470
Release upon disposal reclassified to
income statement 9 (306,638) (69,778)
Change in impairment allowances charged
to income statement 350,957 12,116
Deferred tax 29 30,471 (45,347)
(85,135) 202,461
Currency translation difference 210,168 (56,687)
125,033 145,774
Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax 71,586 186,035
Total comprehensive income for the year 914,846 1,448,603
Total comprehensive income attributable
to:
Equity holders of the Bank 914,846 1,448,603

The notes on pages 43 to 183 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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EEBIRRER Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
B
W12H31H As at 31 December Notes 2020 2019
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
HE ASSETS
JEE 17 B < B AT TR 1T R oAt < @ Cash and balances with banks and other
HEVSEER financial institutions 19 22,971,832 18,235,988
ST R EM R — 2+ = Placements with banks and other
&l 5 N 2 E I financial institutions maturing between
one and twelve months 20 7,440,298 4,819,212
TSR TR Derivative financial instruments 21 140,505 122,133
BRE R E B Advances to customers and trade bills 22 78,340,141 76,986,891
A Investment in securities 23 50,817,131 46,908,420
TeEYZE Investment properties 24 153,620 237,150
LUE B & i Properties, plant and equipment 25 2,044,562 2,021,072
JEUTRIR & Current tax assets 21,489 -
IRIERIE A Deferred tax assets 29 23,499 640
HAth &7 Other assets 26 1,561,296 523,275
HFEREE Total assets 163,514,373 149,854,781
af LIABILITIES
PRAT R EcAth RS A7 R Deposits and balances from banks and
“heR other financial institutions 20,567,635 17,747,463
TSR T E Derivative financial instruments 21 75,396 40,361
& FTK Deposits from customers 27 122,573,031 116,291,434
Ho AR R A Other accounts and provisions 28 2,224,695 1,273,083
JEN I E Current tax liabilities 42,013 195,776
PRAERTIH & {5 Deferred tax liabilities 29 137,303 183,675
B (EAEEH Total liabilities 145,620,073 135,731,792
[-C.:S EQUITY
R Share capital 30 6,577,871 3,245,980
el Reserves 9,378,717 8,939,297
A TR AR A G A Capital and reserves attributable to the
equity holders of the Bank 15,956,588 12,185,277
HYNEART R Additional equity instruments 31 1,937,712 1,937,712
B Total equity 17,894,300 14,122,989
BR AL Total liabilities and equity 163,514,373 149,854,781

% 43 £ 183 HZ B AN 15
RS -

MEHEGH 2021 424 7 26 HiE
HZAEN LT A EREEE

(=] L9
HE FFE

The notes on pages 43 to 183 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Approved by the Board of Directors on 26 April 2021 and signed on behalf of the Board by:

LYU Yaoming
Director

ZHENG Wei
Director
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% 43 & 183 H 2 IffsEE A B S E The notes on pages 43 to 183 are an integral part of these financial statements.

ZEHRER ST -

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BRI AR TR
Attributable to equity holders of the Bank
Lt
Reserves
BEEM  AREE
1 &N =i 2 EERMHE° BEEHE 9EEA 5t BINEATE B
Premises Additional
Share revaluation Fair value Regulatory Translation Retained equity Total
Capital reserve' reserve? reserve® reserve* earnings Total _instruments equity
BT BETT BBt BETtt  BETT BT BETT BETT  BETT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
At 1 January 2020 3,245,980 1,249,885 588 519,987  (108,991) 7,277,828 12,185,277 1,937,712 14,122,989
Profit for the year - - - - - 843,260 843,260 - 843,260
Other comprehensive
income:
Premises - (47,118) - - - - (47,118) - (47,118)
Equity instruments
at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income - - (6,329) - - - (6,329) - (6,329)
Debt instruments
at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income - - (85,135) - - - (85,135) - (85,135)
Currency translation
difference - - - - 210,168 - 210,168 - 210,168
Total comprehensive
income - (47,118) (91,464) - 210,168 843,260 914,846 - 914,846
Issuance of ordinary
shares 3,331,891 - - - - - 3,331,891 - 3,331,891
Transfer to retained
earnings - - - (385,262) - 385,262 - - -
Dividends - - - - - (373,650)  (373,650) - (373,650)
Distribution to the
holders of the
additional equity
instruments - - - - - (101,776) (101,776) - (101,776)
At 31 December 2020 6,577,871 1,202,767 (90,876) 134,725 101,177 8,030,924 15,956,588 1,937,712 17,894,300
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SESTEZSEEIR ()  Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

SR AR T
Attributable to equity holders of the Bank
fitth
Reserves
fRREEEM  AFHE
[N bl B BEEREG S RS WERF Mt HHNEATH HAREE
Premises Additional
Share revaluation Fairvalue Regulatory Translation Retained equity Total
capital reserve' reserve? reserve® reserve*  earnings Total _ instruments equity
BT BN BWTOT ETOT BNTT BETOT BT AT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
7201941 H1H At1January 2019 1,772,988 1,224,732  (218,350) 414,377 (52,304) 6,524,041 9,665,484 1,937,712 11,603,196
A Profit for the year - - - - - 1,262,568 1,262,568 - 1,262,568
HoAth TS - Other comprehensive
income:
I Premises - 25,153 - - - - 25,153 - 25,153
DIASPE /B2 A Equity instruments
Hfth 225 >~ at fair value
s RERS T B through other
comprehensive
income - - 15,108 - - - 15,108 - 15,108
DUAFE#(EET A Debtinstruments
HAr WU zE > at fair value
BHBTH through other
comprehensive
income - - 202,461 - - - 202,461 - 202,461
BB Currency translation
difference - - - - (56,687) - (56,687) - (56,687)
ERrilies s Total comprehensive
income - 25,153 217,569 - (56,687) 1,262,568 1,448,603 - 1,448,603
EEdan-piilita Issuance of ordinary
shares 1,472,992 - - - - - 1,472,992 - 1,472,992
HEEE ] TR Transfer from retained
earnings - - - 105,610 - (105,610) - - -
2358 Dividends - - - - - (298,920)  (298,920) - (298,920)
SZAVEESNEAR T BF; Distribution to the
BEEFA holders of the
additional equity
instruments - - - - - (102,882) (102,882) - (102,882)
R E LA FE%{EL Release upon
= A H A4 mEUgzs  disposal of equity
L REZS T E > instruments at fair
g 5 value through other
comprehensive
income® - - 1,369 - - (1,369) - - -
2019412 H 31 H At 31 December 2019  3,245980 1,249,885 588 519,987  (108,991) 7,277,828 12,185,277 1,937,712 14,122,989

1 BEEMGEEETREIERE 1. Premises revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting

B EATRAREEECR -
2. AFEERMFEOERALATESE

policies adopted for the revaluation of premises.

fEat AR 2 s ag o B 2258 % comprehensive income securities held until the securities are derecognised.

B B RESDEY Bt A TR EEEF
2 o

2. Fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of fair value through other

3. PREFEMHBHMSAENE 9 9B 3. 1n accordance with the requirements of the HKMA, the amounts are set aside for general banking
o LEUHT SRR (Y K> P %
SERHUBAE BT - 1288 R 2R risks, including future losses or other unforeseeable risks, in addition to the loan impairment

B E R ERE R ER
T—feEz H (RfERARK K
HAA TR -

allowances recognised under Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard (“‘HKFRS”) 9.

4. BRIV R AR 4. Translation reserve has been set up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies

HrEFTR &R -

adopted for foreign currency translation.

5. REDAFEE( bt AR 2T 5. The release upon disposal of equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income
2= LA 4 =] AZY L . .
w2 e (e TEUR R AE A was made because the investment was no longer to be held for strategic purpose.

LA HmEA -
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HERERER Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
B
BZ2128 31 QIEEE For the year ended 31 December Notes 2020 2019
AT HETT
HK$°000 HK$°000
WBEB S RE Cash flows from operating activities
[T E IR 42 /R A Operating cash inflow before taxation 32(a) 7,400,368 1,722,883
T E RS Hong Kong profits tax paid (276,272) (40,342)
A BINFIEFR Overseas profits tax paid (100,281) (66,027)
RBEB T EHERATREE Net cash inflow from operating activities 7,023,815 1,616,514
REXBIHESRE Cash flows from investing activities
W AWZE ~ 25 Bkt Purchase of properties, plant and
equipment 25 (46,246) (43,218)
REEE L HESR I Net cash outflow from investing activities (46,246) (43,218)
RMEEBZHESRE Cash flows from financing activities
S E S 2 EAT D Capital element of lease rentals paid (80,378) (66,296)
XTS5 RS Interest element of lease rentals paid (8,360) (5,207)
A SN Issue of ordinary share capital 30 3,331,891 1,472,992
ST AR TR R REARE S Final dividend paid to the equity holders of
the Bank 16 (373,650) (298,920)
TEEINEAR T EFFA &R Distribution to the holders of the additional
equity instruments 16 (101,776) (102,882)
EEBEEHEMAIRE Net cash inflow from financing activities 2,767,727 999,687
4 R EIR ST H i Increase in cash and cash equivalents 9,745,296 2,572,983
N1 B 1 HZ2RS EEERSTEH Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 21,189,799 18,688,142
PEREFHRIN S N EEREIEHA  Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and
B cash equivalents 347,779 (71,326)
12 A 31 HZ2H& K EFEHSIEE Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 32(b) 31,282,874 21,189,799

55 43 % 183 HZ Itk @A
R AR -

The notes on pages 43 to 183 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SEE A SRR Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. TEHEER 1. Principal activities
AEEF R ERMIRTT AR 2 €/l The Group is principally engaged in the provision of banking and related financial
kA% - services.

KITE—FRNEBRILNARMERE A The Bank is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The address of
Ho N EE I 2 E IR T 78 its registered office is No.78 Des Vouex Road Central, Hong Kong.
gk .

2. TESTECR 2. Significant accounting policies
AR REAGEMBHFTZ FEZEE The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated
FEEHIATT - financial statements are set out below.

FREFAIEEEIN  ZEGETBEREH 23 These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless

FEFHNFRB SR WA SRS v otherwise stated.

21 EREE

REE AR IRE &
GBI A 2 A
WA AR (4R
BLEFTA @ 2 B A S s
A TG SRR e Bt
FRIGFERD WAFEEE (AF
B ZHE -

IERE TS R TR R LA A4
B MERRE Al DA HES IR Z 56 77
BE -~ DI PESE LT ARG Z &
RN R e A E (RN ER
THE) ~ DUAHESIRZ H 28 - B
D PEVIR Z BV R LA R
BREE A (EATIRR RETHT B e Rt iRk{E
BRIRIIRZ FEIF N -

IR S 1 R 1 9
HI > TR TEA G3HE -
PRI AR A 2 B
ST LTI - 1% i
FIBT A B ~ SO SR
LB IR E 2 BRRAE
B S -

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(HKFRSSs), which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (HKASs)
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (HKICPA), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the fair value revaluation of
investment in securities at fair value through other comprehensive income,
financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative financial
instruments) at fair value through profit or loss, precious metals at fair value,
investment properties which are carried at fair value and premises which are
carried at fair value or revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the
management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.
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2. TEEFTBER (#)

21 EREE (J)

(a) EF 20205 1 A 1 HERBNE

FHERERHIE AR R A R 5T

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Standards and amendments issued that are already mandatorily effective
for accounting periods beginning on 1 January 2020

%A/ 1B5] & REARE A 2R
Applicable for
financial years

Standards / Amendments Content beginning on / after

ARG RS 39t (K EBZER 20201 H1H

DT)
HKFRS 3 (Amendment)

SEEETEAIE 1B 8 3
(i)
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
(Amendment)

FISEAELCE © HBE RS
RIS 9 5% ~ EAEEstEAIE 39
S R B T RIS 7 5%
ZfE3T

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform: Amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 7

Definition of a business

HARZERE

Definition of material
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SEEMBREmENEE () Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)
2. FTESSEER (8) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
21 EEERE (8 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(a) BF 2020 4 1 A 1 HiEF®RIE (a) Standards and amendments issued that are already mandatorily effective
SR E AR B REET for accounting periods beginning on 1 January 2020 (continued)
€:-))
BB EAH B 2 BRI GH& 2E R Further information about those HKFRSs that are applicable to the Group is
BTN - as follows:
« FRECEN S E—IEH T B « Interest rate benchmark reform is the market-wide initiative to replace or
DA — e i R SR A o AR ] reform interbank offered rates (IBORs”) with alternatively risk-free interest
LTRSS o BT rates (“RFRs”). The Group has closely monitored the market progress on

the transition of IBORs to RFRs. The adoption of this amendment will not

EAEETU A S AEEHE AN . . .
BT AR BT E have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

BTG AT MR -

o REE ARSI HEE - The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that has not
SR JE FH A3 R » yet effective for the current accounting period.
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e BRI (8)

2. TEEFTBER (#)

21 EREE (J)

(b) EMEMRH R ER R AR A S
W[t 2020 FEERAIHRANZ R R BFT

/I BET

Standards / Amendments

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2020

pass

Content

REARE A 2
Applicable for
financial years
beginning on/after

(EBIMGHEEAT 5 95%
(EAEGEHEAT) 5 39 5%
(EBMGHREREA) 57 5%
~ (EBUB SR 5B 4

Sk (EAM GRS 6
16 5t f&3T

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16

(EBVHHRSE) 5355
(E5)
Amendments to HKFRS 3

(BT 516 Y 53]
Amendments to HKAS 16

(EagatEll) 537 S &
Amendments to HKAS 37

MRS A 2018 E
2020 AFHAEIF AT

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

(EBEGETEEAD 5 152887
Amendments to HKAS 1

AR AR5 ST EHE
3 2 4 T AR AR AL
- AR SRAR% SR
KT B R
FIEARE -

HAEAEE — 55 PR EL

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2

5 RIS HEZE
Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Y ~ WS Bkt © BEE RVRRT Z FriSRiH

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended
Use

BRI EE — EEIRA

Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

HFEE S REIEIERE)
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

20211 H1H

1 January 2021

202241 H1H
1 January 2022
20221 H1H
1 January 2022
20221 H1H

1 January 2022

20221 H1H
1 January 2022

2023441 H1H
1 January 2023

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these
amendments is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far the adoption of
them is unlikely to have a significant impact to the consolidated financial statements.
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22 SAEMBHRR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation

GrE B IR B A SRAT R H
JEAEIRE 12 F 31 DAV S -

EAE

RERE W BB EIE AT R E A I
JEAFEESEMERZ 12 5 31 H
LRI TS ERR - BTES  =] Ry A LR Fr i
2 FTHE - AR SR AR A TR
|~ SBALTE R A 510 M A P L S R LA
ST - AR A AR L
HEHEA PERIRE - AP R T AR
i > AEE N EIT AN (AL
B R HA N PR ) -

(ARSI g (el S VYR e
PERIRER A H LR SR S B ek st
F o AR I B IR - SR 2 ]
FISSER > 505 Rt B AR R SRR 2
FEI5C 2 i AR R T BRI BHdi -
ERAR T AR - R B 5T
FEAERIREHUG RN FREHRS  (H 2
JEIRBAARA B RES ©

FRERERF T BT AR I
R B R X 5 T AR - Bl
R B ARG S 2R PN PR R AR
FEZRAY BB DU W HAR R R 2y 26
{E SR P R R T S

BRSBTS A ] P
Rt BRI A T Z A s AR
TTIFTEE 2R Y B tiEss Ry ifas - (EIAETR
KPR AE B IR Z AT I A F 2
REEAZ N ERERD - ISR R
At — A E (5 2.8) BN
SPEAE - 2 (A FEpA IR
—HREAE R EBERERE  EEEA
BRI B TR AR B B T 2

FEARLTHIA SRR I A IR
T AR B BR AR TR E R 2% (I &
2.15) g -

The consolidated financial statements include the financial information of the
Bank and all of its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December.

Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the
Bank and all its subsidiaries made up to 31st December each year.
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an
entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intragroup transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments are
made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset (Note 2.8)
or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate and joint venture, and is offset against the gain or loss on the loss
of control of that subsidiary.

In the Bank’s statement of financial position, its investments in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less any impairment losses, if any (Note 2.15).
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EEMBEHENE (8) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)
2. FEEIBER (&) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.3 S 2.3 Segmental reporting

SRR ACS A 2 TR The operating result of segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
N EpE A T —5 > REEEHE = internal reporting provided to the Group’s senior management, which is the
Th A [ KR B S B LR & chief operating decision maker of the Group, that allocates resources and
EE/’F\ S R %J,Eﬂ,ﬁafﬁuﬁ assesses the performance of operating segments. Income and expenses

directly associated with each segment are included in determining operating
segment performance.

i« FEROE RIS BRI g E
FEELE oy JE E AR B AU A R 52

o
2.4 HNEERE 2.4 Foreign currency translation

zj:%%ﬂ}%ﬁ’gﬁﬁiiﬁfﬁﬁﬁrgg Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are

P S A SETA F E AR IR R measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which

et ( TThEEENRE ) o ALES the entity operates (the functional currency). The consolidated financial

MBS F DENRTR o BIASRIT Y statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Bank’s functional

THEE R, BFI & o and presentation currency.

SNeAE DI AT B e E AT EIE E Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using

ZAGE S H &Y A B R B ThAE the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or exchange rates

Bl SNEEAE B DA 5 H 7 ERGEE at the end of the reporting period for items that are re-measured. Foreign

ﬁﬁ%[iﬁﬁq[ﬁf 250 UK DA NES exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency

Iy & & E b A EmHsH45E transactions using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the

E{E@[?@asszﬁ@ﬁﬁ I E BN transactions and monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
ULZE TSRS M o 2 T U 25 P currencies translated at the exchange rate at the end of the reporting period

FEVE By R B G SRS - are recognised directly in the income statement, except when deferred in other

comprehensive income as qualifying net investment hedges.

NS R B ) 7 B — S U S T T Foreign currency differences arising on translation are generally recognised in

0w DUNIEH EA RSN E profit or loss. However, foreign currency differences arising from the translation

M7 B e U SR - of the following items are recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI):

o« EUSEEE DL AN SRS A Hfih 4 - equity investments in respect of which an election has been made to present
USRS subsequent changes in fair value in OCI;

o 35 DU H R s SN 2 - a financial liability designated as a hedge of the net investment in a foreign
KR Enemais s & operation to the extent that the hedge is effective; and

- FATH ARy EE - N - qualifying cash flow hedges to the extent that the hedge is effective.
AR -
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2.4

2.5

SNERE (8D

AR R U PEERE
Bty A b B A bR 53 A2 A ) S
TR 2 5 Pl b 3825 4+ e e 2 s 72 e
R DA B R A6 -
oA B M MR e B (RIS
AR U # 2 SN 5 RSN
LA EESIH MY - TR C B R

ER A FHEEZIEH 2R
FUTRAY R 7 s 25 P 2 2R R 2= 2R A I

Hopth A= s ATHERS > S AE R R 2R
B RET -

AT A AR Y 9 DU R ThRE
F 3% - HERET R IR M LT T
FIRE RN
HE R AR g4
T HERIATT
© WA RSP RIAE § R

« FTAE E4 2 S A A i At
s S HE T2 B IRE
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HHZU

GG TSRS R BTN 1
T ~ (SR LA SE Ry
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FHIE B BRSSO IEN—E 5
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SHEBETRE R - A ERERT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

24

25

Foreign currency translation (continued)

Exchange differences relating to investments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL) and derivative financial instruments are included in gains less losses
from trading securities or financial instruments at fair value through profit or
loss. All other exchange differences relating to monetary items are presented
as gains less losses from foreign exchange and foreign exchange products in
the income statement. Differences arising on translation of equity investments
which an election has been made to present subsequent changes in fair value
in other comprehensive income are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in fair value reserve.

The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have a functional
currency different from Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong
dollars as follows:

- assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the end of the
reporting period;

+ income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates; and

- all resulting exchange differences are recognised in the currency
translation reserve in equity through other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign entities, borrowings and other currency instruments
designated as hedges of such investments are taken to other comprehensive
income and are accumulated separately in equity in the translation reserve.
When a foreign entity is disposed, such exchange differences are reclassified
from equity to the income statement, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date the derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Fair
values are obtained from quoted market prices in active markets, including
recent market transactions, and through the use of valuation techniques,
including discounted cash flow models and option pricing models, as
appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and
as liabilities when fair value is negative.

Derivatives are categorised as held for trading and changes in their fair value
are recognised immediately in the income statement unless they are
designated as hedges and are effective hedging instruments, then they are
subject to measurement under the hedge accounting requirements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

The Group documents at inception the relationship between hedging
instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and
strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group also
documents its assessment, both at the hedge inception and on an ongoing
basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are
highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged
items. These criteria should be met before a hedge can be qualified to be
accounted for under hedge accounting.

Net investment hedge

A gain or loss on the effective portion of the hedging instrument is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity; a gain or loss on
the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income statement.
Accumulated gains and losses previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to the income statement upon disposal of the foreign
operation as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

2.6 Offsetting financial instruments

2.7

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Interest income and expense and fee and commission income and
expense

(1) Interest income and expense
Effective interest rate

Interest income and expense for all interest-bearing financial instruments are
recognised in the income statement on an accruals basis using the effective
interest method.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument
to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or the amortised cost of the
financial liability.

When calculating the effective interest rate for financial instruments other than
credit-impaired assets, the Group estimates future cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument but not expected credit losses.
For financial assets that were purchased or originated credit-impaired on initial
recognition, a credit-adjusted effective interest rate is calculated using
estimated future cash flows including expected credit losses (i.e. no expected
credit loss provision is required at initial recognition).

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes transaction costs and fees
and points paid or received that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate. The transaction costs include incremental costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial asset or financial liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.7 Interest income and expense and fee and commission income and
expense (continued)

(1) Interest income and expense (continued)
Amortised cost and gross carrying amount

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at
which the financial asset or financial liability is measured on initial recognition
minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation
using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial
amount and the maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any
expected credit loss allowance.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a
financial asset before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance.

Calculation of interest income and expense

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied
to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-
impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability.

However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to
initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer
credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross
basis.

For financial assets that were purchased or originated credit-impaired on initial
recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the credit-adjusted
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the asset. The calculation of
interest income does not revert to a gross basis, even if the credit risk of the
asset improves.

For information on when financial assets are credit-impaired, please refer to
Note 2.14.

(2) Fee and commission income and expense

Fee and commission income and expense that are not an integral part of the
effective yield are recognised on an accrual basis ratably over the period when
the related service is provided, such as administrative fee, asset management
fee and custody services fee. Loan syndication fees are recognised as
revenue when the related syndication arrangement has been completed and
the Group has retained no part of the loan package for itself or has retained a
part at the same effective interest rate as applicable to other participants.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8 Financial assets

(@)

@

0]

Recognition and initial measurement

Financial assets are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments. Regular way purchases and sales
of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the assets. A financial asset is measured
initially at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or
issue.

Classification

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 and classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

- fair value through profit and loss;
- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI); or

+ amortised cost.
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets depend on:

+ the Group’s business model for managing the asset; and
« the cash flow characteristics of the assets.

Debt instruments

Debt instruments held by the Group are classified into one of the following
measurement categories:

« amortised cost, if the investment is held for the collection of contractual
cash flows which represent solely payments of principal and interest.
Interest income from the investment is calculated using the effective
interest method.

« FVOCI, if the contractual cash flows of the investment comprise solely
payments of principal and interest and the investment is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by both the collection of
contractual cash flows and sale. Changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income, except for the profit or loss of expected
credit losses, interest income (calculated using the effective interest
method) and foreign exchange gains and losses.

« FVTPL if the assets do not meet the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI. Changes in the fair value of the investment
(including interest) are recognised in profit or loss.
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Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of equity from
the issuer's perspective; that is, instruments that do not contain a
contractual obligation to pay and that evidence a residual interest in the
issuer's net assets.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss, except where the Group’s management has
elected, at initial recognition, to irrevocably designate an equity
investment at FVOCI. The Group’s policy is to designate equity
investments as FVOCI when those investments that are not held for
trading. When this election is used, fair value gains and losses are
recognised in OCI and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss,
including on disposal. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.
Dividends, when representing a return on such investments, continue to
be recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Group’s right to
receive payments is established.

Gains and losses on equity investments at FVTPL are included in the
“Net trading (loss) / gain” line in the income statement.

(iii) Business model assessment

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in
which an asset is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the
way the business is managed and information is provided to
management. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of
those policies in practice. In particular, whether management’s strategy
focuses on earning contractual interest revenue, maintaining a
particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial
assets to the duration of the liabilities that are funding those assets or
realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

+ how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the
Group’s management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the
financial assets held within that business model) and how those risks
are managed;

« how managers of the business are compensated - e.g. whether
compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or the
contractual cash flows collected; and

« the frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons
for such sales and its expectations about future sales activity. However,
information about sales activity is not considered in isolation, but as
part of an overall assessment of how the Group’s stated objective for
managing the financial assets is achieved and how cash flows are
realised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8 Financial assets (continued)

(2) Classification (continued)

(iv) Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of

~

principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, “principal” is defined as the fair
value of the financial asset on initial recognition. “Interest” is defined as
consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular
period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity
risk and administrative costs), as well as profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of
principal and interest, the Group considers the contractual terms of the
instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains
a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual
cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making the
assessment, the Group considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash
flows;

« leverage features;

- prepayment and extension terms;

- terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows from specified assets
(e.g. non-recourse asset arrangements); and

- features that modify consideration of the time value of money, e.g.
periodical reset of interest rates.

The Group holds a portfolio of long-term fixed rate loans for which the
Group has the option to propose to revise the interest rate at periodic
reset dates. These reset rights are limited to the market rate at the time
of revision. The borrowers have an option to either accept the revised
rate or repay the loan at par without penalty. The Group has determined
that the contractual cash flows of these loans are solely payments of
principal and interest because the option varies the interest rate in a way
that is consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic
lending risks and costs associated with the principal amount outstanding.

Reclassification
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial

recognition, except in the period after the Group changes its business
model for managing financial assets.
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The Group classifies its financial liabilities, other than financial guarantees
and loan commitments, as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.

The Group has designated certain financial liabilities as at FVTPL in either of
the following circumstances:

+ the liabilities are managed, evaluated and reported internally on a fair
value basis; or

- the designation eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

2.10 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in accordance with the
terms of a contract between the holder and the debtor.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially recognised as financial liabilities
and reported under “Other accounts and provisions” in the financial
statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was given. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such guarantees are
measured at the higher of (i) the amount determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” and
(i) the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, accumulated
amortisation recognised over the life of the guarantee on a straight-line
basis. Any changes in the liability relating to financial guarantee contracts
are taken to the income statement.

2.11 Derecognition of financial instruments

(1) Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights
to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not
retain control of the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the
portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration
received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability
assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
in OCl is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

211

212

Derecognition of financial instruments (continued)
(1) Financial assets (continued)

Any cumulative gain/loss recognised in OCI in respect of equity
investment securities designated as at FVOCI is not recognised in
profit or loss on derecognition of such securities. Any interest in
transferred financial assets that qualify for derecognition that is created
or retained by the Group is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets
recognised on its statement of financial position, but retains either all
or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets or
a portion of them. In such cases, the transferred assets are not
derecognised.

In transactions in which the Group neither retains nor transfers
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of a financial
asset and it retains control over the asset, the Group continues to
recognised the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement,
determined by the extent to which it is exposed to changes in the value
of the transferred asset.

In certain transactions, the Group retains the obligation to service the
transferred financial asset for a fee. The transferred asset is
derecognised if it meets the derecognition criteria. An asset or liability
is recognised for the servicing contract if the servicing fee is more than
adequate (asset) or is less than adequate (liability) for performing the
servicing.

(2) Financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual
obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its premises and investment properties, precious
metals and certain financial instruments at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants in its principal market or the most advantageous market
accessible by the Group at the measurement date.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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EEES ARG S A TERE A If the market for assets or liabilities is not active, the Group uses valuation
EEGESHELA EEIEIIER T techniques, including the use of recent arm’s length transactions,
G E A T\ - EiEE discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and other valuation
B2 NEHEAR S WERIR SR =57 techniques commonly used by market participants, that are appropriate in
s ﬁ;ﬁif&m{gfﬁﬁu)jzﬁ_mﬁi 5 S B the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
R AE T2 e ngE (i TS - fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
A B 2 8 ﬁ%{fﬁgrj@%@g minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
HIZ 8 -
213 BE4H 2.13 Precious metals
HEBAUEES RN EMESE - B Precious metals comprise gold, silver and other precious metals. Precious
& B LE N P EEVaESI s & metals are initially recognised and subsequently re-measured at fair value.
{ﬁ EEENETTSEERRES Y Mark-to-market gains or losses on precious metals are included in net
R BETHE B ERETYF A S s trading gain / loss.
ré??ém °
2.14 EREERE 2.14 Impairment of financial assets
AEEMR L TIELLAFEE( LG A The Group recognises loss allowances for ECL on the following financial
Emiye T EATHIAE S8 L8 instruments that are not measured at FVTPL:
B
- DBRAET B SREE - A - financial assets measured at amortised cost, which are held for the
T DA E A G R B AT & 4T collection of contractual cash flows which represent solely payments of
ERAE principal and interest;
o DA EE LT AH A 2 U 2 - debt securities measured at FVOCI (recycling);
Bz (Aol s
- THEREWHERK - lease receivables;
- EBHTBIEREL - financial guarantee contracts issued;
?*Hjﬁﬁg JRIE S K - loan commitments issued; and
[E] & + contract asset.
E{mu/\qiﬁ”riﬁ’]%mﬁ 478 BFELL Other financial assets measured at fair value, including equity and debt
INAESEA R AB LS 2 By BTS2 securities measured at FVTPL, equity securities designated at FVOCI
3’% HEEEMNEES B A K M (non-recycling) and derivative financial assets, are not subject to the ECL
o 2 Befagss (CRA][E) RAT4EE assessment.
mﬁi;?ﬂﬁ I TTHITIE E1RRAYREL -
REFE DI =EEE AL EE R L2(E The Group measures loss allowances for 12-month or lifetime ECL using
H e [ E R R E R O T a 3-stage approach as follows:
FEEE R PERIERi=VS
Stage Description Impairment Loss
1 JEtTH 121 H ATHAME &8k
Performing 12-month ECL
2 JETTHERHREH » EEEER E VAR DR ERHNZ HIE EEL

Performing but with credit risk increased significantly at reporting date | jfetime ECL
since its initial recognition

3 TR EHIEANZ THIRE SRk
Non-performing Lifetime ECL

12N TEH{E EEA e T A 12-month ECL are the portion of ECL that result from default events on a

A HBNL2(E BN FrE BIEEY financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the

FFFTERHEEIRE - reporting date.
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HETEIM S Measurement of ECL
TEHIE Eiadk 2 —EE e Lnmi=x ECLs are a probability-weighted estimates of credit losses. They are
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- financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date: at the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash
flows due to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive);

- financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the
difference between the gross carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows;

- undrawn loan commitments: as the present value of the difference
between the contractual cash flows that are due to the Group if the
commitment is drawn down and the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive; and

- financial guarantee contracts: the expected payments to reimburse the
holder less any amounts that the Group expects to recover.

The criteria of “significant increase of credit risk” has taken into
consideration of two key factors:

+ The exposure has a significant deterioration of internal or external
rating as compared with the rating at the time when the exposure was
originated; and

+ The rating of the exposure falls out of the “Low-Credit Risk Threshold”
that is equivalent to the globally understood definition of “investment
grade”.

Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial

position as follows:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost: as a deduction from the
gross carrying amount of the assets;

+ loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: generally, as a
provision;

+ where a financial instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn
component, and the Group cannot identify the ECL on the loan
commitment component separately from those on the drawn
component: the Group presents a combined loss allowance for both
components. The combined amount is presented as a deduction from
the gross carrying amount of the drawn component. Any excess of the
loss allowance over the gross amount of the drawn component is
presented as a provision; and

+ debt instruments measured at FVOCI: no loss allowance is recognised
in the statement of financial position because the carrying amount of
these assets is their fair value. However, the loss allowance is
disclosed and is recognised in the fair value reserve in OCI.
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Write-off

Loans and debt securities are written off (either partially or in full) when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovering a financial asset in its
entirety or a portion thereof. This is generally the case when the Group
determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income
that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to
the write-off. This assessment is carried out at the individual asset level.

Recoveries of amounts previously written off are included in impairment
losses on financial instruments in the statement of profit or loss and OCI.

Financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities in order to comply with the Group’s procedures for recovery of
amounts due.

Non-integral financial guarantee contracts

The Group assesses whether a financial guarantee contract held is an

integral element of a financial asset that is accounted for as a component

of that instrument or is a contract that is accounted for separately. The

factors that the Group considers when making this assessment include

whether:

- the guarantee is implicitly part of the contractual terms of the debt
instrument;

+ the guarantee is required by laws and regulations that govern the
contract of the debt instrument;

« the guarantee is entered into at the same time as and in contemplation
of the debt instrument; and

- the guarantee is given by the parent of the borrower or another
company within the borrower’s group.

If the Group determines that the guarantee is an integral element of the
financial asset, then any premium payable in connection with the initial
recognition of the financial asset is treated as a transaction cost of
acquiring it. The Group considers the effect of the protection when
measuring the fair value of the debt instrument and when measuring ECL.

If the Group determines that the guarantee is not an integral element of
the debt instrument, then it recognises an asset representing any
prepayment of guarantee premium and a right to compensation for credit
losses. A prepaid premium asset is recognised only if the guaranteed
exposure neither is credit-impaired nor has undergone a significant
increase in credit risk when the guarantee is acquired. These assets are
recognised in other assets (see Note 26). The Group presents gains or
losses on a compensation right in profit or loss in the line item ‘net charge
of impairment allowances’.
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2.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets
carried at amortised cost and debt financial assets carried at FVOCI are
credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset have occurred.

FERFS R B & 2 S SRR,
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In making an assessment of whether an investment in debt is credit-
impaired, the Group considers the following factors:
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- the market’s assessment of creditworthiness as reflected in the bond

yields;

« the rating agencies’ assessments of creditworthiness;
+ the country’s ability to access the capital markets for new debt

issuance;

- the probability of debt being restructured, resulting in holders suffering

losses through voluntary or mandatory debt forgiveness;

+ the international support mechanisms in place to provide the necessary

support as the Contingent Term Facility to that country, as well as the
intention, reflected in public statements, of governments and agencies
to use those mechanisms. This includes an assessment of the depth
of those mechanisms and, irrespective of the political intent, whether
there is the capacity to fulfil the required criteria.
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Credit-impaired financial assets (continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes but not limited
to the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

+ a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

« the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the
Group would not consider otherwise;

« itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of
financial difficulties.

Aloan that has been renegotiated due to a deterioration in the borrower’s
condition is usually considered to be credit-impaired unless there is
evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual cash flows has reduced
significantly and there are no other indicators of impairment. In addition, a
loan that is overdue for 90 days or more is considered impaired.

Restructured financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated or modified or an existing
financial asset is replaced with a new one due to financial difficulties of the
borrower, then an assessment is made of whether the financial asset
should be derecognised and ECL are measured as follows:

+ If the expected restructuring will not result in derecognition of the
existing asset, then the expected cash flows arising from the modified
financial asset are included in calculating the cash shortfalls from the
existing asset.

+ If the expected restructuring will result in derecognition of the existing
asset, then the expected fair value of the new asset is treated as the
final cash flow from the existing financial asset at the time of its
derecognition. This amount is included in calculating the cash shortfalls
from the existing financial asset that are discounted from the expected
date of derecognition to the reporting date using the original effective
interest rate of the existing financial asset.
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2.15 $ B AR ERIESHEBE K 2.15 Impairment of investment in subsidiaries and non-financial assets

=l

YRS A B R o - R Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
B 2 WEm{E s s Ay Uy o] - HijEr circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
TR SR - JEE B R e RS Potential indications of impairment may include significant adverse
FH&EE RS - s 8080 AR IR changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment in
B IR BRI s S A EH NIEE & which the assets operate or whether there has been a significant or
HA B E R AE - T KIE 20 prolonged decline in value below their cost. “Significant” is evaluated
TENFERAEERE " B 2 against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the
DIAEAE R R AME >~ B HA(E ST period in which the fair value has been below its original cost.

& -

B A T (B R A L mT U (B S AEAY An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
ST HERE Ry R E IR o AU el E carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
FAS BN A G M At B is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
HEHEEARSE - BIEHRERE the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
(& » B iR/ N T Ay B Ek B B levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash
E (REEYET) BRYE - N generating units). Assets that suffered impairment are reviewed for
—AEEH > ST RENE possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

EEETEEAR A E R S O -

FEARSRITHII AR - AR E A In the Bank’s statement of financial position, impairment testing of the
B EIRAVIE S0 A % IR EE investment in a subsidiary is also required upon receiving dividend from
SEW S AEEE - SEE AR THYERIE that entity if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of that
(BT EGEM BT ENEERE entity concerned in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
AN FEEER » BT MIE TR amount of that entity in the Bank’s statement of financial position exceeds
(BRI, - the carrying amount of that entity’s net assets including goodwill in its

consolidated statement of financial position.

2.16 {F&EYIE 2.16 Investment properties
FHEBEE RIS U s Sk E A E L Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation
WEFMHE - HIIEEEE &N E or both, and that are not occupied by the companies in the Group, are
FIrfG 2 912 > 395 I{ER S Y2 - classified as investment properties. Properties leased out within Group
TAREBE RN ZYEE  PMEFTAE] companies are classified as investment properties in individual companies’
AR R E BTSN financial statements and as premises in consolidated financial statements
[EIHA &S i e P A By e - in the comparative period. Land held under operating lease is classified
EROSTHE ~ TSN EYE S H and accounted for as investment property when the rest of the definition of
fhEF > QIS yIE B EyE - B> investment property is met. The operating lease is accounted for as if it is
ST EEE BREHERE « BTy a finance lease. Lease payments were accounted for as described in Note
FHERTERZ IR 2.18 FriltgEf TarstiE 2.18.
B o
TEYZEIELI A E (BFEMERIRC 5 Investment properties are recognised initially at cost, including related
AR 5T & - KuIEHER % » 1y E Y% transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are
N HEET = - measured at fair value.
AT 915 H A B B AR SR SO A 2 1R Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only
BRI RERANEE WS ST = when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
HAAWNEL T  AEEEA S8 HEE will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
STHEF A BB EIREE . —557 - %% The item is stated at cost less impairment and is included in the carrying
%48 PR E % 2 BAYIIE » I amount of investment properties. Once the item begins to generate
BFEAREEYZERIRE AN - 5% 5 economic benefits, it is then measured at fair value. All other repairs and
YRR LM ZS » IV ESTE - &2 maintenance costs are expensed in the income statement during the
TAFTE HAMSEE R 4 EE R RN E financial period in which they are incurred.

AR & R A -
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2.16 Investment properties (continued)
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Any changes in fair value are recognised directly in the income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as
premises, and its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost
for accounting purposes. If an item of premises becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference resulting between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer is
recognised in other comprehensive income as a revaluation of premises
under HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment”. However, if a fair value
gain reverses a previous revaluation loss or impairment loss, the gain is
recognised in the income statement up to the amount previously debited.

2.17 Properties, plant and equipment

Properties are mainly branches and office premises. Premises are stated
at fair value based on periodic, at least annually, valuations by external
independent valuers less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation
is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net
amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. In the intervening
periods, the directors review the carrying amount of premises, by reference
to the open market value of similar properties, and adjustments are made
when there has been a material change.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of premises are
credited to the premises revaluation reserve through other comprehensive
income. Decreases that offset previous increases of the same individual
asset are charged against premises revaluation reserve through other
comprehensive income; all other decreases are expensed in the income
statement. Any subsequent increases are credited to the income statement
up to the amount previously debited, and then to the premises revaluation
reserve. Upon disposal of premises, the relevant portion of the premises
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is released
and transferred from the premises revaluation reserve to retained earnings.

All plant and equipment, including right-of-use assets arising from leases
over leasehold properties where the Group is not the registered owner of
the property interest and leases of underlying plant and equipment (Note
2.18), are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditures that are directly
attributable to the acquisition and installation of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in an asset's carrying amount or are
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The item is stated at
cost less impairment until it begins to generate economic benefits, then the
item is subsequently measured according to the measurement basis of its
respective assets class. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
charged to the income statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.
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Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write down the cost
or revalued amount of such assets over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

« properties over the life of government land leases

« plant and equipment 2 to 15 years

The useful lives of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, as at
the end of each reporting period.

At the end of each reporting period, both internal and external sources of
information are considered to determine whether there is any indication that
properties, plant and equipment, are impaired. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and where relevant, an
impairment loss is recognised to reduce the asset to its recoverable
amount. Such an impairment loss is recognised in the income statement
except where the asset is carried at valuation and the impairment loss does
not exceed the revaluation surplus for that same asset, in which case it is
treated as a revaluation decrease. The recoverable amount is the higher of
the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Impairment loss is
reversed through the premises revaluation reserve or the income statement
as appropriate.

Gains or losses on disposals are determined as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount, relevant taxes and
expenses. These are recognised in the income statement on the date of
disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is transferred from the revaluation
reserve to retained earnings and is not reclassified to the income
statement.

2.18 Leases

At inception nof a contract, the group assesses whether the contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

(1) As alessee

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the
lease commencement date, except for short-term leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. When
the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group
decides whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which are not capitalised
are recognised as an expense on a systematic basis over the lease
term. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, and any initial
direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-use
assets also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which
itis located, discounted to their present value, less any lease incentives
received.
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The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for
certain remeasurements of the lease liability. When a right-of-use asset
meets the definition of investment property, it is initially measured at
cost, and subsequently at fair value, in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policies.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the
lease liability and decreased by lease payment made. It is remeasured
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change
in an index or rate, a change in the estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, or as appropriate,
changes in the assessment of whether a purchase or extension option
is reasonably certain to be exercised or a termination option is
reasonably certain not to be exercised. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero.

The Group has applied judgement to determine the lease term for some
lease contracts in which it is a lessee that include renewal options. The
assessment of whether the Group is reasonably certain to exercise
such options impacts the lease term, which significantly affects the
amount of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets recognised.

(2) As alessor

As alessor, the Group leases out its investment properties as the lessor
of operating leases. Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant leases.

2.19 HEFRERFREEH 2.19 Cash and cash equivalents

MFESHRESRERN = He KERIR For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
$IE Hi5iFEARFHAH » 1A A HHAHE equivalents comprise balances with original maturity less than three
=8 A NEHI > 45685 BEH S R months from the date of acquisition, including cash, balances with banks
17 B EoAth 4 Rt > 4565 ~ S HHEE I 1Y and other financial institutions, short-term bills and notes classified as
W FE R A S5 R ik e 7 g o IR investment securities and certificates of deposit. Cash and cash
& R I S TE H AV TEE S S8 % equivalents are assessed for ECLs in accordance with the policy set out in
HEfEE 2.14 TS - Note 2.14.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can
be made.

2.21 Employee benefits

(1) Retirement benefit costs

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement schemes
under either recognised ORSO schemes or MPF schemes that are
available to the Group’s employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a percentage of
employees’ basic salaries for the ORSO schemes and in accordance
with the MPF rules for MPF schemes. The retirement benefit scheme
costs are charged to the income statement as incurred and represent
contributions payable by the Group to the schemes. Contributions
made by the Group that are forfeited by those employees who leave
the ORSO scheme prior to the full vesting of their entitlement to the
contributions are used by the Group to reduce the existing level of
contributions or to meet its expenses under the trust deed of the ORSO
schemes.

The assets of the schemes are held in independently-administered
funds separate from those of the Group.

(2) Leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and sick leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for unused annual leave and the amount of sick leave expected
to be paid as a result of services rendered by employees up to the end
of the reporting period.

Compensated absences other than sick leave and special approved
annual leaves are non-accumulating; they lapse if the current period’s
entitlement is not used in full. Except for unexpired annual leaves, they
do not entitle employees to a cash payment for unused entitlement on
leaving the Group.

(3) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments are recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of services rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made. Liabilities for bonus plans that are expected to
be settled longer than twelve months will be discounted if the amounts
are significant.
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Tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is
recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in OCI or directly in equity. In these cases, the relevant
amounts of tax is recognised in OCI or directly in equity respectively.

Income tax payable on profits, based on the applicable tax law enacted or
substantially enacted at the end of the reporting period in each jurisdiction
where the Bank and the subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income,
is recognised as a current income tax expense in the period in which profits
arise.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates and laws
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

The principal temporary differences arise from asset impairment
provisions, depreciation of premises and equipment, and revaluation of
certain assets including financial instruments at FVOCI and premises.
However, the deferred income tax is not recognised if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided in full on all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred income tax assets are recognised on all deductible
temporary differences, the carry forward of any unused tax credits and
unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred income tax is charged or credited in the income statement except
for deferred income tax relating to fair value re-measurement of financial
instruments at FVOCI and revaluation of premises which are charged or
credited to other comprehensive income, in which case the deferred
income tax is also credited or charged to other comprehensive income and
is subsequently recognised in the income statement together with the
realisation of the deferred gain and loss.

Deferred tax liability or deferred tax asset arising from investment property
is determined based on the presumption that the revaluation amount of
such investment property will be recovered through sale with the relevant
tax rate applied.
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Repossessed assets are initially recognised at the lower of their fair value
less costs to sell and the amortised cost of the related outstanding loans
on the date of repossession, and the related loans and advances together
with the related impairment allowances are derecognised from the
statement of financial position. Subsequently, repossessed assets are
measured at the lower of their cost and fair values less costs to sell and are
reported as “Repossessed assets” included in “Other assets”.

2.24 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as a trustee, or in other fiduciary capacities, that
result in its holding or managing assets on behalf of individuals, trusts and
other institutions. These assets and any gains or losses arising thereon are
excluded from these financial statements, as they are not assets of the
Group.

2.25 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of
economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised as a provision but is disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the

financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
When the inflow is virtually certain, it will be recognised as an asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.26 Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to be
related to the Group if:

@)

(b)

a person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the
Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or
the Group’s parent.

an entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions

applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(ii)
(iii) Both entities are joint venture of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity.

(iv)

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group.

v)

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified
in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity
or is a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides
key management personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying
accounting policies

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management has made
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the
Group’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

(@) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Note 4.1E and Note 5 contain information about the assumptions and their
risk factors relating to impairment and fair values of financial instruments.
Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(i) Impairment losses

Note 4.1E: impairment of financial instruments involves determining
inputs into the ECL measurement model, including incorporation of
forward-looking information.

(ii) Valuation of financial instruments

The Group’s accounting policy for valuation of financial instruments is
included in Note 5. The fair value of the financial instruments is mainly
based on the quoted market price on a recognised stock exchange or a
price quoted from a broker / dealer for non-exchanged traded financial
instruments.

(b) Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies
Certain critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies are described below:

(i) Classification of financial assets

Note 2.8(2)(iii) and Note 2.8(2)(iv): assessment of the business model
within which the assets are held and assessment of whether the
contractual terms of the financial asset are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

(i) Measurement of ECL

Note 4.1E: establishing the criteria for determining whether credit risk on
the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition,
determining methodology for incorporating forward looking information
into measurement of ECL and selection of models used to measure ECL.

(iii) Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets on unused tax losses and impairment allowances are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits.

Deferred tax assets on unused tax credits are recognised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the estimation of available
tax credits and the possibility to recover such deferred tax assets
recognised.
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The Group is exposed to financial risks as a result of engaging in a variety of
business activities. The principal financial risks are credit risk, market risk (including
currency risk and interest rate risk) and liquidity risk. This note summarises the
Group’s exposures to these risks, as well as its objectives, risk management
governance structure, policies and processes for managing and the methods used
to measure these risks.

Financial risk management framework

The Group’s risk management governance structure is designed to cover all
business processes and ensures various risks are properly managed and
controlled in the course of conducting business. The Group has a robust risk
management organisational structure with a comprehensive set of policies and
procedures to identify, measure, monitor and control various risks that may arise.
These risk management policies and procedures are regularly reviewed and
updated to reflect changes in markets and business strategies. Various groups of
risk takers assume their respective responsibilities for risk management.

The Board of Directors, representing the interests of shareholders, is the highest
decision-making authority of the Group and has the ultimate responsibility for risk
management. The Board, with the assistance of its committees, has the primary
responsibility for the formulation of risk management strategies and ensuring that
the Group has an effective risk management system to implement these strategies.

The Risk Management Committee (RC), a standing committee established by the
Board of Directors, is responsible for overseeing the Group’s various types of risks,
approving significant risk management policies and monitoring their
implementation. The CEO Executive Meeting (Credit Approval) is responsible for
approving credit transactions exceeding Chief Executive (CE) ‘s authority or
referred by CE. The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its role in
overseeing the internal control system.

The CE is responsible for managing the Group’s various types of risks, and material
risk exposures or transactions within his authority delegated by the Board of
Directors. The Chief Risk Officer (CRO) assists the CE in managing the Group’s
various types of risks, and approving material risk exposures or transactions within
his authority. With the support from Risk Management Department (RMD) and
Financial Management Department (FMD), the CRO assists the CE in fulfilling his
responsibilities for the day-to-day management of risks and initiating new risk
management strategies, projects and measures that will enable the Group to better
monitor and manage new risk issues or areas that may arise from time to time from
new businesses, products and changes in the operating environment. He will also
take appropriate initiatives in response to regulatory changes. The CRO and the
General Manager of RMD are also responsible for reviewing material risk
exposures or transactions within their delegated authority. In accordance with the
principle of setting the hierarchy of risk management policies approved by the
Board, the senior management is also responsible for approving the detailed risk
management policies of their responsible areas.
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Financial risk management framework (continued)

Various units of the Group have their respective risk management responsibilities.
Business units act as the first line of defence while risk management units, which
are independent from the business units, are responsible for the day-to-day
management of different kinds of risks. Risk management units have the primary
responsibilities for drafting, reviewing and updating various risk management
policies and procedures.

The Group has put in place appropriate internal control systems, including
establishment of an organisation structure that sets clear lines of authority and
responsibility for monitoring compliance with policies, procedures and limits.
Proper reporting lines also provide sufficient independence of the control functions
from the business areas, as well as adequate segregation of duties throughout the
organisation which helps to promote an appropriate internal control environment.

Product development and risk monitoring

To ensure the effectiveness of risk assessment and monitoring, the Group has a
comprehensive product development and risk monitoring system where roles and
responsibilities of all related units are clearly defined and proper due diligence
processes on product development are in place.

In accordance with the strategic objectives set by the Board and the management,
respective product management units are responsible for formulating business and
product development plans, and proceeding to specific product development
activities. Various risk management units are responsible to conduct independent
risk assessment in the product development process.

Products can only be launched upon completion of the product due diligence
process to the satisfaction of all risk management units and approval from
designated unit heads/the management.

4.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss caused by customers or counterparties who are
unable to or unwilling to meet their contractual obligations. Credit risk exists in
the trading book and banking book, as well as on- and off-balance sheet
transactions of the Group. It arises principally from lending, trade finance and
treasury businesses.

Credit risk management framework

The Group has formulated a comprehensive set of credit risk management
policies and procedures, and appropriate credit risk limits to manage and
control credit risk that may arise. These policies, procedures and credit risk
limits are regularly reviewed and updated to cope with changes in market
conditions and business strategies.

The Group’s organisation structure establishes well-defined authorities and
responsibilities for monitoring compliance with policies, procedures and limits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk management framework (continued)

Risk Assessment Department (RAD) and RMD are responsible for credit risk
management. Various units of the Group have their respective credit risk
management responsibilities. Business units act as the first line of defence.
Both RAD and RMD, which are independent from the business units, is
responsible for the day-to-day management of credit risks and has the
primary responsibility for providing an independent due diligence through
identifying, measuring, monitoring and controlling credit risk to ensure an
effective checks and balances, as well as drafting, reviewing and updating

credit risk management policies and procedures.

The Board of Directors delegates credit approval authority to the CE. The
CE can further delegate to the subordinates within his limit authorised by
the Board of Directors. The Group sets the limits of credit approval authority
according to the credit business nature, rating, the level of transaction risk,

and the extent of the credit exposure.

Credit risk measurement and control

In view of the rapidly changing market conditions, the Group has been
continuously revisiting its credit strategies and conducting rigorous reviews

on the concerned portfolios.

Advances to customers and trade bills

Different credit approval and control procedures are adopted according to
the level of risk associated with the customer, counterparty or transaction.
The Credit Risk Assessment Committee, comprising experts from credit and
other functions, is responsible for making an independent assessment of
material credit applications. Credit applications for non-retail exposures are
independently reviewed and objectively assessed by risk management
units. Obligor ratings (in terms of probability of default) and facility ratings
(in terms of loss given default) are assigned to these portfolios to support
Retail internal rating systems are deployed in the risk
assessment of retail credit transactions, including small business retail
exposures, residential mortgage loans and personal loans. Loan grades,
obligor and facility ratings as well as loss estimates (if applicable) are used

credit approval.

to support credit approval.

The Group also uses loan grades, obligor ratings and loss estimates (if
applicable) to support credit monitoring, reporting and analysis of credit risk
information. For non-retail exposures, more frequent rating review and
closer monitoring are required for higher-risk customers. For retail
exposures, monthly updated internal ratings and loss estimates are used for
credit monitoring on a portfolio basis. More comprehensive review is

required for obligors being identified under high-risk pools.

The Group adopts an internal master rating scale that can be mapped to
Standard & Poor’s external credit ratings. The structure of internal master
rating scale is in compliance with the requirement of the Banking (Capital)

Rules.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Credit risk measurement and control (continued)

Advances to customers and trade bills (continued)

RMD provides regular credit management information reports and ad hoc
reports to the RC and Board of Directors to facilitate their continuous
monitoring of credit risk.

In addition, the Group identifies credit concentration risk by industry,
geography, customer and counterparty. The Group monitors changes to
counterparty credit risk, quality of the credit portfolio and credit risk
concentrations, and reports regularly to the Group’s Management.

The Group adopts loan grading criteria which divides credit assets into five
categories with reference to the HKMA'’s guidelines, as below:

“Pass” represents loans where the borrower is current in meeting its repayment
obligations and full repayment of interest and principal is not in doubt.

“Special Mention” represents loans where the borrower is experiencing
difficulties which may threaten the Group’s position. Ultimate loss is not
expected at this stage but could occur if adverse conditions persist.

“Substandard” represents loans where the borrower displays a definable
weakness that is likely to jeopardise repayment.

“Doubtful” represents loans where collection in full is improbable and the Group
expects to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest, taking into account the
net realisable value of the collateral.

“Loss” represents loans which are considered uncollectible after all collection
options (such as the realisation of collateral or the institution of legal
proceedings) have been exhausted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Credit risk measurement and control (continued)

Debt securities and derivatives

For investments in debt securities, the obligor ratings or external credit ratings,
assessment of the underlying assets and credit limits setting on customer or
security issuer basis are used for managing credit risk associated with the
investment. For derivatives, the Group sets customer limits to manage the
credit risk involved and follows the same approval and control processes as
applied for advances. Ongoing monitoring and stop-loss procedures are
established.

Settlement risk arises mainly from foreign exchange transactions with
counterparties and also from derivatives transactions in any situation where a
payment in cash, securities or equities is made in the expectation of a
corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities. Daily settlement limits are
established for each counterparty or customer to cover all settlement risk
arising from the Group’s market transactions on any single day.

Collateral held as security and other credit enhancements

The valuation and management of collateral have been documented in the
credit risk management policies and procedures which cover acceptance
criteria, validity of collateral, loan-to-value ratio, haircut ratio, valuation and
insurance, etc. The collateral is revalued on a regular basis, though the
frequency and the method used varies with the type of collateral involved and
the nature and the risk of the underlying credit. The Group has established a
mechanism to update the value of its main type of collateral, real estate
properties, with the use of public indices on a portfolio basis. In the personal
sector, the main types of collateral are real estate properties, cash deposits
and securities. In the commercial and industrial sector, the main types of
collateral are real estate properties, securities, receivables, cash deposits and
machinery.

For loans guaranteed by a third party, the Group will assess the guarantor’s
financial condition, credit history and ability to meet obligations.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not hold any collateral that it was
permitted to sell or re-pledge in the absence of default by the borrower (2019:
Nil).
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e BRI (8)

4. GRRREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 2ERE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)

A. EEREEE A. Credit exposures
AEE & EEEERER R The maximum credit exposure is the worst case scenario of exposure to the

BB AR S F '
PRI R B BBRHE - HINEEE
ERNEE k=5 SRR ER
FRHIREE - AR -
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RALEN B EMN EH I &EE
o W ERURIE R HAEE AR
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Group without taking into account any collateral held or other credit
enhancements. For on-balance sheet assets, the maximum exposure to
credit risk equals their carrying amount. For letters of guarantee issued, the
maximum exposure to credit risk is the maximum amount that the Group
could be required to pay if the guarantees are called upon. For loan
commitment and other credit related liabilities, the maximum exposure to
credit risk is the full amount of the committed facilities.

DUN R Pse a4 b S HLA S (S
gﬂf#ﬂ’] MR R HL A A ]

The nature of the collateral held and other credit enhancements and their
financial effect to the different classes of the Group’s financial assets are as

EREE R SR follows:
TESRIT R B & B &5 68 K Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions
TEHHFIR

These exposures are generally considered to be low risk due to the nature
of the counterparties. Collateral is generally not sought on these assets.
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Investment in securities

Collateral is generally not sought on debt securities.

Derivative financial instruments

The Master Agreement published by the International Swaps and Derivatives
Association, Inc. (“ISDA Master Agreement”) is the preferred agreement for
documenting derivatives activities of the Group. It provides the contractual
framework under which dealing activities of over-the-counter (“OTC”)
transactions are conducted, and sets out close-out netting provisions upon
termination following the occurrence of an event of default or a termination
event. In addition, if deemed necessary, Credit Support Annex ("CSA") will
be included to form part of the Schedule to the ISDA Master Agreement.
Under a CSA, collateral is passed from one counterparty to another, as

appropriate, to mitigate the exposures.

Advances to customers and trade bills, contingent

liabilities _and

commitments

The general types of collateral are disclosed on page 75. Advances to
customers and trade bills, contingent liabilities and commitments are
collateralised to the extent considered appropriate by the Group taking
account of the risk assessment of individual exposures. The components and
nature of contingent liabilities and commitments are disclosed in Note 33.
Regarding the commitments that are unconditionally cancellable without prior
notice, the Group would assess the necessity to withdraw the credit line in
case where the credit quality of a borrower deteriorates. For contingent
liabilities and commitments, 24.98% (2019: 26.44%) is covered by collateral

as at 31 December 2020.
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4. GRRREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EREE (8
B. EEERNT

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. Credit quality analysis

(@ EFERRELSRENRE

(a) Credit quality of advances to customers and trade bills

-

TR % P ERRIHE 5

The following tables set out information about the credit quality of advances to

H=RECEEEERS TR customers and trade bills. The amounts in the table represent gross carrying amount.
IRAIEY I -
2020

12EENTEE  JEMEERENKES  EERENKS
e EEEE TS TaAEE 4t

FHEHR RN E P S5 Advances to customers at Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
amortised cost 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT T AT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
= Pass 76,624,088 223,184 - 76,847,272
HEBE Special Mention 384 652,827 . 653,211
e Substandard - - 39,957 39,957
R Doubitful - - 129,827 129,827
LS| Loss . . 110,379 110,379
TRIEE Loss allowance (476,643) (8.637) (278,510) (763,790)
HRHIfE Carrying amount 76,147,829 867,374 1,653 77,016,856

2019

12 (& 5 (97EHA JHERRENS S EEENS S
IR S EEEE TEMARTR THEIRSHR st

FBESHRCANI % P &3 Advances to customers at Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
amortised cost 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT T AT T BT
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
oy Pass 74,473,819 753,406 - 75,227,225
ek Special Mention 4,333 539,201 - 543,534
e Substandard - - 96,089 96,089
R Doubful - - 182,289 182,289
e Loss - - 17,822 17,822
TREAER Loss allowance (326,066) (18,309) (284,868) (629,243)
HRHIfE Carrying amount 74,152,086 1,274,298 11,332 75,437,716
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B. EEERNT

(@ EFERRELSRENE

(&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

BEE (8

AR PEE

=y
REER

HRHIfE

AR ZEE

=Y
TR(EERS

HRHIfE

Trade bills at amortised cost

Pass
Loss allowance

Carrying amount

Trade bills at amortised cost

Pass

Loss allowance

Carrying amount

B. Credit quality analysis

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

(a) Credit quality of advances to customers and trade bills (continued)

2020

12 [EAMTES  SMERRENSRE  EERENSS
(B3 i TR pizt-ul i dact

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT AT AT AT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
1,327,776 - 1,327,776
(4,491) - (4,491)
1,323,285 - 1,323,285

2019

12 {8 5 #9 7 A IHEERENSS EERENSS
EERE TEHAETE THIETE Hast

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT AT BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
1,553,101 - 1,653,101
(3,926) - (3,926)
1,549,175 - 1,549,175
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4. CRIEREE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEEE (8D
B. EEERDHT

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. Credit quality analysis

(b) BREFERXKESE (b) Credit quality of financial assets other than advances to customers and trade
SNTEEEEER bills

YR AE SR T R oAt
B RIEREHI &S R R A7

The following table sets out information about the credit quality of balances and
placements with banks and other financial institutions. The amounts in the table

TEEEESELE represent gross carrying amount.
H{EIR
2020

P ) 12 [EAMTES  SMERRENSRE  EERENSS
EIT ~ $R1T R HAth Balances and placements with (EEEE TR TR P

ERIISEIGEER K 7K central banks, banks and other Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
financial institutions 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT AT AT AT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
EF& Pass 30,197,824 - - 30,197,824
JEEAER Loss allowance (1,924) - - (1,924)
RIAIE Carrying amount 30,195,900 - - 30,195,900

2019

PR . 12 & B 197EEA IHMEEIMENE S EH(ERE S
??)Eﬁw%ﬁ - $897 K HAth Balances and placements with (EE IS T T yast

ERPEREIIGEER K A7RK central banks, banks and other Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
financial institutions 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT AT AT ARTT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EF& Pass 22,774,206 - - 22,774,206
TR Loss allowance (484) ) B (484)
SfRfE Carrying amount 22,773,722 - - 22,773,722
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. Credit quality analysis (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

(b) Credit quality of financial assets other than advances to customers and trade

bills (continued)

The following tables present the credit quality of debt securities mandatorily measured
and designated at FVTPL. In the absence of such issue ratings, the ratings designated
for the issuers are reported.

2020
Aaa Aal & Aa3 Al & A3 A3 T VAR &5t
Lower

Aaa Aal to Aa3 Alto A3 than A3 Unrated Total

AT AT BETT O BETI B¥Toe BETT

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Financial assets

mandatorily

measured at

FVTPL - - 16,725 196,119 25,384 238,228
Financial assets
designated at

FVTPL - - 159,752 40,027 163,421 363,200

- - 176,477 236,146 188,805 601,428

2019
Aaa Aal ¥ Aa3 Al £A3 A3 DT SR M5t
Lower

Aaa Aal to Aa3 Al to A3 than A3 Unrated Total

AT AT BT BT BT BETT

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Financial assets

mandatorily

measured at

FVTPL 28,999 71,488 47,663 148,150
Financial assets
designated at

FVTPL 158,116 39,959 172,532 370,607

187,115 111,447 220,195 518,757
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

41 EREE (8

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. EEEESH (&) B. Credit quality analysis (continued)
(b) BREFERXKESE (b) Credit quality of financial assets other than advances to customers and trade
INVEERESER (&) bills (continued)
BB 5 R ERGERL S Credit risk of treasury transactions is managed in the same way as the Group manages
N{EEEEEHFE its corporate and bank lending risk and risk gradings are applied to the counterparties
BUREEEH MR with individual counterparty limits set.
TEEMNITE B
i 4R 10 FE T B
AT PR T -
PEREHASGSE R H - % At the end of the reporting period, the credit quality of investment in debt securities
STERER T 2 (BG5S analysed by designation of external credit assessment institution, Moody’s Investor
FRGITENEEEZR Services, or equivalent, is as follows:
pariis N
2020
12 {8 F HYTEEH FEHRENKE EERENSS
et e " . LBy i e TEHARSE fast
T ER AT 2 19(E7 Debt securities and certificate of Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
B 5 TGS deposits at amortised cost 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT E¥BTT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Aaa Aaa . . _ R
Aal % Aa3 Aa1 to Aa3 120,910 - - 120,910
A EA3 Alto A3 887,257 - - 887,257
A3 LJ\T Lower than A3 346,434 _ _ 346,434
fmETAR Unrated i ) ) )
k(B Loss allowance (3,600) - - (3,600)
HRIHI{E Carrying amount 1,351,001 - - 1,351,001
2019
12 {8 H HI7EEA JHEERIEN S EERENA S
e " . EERGHE TEIAETE THIFETE Hast
IR A5 RIS Debt securities and certificate of Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
5 R AFAES deposits at amortised cost 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT AT BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Aaa Aaa - - - -
Aal £ Aa3 Aa1to Aa3 113,448 - _ 113,448
Al % A3 Alto A3 1,095,282 - - 1,095,282
A3 I Lower than A3 435465 _ _ 435,465
SHESPAR Unrated - R - R
JEE AR Loss allowance (1,798) - - (1,798)
HRAIE Carrying amount 1,642,397 - - 1,642,397
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41 EEEE (8D

€D 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. EEERDHT (&)

(b) REFERXRESHTE
SMITEERRER (&)

DIASEE (s A2 Debt securities and certificate of

W IS RS 7 Sk

2%
A

Aaa

Aal & Aa3
Al £ A3
A3 DI
ARIAIE

TRIEE

DIUATEZ( L AT
WA s 5 B

2%
[Ei5A

Aaa

Aal % Aa3
Al £ A3
A3 LIF
ISR

IR(EAER

deposits at FVOCI

Aaa

Aa1 to Aa3
A1to A3
Lower than A3
Unrated

Carrying amount

Loss allowance

Debt securities and certificate of

deposits at FVOCI

Aaa

Aa1 to Aa3
A1to A3
Lower than A3
Unrated

Carrying amount

Loss allowance

B. Credit quality analysis (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

(b) Credit quality of financial assets other than advances to customers and trade
bills (continued)

2020

12EANTEE  JHMEERENKE SERENRS
fEREE TS TR gt

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT E¥BTT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
3,505,435 - - 3,505,435
7,231,983 - - 7,231,983
29,791,378 - - 29,791,378
5,698,954 - - 5,698,954
2,446,284 - 107,215 2,553,499
48,674,034 - 107,215 48,781,249
33,294 - 344,341 377,635

2019

12 {8 B 197EEA JHEERENS S EERENS
EEHE TEMARTR TEIAESR “aEt

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
6,947,971 - - 6,947,971
9,990,944 - - 9,990,944
20,178,046 - - 20,178,046
6,184,284 - - 6,184,284
1,418,838 - - 1,418,838
44,720,083 - - 44,720,083
26,400 - - 26,400
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EREE (8
B. EEERMT (&)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. Credit quality analysis (continued)

(b) FREFEHRREBRES
NEEREER (8

(b) Credit quality of financial assets other than advances to customers and trade
bills (continued)

2020

12@AWTEL  HMEERENKE SERENRS
fEREE THHSE TREAESS dact

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
HAth &R ERE Other financial assets 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT E¥BTT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EF Pass 1,339,636 - 1,339,636
TR Special Mention i ]
KR Substandard 7 7
SR Doubtful 653 653
il Loss 708 708
TR Loss allowance (4,299) (387) (4,686)
WEmI(E Carrying amount 1.335.337 981 1.336.318

2019

12 {[E 5 097EHA IHEEREN S EERENS
EEHGE TEIAREE THEARSR “aEt

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
Hitt s E Other financial assets 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
E% Pass 312,153 - 312,153
ETHREE Special Mention 10 _ 10

R4 Substandard _
] Loss 699 699
JEEZER Loss allowance (306) (735) (1,041)
HRIEIEL Carrying amount 311,847 10 396 312,253
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B. EEERMT (&)

(b) FREFEHRREBRES

(continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

NEEREER (8

bills (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

B. Credit quality analysis (continued)

(b) Credit quality of financial assets other than advances to customers and trade

B R TEUE By &K Loan commitments and financial

SETERGH L Prek

=t
TREEE
Bk
e
HRHIfE
TRIEAE

BRSBTS RO

SETERGH L frek

G
RERDE
TER
Bk
(i)
HRHIfE
TR(EER

guarantee contracts issued

Pass

Special Mention
Substandard
Doubtful

Loss

Carrying amount

Loss allowance

Loan commitments and financial

guarantee contracts issued

Pass

Special Mention
Substandard
Doubtful

Loss

Carrying amount

Loss allowance

2020

12[@RMTEN  JEESERENSKE EERENSS
(Ey=V Fic TSR pizt-ul i dact

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
14,094,571 10,000 - 14,104,571
- 103,322 - 103,322
- - 8,597 8,597
14,094,571 113,322 8,597 14,216,490
(51,644) (1) - (51,645)

2019

12 & F 7R IHEERENSS EERENSS
EEHGE TSR THEARSTE Hast

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT T AT T AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
12,578,378 3,817 - 12,582,195
- 47,084 - 47,084
- - 8,597 8,597
12,578,378 50,901 8,597 12,637,876
(26,802) (1) - (26,803)

AR H Z &5 0
HA A E T 5 ATy
RAE > HIFIEBTERL -
HEHTHIEEZ 85K
EH R — o BE A
Wi R AR EE > APIE
Hipa s - HRIIEE &
o LR R ik B R K
WA EERKARE R
AR ER—EHE
FRNIEE I A HE A R
o IS EREH -

Advances with a specific repayment date are classified as overdue when the
principal or interest is past due and remains unpaid. Advances repayable by regular
instalments are classified as overdue when an instalment payment is past due and
remains unpaid. Advances repayable on demand are classified as overdue either
when a demand for repayment has been served on the borrower but repayment has
not been made in accordance with the instruction or when the advances have
remained continuously exceeded the approved limit that was advised to the
borrower.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

C. Concentration risk

(a) Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit
enhancement

Maximum exposure to credit risk relating to assets in the consolidated statements
of financial position are as follows:

2020 2019
AT ARTIT
HK$’000 HK$'000

Balances with central banks, banks

and other financial institutions 22,755,602 17,954,510
Placements with banks and other

financial institutions maturing

between one and twelve months 7,440,298 4,819,212
Derivative financial instruments 140,505 122,133
Investment in securities mandatorily

measured at fair value through

profit or loss 238,228 148,150
Investment in debt securities

designated at fair value through

profit or loss 363,200 370,607
Investment in debt securities and

certificates of deposit at fair value

through other comprehensive

income 48,781,249 44,720,083
Investment in securities at amortised
cost 1,351,001 1,642,397
Advances to customers and trade
bills 78,340,141 76,986,891
159,410,224 146,763,983

Maximum exposure to credit risk relating to items unrecorded in the consolidated
statements of financial position are as follows:

2020 2019

AT ATT

HK$’000 HK$ 000

Direct credit substitutes 5,147 5,147

Transaction-related contingencies 25,621 24,771

Trade-related contingencies 677,387 475,735
Commitments excluding those that

are unconditionally cancellable
without prior notice 3,151,595 4,645,828
3,859,750 5,151,481
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(continued)
4. SREREE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
41 588 (8®) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
C. &b E (&) C. Concentration risk (continued)
b)) ITENSE 2RSS (b) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers
#
VRIS == &t The following analysis of the gross advances to customers by industry sector is
TSR HATE S E based on the categories with reference to the completion instructions for the
WEE RGN E05& T HKMA return of loans and advances.
e RWMBIVEFE R
il -
2020
FERREREAE FEWERr FRE_RE
ERERER FEEZEST TESHE AR ZRE R
Gross % covered by Stage 3 Stage 1 & 2
advances to collateral or impairment impairment
customers  other security Impaired allowances allowances
AT EEBTIT BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AEEHE &K Loans for use in Hong Kong
TraemsE Industrial, commercial and
financial
- VRS - Property development 3,408,076 25.05% - - 23,378
- VPEE - Property investment 3,638,788 51.02% 25 - 12,878
- ERE - Financial concerns 6,026,042 23.71% - - 16,460
- ST - Stockbrokers 2,276,150 2.06% - - 9,561
- i EEE - Wholesale and retail trade 4,141,089 66.29% 10,284 10,265 19,483
- W& - Manufacturing 709,330 23.08% - - 3,107
- el KB - Transport and transport
equipment 655,320 1.26% - - 2,266
- PREDESN - Recreational activities 26,716 100.00% . . 83
- ERREY - Information technology 72,620 5.56% . . 654
- HAth - Others 2,712,789 66.19% 3,023 3,023 6,829
@A Individuals
- I EE A S - Loans for the purchase of
NG s e flats in Home Ownership
SR A E R Scheme, Private Sector
;@;?ngﬁ - Participation Scheme
i e and Tenants Purchase
Scheme 50,805 98.33% - - 75
- EEHEM (YRR & - Loans for purchase of
2 other residential
properties 4,460,498 100.00% - - 4,695
- Hfr - Others 8,495,354 98.41% 776 776 64,702
AEA T 2 SRR Total loans for use in Hong
Kong 36,673,577 59.44% 14,108 14,064 164,171
HERE Trade finance 407,295 36.85% 155,676 155,676 523
TEEBLIMIH S50 Loans for use outside Hong
Kong 40,699,774 20.33% 110,379 108,770 320,586
B e Gross advances to customers 77,780,646 38.86% 280,163 278,510 485,280
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- BEH YRS
Bk
- Hfifl

TEEH{E B

E oA
TEBEABSNER 2 85K

BRI

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Loans for use in Hong Kong

Industrial, commercial and

financial

- Property development

- Property investment

- Financial concerns

- Stockbrokers

- Wholesale and retail
trade

- Manufacturing

- Transport and transport
equipment

- Recreational activities

- Information technology

- Others

Individuals

- Loans for the purchase of
flats in Home
Ownership Scheme,
Private Sector
Participation Scheme
and Tenants Purchase
Scheme

- Loans for purchase of
other residential
properties

- Others

Total loans for use in Hong
Kong

Trade finance

Loans for use outside Hong
Kong

Gross advances to
customers

C. Concentration risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

(b) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)

2019
A A A FEMEERZ BRI
AR HEZH MBI B ZIRAERE R
Gross % covered by Stage 3 Stage 1 & 2
advances collateral impairment impairment
to customers or other security Impaired allowances allowances
AT T BT T AT T AT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2,948,523 34.74% - - 11,265
2,990,725 74.68% 20 - 10,444
3,714,601 24.46% - - 17,381
1,023,915 7.48% - - 2,123
6,201,435 85.16% - - 6,445
1,510,084 13.47% - - 4,169
635,218 36.93% - - 470
14,440 100.00% - - 20
76,715 5.64% - - 1,076
4,172,343 59.13% 11 - 7,366
34,610 100.00% - - 49
3,322,481 100.00% 3,239 - 2,557
7,803,061 97.51% 187 - 89,501
34,448,151 67.97% 3,457 - 152,866
1,500,565 81.32% 100,339 100,339 2,544
40,118,243 13.50% 192,404 184,529 188,965
76,066,959 39.50% 296,200 284,868 344,375
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GFETT RN Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(&) (continued)

4. SREREE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEERE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)

C. Blg&EHE (8) C. Concentration risk (continued)

) EHEERRYEZER (c) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers
B
AR E F & The following geographical analysis of advances to customers is based on the
HIEE T ERER S locations of the counterparties, after taking into account the transfer of risk. For an
B TF- 2 Frfeit A EEE R advance to customer guaranteed by a party situated in a country different from the
FEERRE - B E customer, the risk will be transferred to the country of the guarantor.

TR ZHE ORI AE M B
R E - AR
RS BYEOR N ZFAEY -

2020
F—RE
BESE F=RE {52
B SRR AHIERK K B R B
Stage3 Stagel&?2
Total advances Overdue Impaired impairment impairment
to customers advances advances allowances allowances
AT AT AT AT HEWTIT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
e Hong Kong 45,870,310 921,899 179,617 179,617 279,616
o [ 3 Mainland China 25,528,684 169,795 100,546 98,893 169,615
FAth Others 6,381,652 2,845 - - 36,049
77,780,646 1,094,539 280,163 278,510 485,280
2019

EESE
BEDE  B=MEE MEEE
&SR S 224 TAEZE TRAEER
Stage3 Stagel1l&?2
Total advances to Overdue Impaired  impairment  impairment
customers advances advances allowances allowances
T BT BT BETRT BT
HK$°000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
i Hong Kong 44,810,458 673,783 189,376 188,526 208,876
[ A 3 Mainland China 26,231,080 117,457 104,751 96,342 118,006
HoAth Others 5,025,421 2,073 2,073 - 17,493
76,066,959 793,313 296,200 284,868 344,375
2020 2019
BETT AT
HK$°000 HK$'000

JEE B B S E RS % of impaired or classified advances to total advances to customers
& EAEEHE T 0.36% 0.39%

BE B E TR Market value of collateral held against impaired or classified

AR TE advances 37,050 49,458
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e BRI
(8

4. GRRREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEEE (8D
D. #ERIEAE(E

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

D. Collateral held and other credit enhancements

REFTHET S B
ZHEEA YRS A
FOEMBEESE - &
G E 55 R
A G ES - DUk
PR (5 B R b & B HY Bk
e

AREEF B R AL
HIFEA B P %5 =
R B B B 14 E T
TE o RIS BT
TV (LWEEEREY
)~ HAPSE - HAth s
SCIRTETE - Bl F il
HR(E s A IE R - BR
R R R B 1 [ i R 5
77 i B 5 B Y K
Hh > FESRAT R HoAth <5
PRRERISETE R 0 B
FARAT BRI B — i
R o

FEUSIE] AR B3R s 3k
W SR A A
FEF7 B fE RN B A H
A R R i o 3%
TR S IR
R LT HAEE FIAR
CBfsE 26 )- e el
EEFT Z SBUSCAEE A
R g Iy > Sl {5
MRS EE A
(B R PR AY A
EoRECGR BTN -

The Group has established guidelines on the acceptability of various classes of
collateral and determined the corresponding valuation parameters. The guidelines and
collateral valuation parameters are subject to regular reviews to ensure their
effectiveness over credit risk management.

The extent of collateral coverage over the Group’s loans and advances to customer
depends on the type of customers and the product offered. Types of collateral include
residential properties (in the form of mortgages over property), other properties, other
registered securities over assets, cash deposits, standby letters of credit and
guarantees. Collateral generally is not held over balances and placements with banks
and other financial institutions, and loans and advances to banks, except when
securities are held as part of reverse repurchase and securities borrowing activity.

The Group takes possession of collateral through court proceedings or voluntary
delivery of possession by the borrowers during the course of the recovery of impaired
loans and advances. These repossessed assets are reported in the statement of
financial position within “other assets” (Note 26). If the recovery from the repossessed
assets exceeds the corresponding exposure, the surplus fund is made available either
to repay the borrower’s other secured loans with lower priority or is returned to the
borrower.
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4. CRIEREE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EREE (8
D. #imAIEALEE (G

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

D. Collateral held and other credit enhancements (continued)

FrA RFIR AR B
EREE AR > 2
HIRT R ZMWHERE -
FRUA—8E 7Rl
AR B E Rl 5 B
DT RSN ([HEH5E
75~ IR AR AT
B AR SR Ay -
2RI - (S E b TTRE RS
S HERE T B
B ER TR E AT E
R -

ISDA T &8I RALE
B R T A2 38 B SR
BREY  BHwES
KINEZE - IMA{EEEIIES
2N REETHT—
ZINNIGINE AL 5 TE
g NH 7R
G A ELATH SE R e AR
1B A EEI4TE
SHE LRGBS
HENFTA RBITR
5 o REEINGEST
ISDA 1y FE &4 EE -
B ST ST S B
&) BEIL AR ETAET
)77 2 [T > DARER
HERERBLIER THY
WAE e S T
JEBE:

SRR AN MR B TR
PRHOH R E (I EE
33) AIALEE I Y
ERERARE Al
SHE RS R EREEE
e R AL EERE
KRisEmEHE R R
FEH o BN TR
PREUMAT RS - AR
GTE P R
B e AR EH
T -

Collateral held as security for financial assets other than loans and advances is
determined by the nature of the instrument. Debt securities, treasury and other eligible
bills are generally unsecured with the exception of asset-based securities and similar
instruments, which are secured by pools of financial assets. However, the credit risk
may be implicit in the terms or reflected in the fair value of the corresponding
instruments.

The Group’s preferred agreement for documenting derivatives activity is the ISDA
Master Agreement which covers the contractual framework within which dealing
activity across a full range of over-the-counter products is conducted and contractually
binds both parties to apply close-out netting across all outstanding transactions
covered by an agreement, if either party defaults or following other pre-agreed
termination events. It is also common for the Group to execute a Credit Support Annex
in conjunction with the ISDA Master Agreement with the counterparty under which
collateral is passed between the parties to mitigate the market contingent counterparty
risk inherent in the outstanding position.

For contingent liabilities and commitments that are unconditionally cancellable (Note
33), the Group will assess the necessity to withdraw the credit line when there is a
concern over the credit quality of the customers. Accordingly, the exposure to
significant credit risk is considered as minimal. For commitments that are not
unconditionally cancellable, the Group assesses the necessity of collateral depending
on the type of customer and the product offered.
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4. CRIEREE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEEE (8D
E. TEHAESRRRMEIAR

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL

FIRBERENSE
(EE T

FERfTRE 2.14 HIEETEL
5 o

R R
B —THER LR
B RS PR E 1
IR - ARG & - AR
B &R TSRS B > 7%
SRl B B SRR
VN EE 4 &N Ak AES
Y - B EiEEENEE
EREMHT > BEINEE
B SR S BRI R Y
EERHE -

ST H By S i R
Pt TE (5 e % B A2
BB

© BEWE ARVRIERE
oY R QYRR
(PD): K

* FERIAATHERS R
BESEAREOPR 3
S PDOFEFA(TRRH

#)

Inputs, assumptions and techniques used for estimating impairment

See accounting policy in Note 2.14.

Significant increase in credit risk

When determining whether the risk of default on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group’s
historical experience and expert credit assessment.

The objective of the assessment is to identify whether a significant increase in credit
risk has occurred for an exposure by comparing:

+ the remaining lifetime probability of default (PD) as at the reporting date; with

+ the remaining lifetime PD for this point in time that was estimated at the time of initial
recognition of the exposure (adjusted where relevant for changes in prepayment
expectations).
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4. CRIEREE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEEE (8D
E. TEHAESRRRMEIAR

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
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PEESRE R Edl oy
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o BIEEE P RIT
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Credit risk grades

The Group allocates each exposure to a credit risk grade based on a variety of data
that is determined to be predictive of the risk of default and applying experienced credit
judgement. Credit risk grades are defined using qualitative and quantitative factors that
are indicative of risk of default. These factors vary depending on the nature of the
exposure and the type of borrower.

Credit risk grades are defined and calibrated such that the risk of default occurring
increases exponentially as the credit risk deteriorates so, for example, the difference
in risk of default between credit risk grades 1 and 2 is smaller than the difference
between credit risk grades 2 and 3.

Each exposure is allocated to a credit risk grade at initial recognition based on available
information about the borrower. Exposures are subject to ongoing monitoring, which
may result in an exposure being moved to a different credit risk grade. The monitoring
typically involves use of the following data.
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4. &RiEfEEHE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
E. TS SELMNEE E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

(&)
fEERERSR (&) Credit risk grades (continued)

O ZEO i

Corporate exposures Retail exposures All exposures

- EEEZRFEMRIFESIEE - b - NERENE P17 AEIE - (ERELER - EfEEIREDUR — %
FETIRE  BHEE  THEHEISE - K551 FIAR SRRy E

BEERIBIT-A0 - TAIER - BT - 5
BEER ETENEY - EHgEE
ERAEHEEE

+ Information obtained during periodic - Internally collected data on customer - Payment record — this includes
review of customer files - e.g. audited behaviour — e.g. utilisation of credit card overdue status as well as a range of
financial statements, management facilities variables about payment ratios
accounts, budgets and projections.

Examples of areas of particular focus
are: gross profit margins, financial
leverage ratios, debt service coverage,
compliance with covenants, quality of
management, senior management

changes

- [EESFHIENREE  WEE  SNBE - T REERE - BT IRERAYE A
SRR

- Data from credit reference agencies, - Affordability metrics - Utilisation of the granted limit

press articles, changes in external
credit ratings

cERNEENEZNGEEENED - GESBREINTEE - GFETHEEE - ENTER RS
(CDS) fEig (ARA) (EEGE

+ Quoted bond and credit default swap - External data from credit reference < Requests for and granting of
(CDS) prices for the borrower where  agencies, including industry-standard  forbearance

available credit scores

 EEAFTRVBUS » BB RO IR T 5 © SEF O BEOEIR R BRA IR K
HEERs e BRI TR B TEHIEE

« Actual and expected significant + Existing and forecast changes in
changes in the political, regulatory and business, financial and economic
technological environment of the conditions

borrower or in its business activities

93



4 & Ay

Chiyu Banking Serperation Fid.

e BRI Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(&) (continued)
4. CRIEREE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEEE (8D
E. TEHAESRRRMEIAR

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
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Generating the term structure of PD

Credit risk grades are a primary input into the determination of the term structure of PD
for exposures. The Group collects performance and default information about its credit
risk exposures analysed by jurisdiction or region and by type of product and borrower
as well as by credit risk grading. For some portfolios, information purchased from
external credit reference agencies is also used.

The Group employs statistical models to analyse the data collected and generate
estimates of the remaining lifetime PD of exposures and how these are expected to
change as a result of the passage of time.

This analysis includes the identification and calibration of relationships between
changes in default rates and changes in key macro-economic factors as well as in-
depth analysis of the impact of certain other factors (e.g. forbearance experience) on
the risk of default. For most exposures, key macro-economic indicators include: GDP
growth, benchmark interest rates and unemployment. For exposures to specific
industries and/or regions, the analysis may extend to relevant real estate prices.

The Group formulates a “base case” view of the future direction of relevant economic
variables as well as a representative range of other possible forecast scenarios (see
discussion below on incorporation of forward-looking information). The Group then
uses these forecasts to adjust its estimates of PDs.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEEE (8D
E. TEHAESRRRMEIAR

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
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Determining whether credit risk has increased significantly

The criteria for determining whether credit risk has increased significantly vary by
portfolio and include quantitative changes in PDs and qualitative factors, including a
backstop based on delinquency.

The credit risk of a particular exposure is deemed to have increased significantly since
initial recognition if, based on the Group’s quantitative modelling, the remaining lifetime
PD is determined to have increased by more than a predetermined range.

Using its expert credit judgement and, where possible, relevant historical experience,
the Group may determine that an exposure has undergone a significant increase in
credit risk based on particular qualitative indicators that it considers are indicative of
such and whose effect may not otherwise be fully reflected in its quantitative analysis
on a timely basis.

As a backstop, the Group considers that a significant increase in credit risk occurs
when an asset is more than 30 days past due. Days past due are determined by
counting the number of days since the earliest elapsed due date in respect of which
full payment has not been received. Due dates are determined without considering any
grace period that might be available to the borrower.
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4. SREREE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
E. TS SELMNEE E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
(&)
FECERGETREE Determining whether credit risk has increased significantly (continued)
m (%)
AR B A E B R The Group monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify significant
i sl E i increases in credit risk by regular reviews to confirm that:

INAVERERY AR - LA

=0
o

o B AEHIRESAT B S L - the criteria are capable of identifying significant increases in credit risk before an
O IR L HTERIE exposure is in default;
SRRV

- BSEEHR 30 KAy + the criteria align with the point in time when an asset becomes 30 days past due;
AR B2 A AR Y and
HFBE R —2 5 R

- 12 ([ FHYE LR - there is no unwarranted volatility in loss allowance from transfers between 12-month
(26 1 PEES) FOfees PD (stage 1) and lifetime PD (stage 2).

HINAVEBLIRER (5
2 [BEz) Z[fEHIHEHA
B AN LIRS

KA o
KRR SREE Modified financial assets
YA E EGR R T R The contractual terms of a loan may be modified for a number of reasons, including
RN TEE AN M e changing market conditions, customer retention and other factors not related to a
BEIETSGRAEEE > & current or potential credit deterioration of the customer.

JF IR DU B = i
SVEAE (B BRI LA
AR ELANAE -

B RE R PR When the terms of a financial asset are modified and the modification does not result
BEERERrE R ETEA IR in derecognition, the determination of whether the asset’s credit risk has increased
Pl REBENGEE significantly reflects comparison of:

JE\g 7 7 B B eI AR

BT 5 e

- HAfFHE HEWREW - its remaining lifetime PD at the reporting date based on the modified terms; with
TR IR TR R 7 4 HA
HYZELINER © &

« IR VIAATEL I AYEL + the remaining lifetime PD estimated based on data at initial recognition and the
BRRGE IR s original contractual terms.

RIS TR
oteps: -
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEEE (8D
E. TEHAESRRRMEIAR

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
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Modified financial assets (continued)

The Group renegotiates loans to customers in financial difficulties (referred to as
forbearance activities) to maximise collection opportunities and minimise the risk of
default. Under the Group’s forbearance policy, loan forbearance is granted on a
selective basis if the debtor is currently in default on its debt or if there is a high risk
of default, there is evidence that the debtor made all reasonable efforts to pay under
the original contractual terms and the debtor is expected to be able to meet the
revised terms.

The revised terms usually include extending the maturity, changing the timing of
interest payments and amending the terms of loan covenants. Both retail and
corporate loans are subject to the forbearance policy.

For financial assets modified as part of the Group’s forbearance policy, the estimate
of PD reflects whether the modification has improved or restored the Group’s ability
to collect interest and principal and the Group’s previous experience of similar
forbearance action. As part of this process, the Group evaluates the borrower’s
payment performance against the modified contractual terms and considers various
behavioural indicators.

Generally, forbearance is a qualitative indicator of a significant increase in credit risk
and an expectation of forbearance may constitute evidence that an exposure is
credit-impaired / in default. A customer needs to demonstrate consistently good
payment behaviour over a period of time before the exposure is no longer
considered to be credit-impaired / in default or the PD is considered to have
decreased such that the loss allowance reverts to being measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

Definition of default
The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when:

- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

- the borrower is past due more than 90 days on any material credit obligation to the
Group. Overdrafts are considered as being past due once the customer has
breached an advised limit or been advised of a limit smaller than the current amount
outstanding.

In assessing whether a borrower is in default, the Group considers indicators that are:

- qualitative — e.g. breaches of covenant;

- quantitative — e.g. overdue status and non-payment on another obligation of the
same issuer to the Group; and

- based on data developed internally and obtained from external sources.

Inputs into the assessment of whether a financial instrument is in default and their
significance may vary over time to reflect changes in circumstances.

The definition of default largely aligns with that applied by the Group for regulatory
capital purposes.
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(&) (continued)
4. CRIEREE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEEE (8D
E. TEHAESRRRMEIAR

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
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Incorporation of forward-looking information

The Group incorporates forward-looking information into both its assessment of
whether the credit risk of an instrument has increased significantly since its initial
recognition and its measurement of ECL. The Group formulates a ‘base case’ view of
the future direction of relevant economic variables as well as a representative range of
other possible forecast scenarios. This process involves developing two or more
additional economic scenarios and considering the relative probabilities of each
outcome. External information includes economic data and forecasts published by
governmental bodies and monetary authorities in the countries where the Group
operates, supranational organisations such as the Organisation for Economic Co-
operation and Development (OECD) and the International Monetary Fund, and
selected private-sector and academic forecasters.

The “base case” represents a most-likely outcome and is aligned with information used
by the Group for other purposes such as strategic planning and budgeting. The other
scenarios represent more optimistic and more pessimistic outcomes. Periodically, the
Group carries out stress testing of more extreme shocks to calibrate its determination
of these other representative scenarios.

The Group has identified and documented key drivers of credit risk and credit losses
for each portfolio of financial instruments and, using an analysis of historical data, has
estimated relationships between macro-economic variables and credit risk and credit
losses.
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4. CRIEREE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEEE (8D
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
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Incorporation of forward-looking information (continued)

The economic scenarios included the forecast of the following key indicators.

2020 2019

TR A ERE R
TR RN AR AR R
SRE S =S

FhEEMEHE - FHEE B
EREEYEMEEE
NS

TR SR
SHRTHIA(E BRI
e ALIT 8228 -

- R ;
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ERESW

&
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fiti 5t HY 5 A1 (8 1 2 fil

R

Hong Kong Real GDP Growth Rate

China Real GDP Growth Rate

China Unemployment Rate

HKMA Hong Kong Loans & Advances

Hong Kong Residential Property Price Index

Hong Kong Private Consumption

-5.9% to 4.7% -1.3% t0 2.6%

2.0% to 7.8% 5.1% t0 5.7%

3.6% to 3.9% 3.6%

4.1% to0 9.4% 3.0% to 5.9%

-0.6% to 5.3% -0.9% to 5.5%

-10.2% to 5.4% -1.8% to 3.0%

Measurement of ECL

The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the term structure of the following
variables:
- probability of default (PD);

- loss given default (LGD); and
- exposure at default (EAD).

These parameters are generally derived from internally developed statistical models
and other historical data. They are adjusted to reflect forward-looking information as
described above.

PD estimates are estimates at a certain date, which are calculated based on statistical
rating models, and assessed using rating tools tailored to the various categories of
counterparties and exposures. These statistical models are based on internally
compiled data comprising both quantitative and qualitative factors. Where it is
available, market data may also be used to derive the PD for large corporate
counterparties. If a counterparty or exposure migrates between rating classes, then
this will lead to a change in the estimate of the associated PD. PDs are estimated
considering the contractual maturities of exposures and estimated prepayment rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
Measurement of ECL (continued)

LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss if there is a default. The Group estimates LGD
parameters based on the history of recovery rates of claims against defaulted
counterparties. The LGD models consider the structure, collateral, seniority of the
claim, counterparty industry and recovery costs of any collateral that is integral to the
financial asset. For loans secured by retail property, LTV ratios are a key parameter in
determining LGD. LGD estimates are recalibrated for different economic scenarios
and, for real estate lending, to reflect possible changes in property prices.

EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of a default. The Group derives
the EAD from the current exposure to the counterparty and potential changes to the
current amount allowed under the contract including amortisation. The EAD of a
financial asset is its gross carrying amount. For lending commitments and financial
guarantees, the EAD includes the amount drawn, as well as potential future amounts
that may be drawn under the contract, which are estimated based on historical
observations and forward-looking forecasts. For some financial assets, EAD is
determined by modelling the range of possible exposure outcomes at various points in
time using scenario and statistical techniques.
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4. CRIEREE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEEE (8D
E. TEHAESRRRMEIAR

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
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Measurement of ECL (continued)

As described above, and subject to using a maximum of a 12-month PD for financial
assets for which credit risk has not significantly increased, the Group measures ECL
considering the risk of default over the maximum contractual period (including any
borrower’s extension options) over which it is exposed to credit risk, even if, for risk
management purposes, the Group considers a longer period. The maximum
contractual period extends to the date at which the Group has the right to require
repayment of an advance or terminate a loan commitment or guarantee.

However, for retail overdrafts that include both a loan and an undrawn commitment
component, the Group measures ECL over a period longer than the maximum
contractual period if the Group’s contractual ability to demand repayment and cancel
the undrawn commitment does not limit the Group’s exposure to credit losses to the
contractual notice period. These facilities do not have a fixed term or repayment
structure and are managed on a collective basis. The Group can cancel them with
immediate effect but this contractual right is not enforced in the normal day-to-day
management, but only when the Group becomes aware of an increase in credit risk at
the facility level. This longer period is estimated taking into account the credit risk
management actions that the Group expects to take and that serve to mitigate ECL.
These include a reduction in limits, cancellation of the facility and/or turning the
outstanding balance into a loan with fixed repayment terms.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEEE (8D
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
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Measurement of ECL (continued)

Where modelling of a parameter is carried out on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped on the basis of shared risk characteristics that include:

- instrument type;
+ credit risk grading;
- collateral type;

+ LTV ratio for retail mortgages;

« date of initial recognition;
+ remaining term to maturity;
+ industry; and

- geographic location of the borrower.

The groupings are subject to regular review to ensure that exposures within a particular
group remain appropriately homogeneous.

For portfolios in respect of which the Group has limited historical data, external
benchmark information is used to supplement the internally available data.
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(continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Loss allowance reconciliation

at transaction level.

4. Financial risk management (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The following tables show reconciliations from the opening to the closing balance of the
impairment allowance by class of financial instrument. The reconciliation is prepared by
comparing the position of impairment allowance between 1 January and 31 December

31 HEYEM -
2020
12 & A HIFEEA FESERER EEREN
E8EE KB THIEE KBTI E st
Lifetime ECL
not Lifetime ECL
BPEK Advances to customers 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BETT BETT BETIT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R1A1H Balance at 1 January 326,066 18,309 284,868 629,243
e 12 (EHMTE S ERstE  Transfer to 12-month ECL 646 (646) . .
RIS EIRE S TELEAE Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-impaired (924) 924 . .
M SEREIRSSTENESE  Transfer to lifetime ECL creditimpaired (648) - 648 .
HTE AR New financial assets originated 209,221 163 . 299,384
T4 FETH e RiETE Financial assets that have been
derecognised (133,266) (13,209) (105,337) (251,812)
SyoK Write-offs ; ; (131,051) (131,051)
TR Changes in models . . . )
PR E Unwind of discount of loans impairment loss . i i} }
& N R LAt 2 Foreign exchange and other movements 5,485 a4 4,685 10,214
BEAEFE TR Net remeasurement of loss allowance (19,937) 3,052 224,607 207,812
R12 7331 H Balance at 31 December 476,643 8,637 278,510 763,790
2019
12 & A (7 FE(E ER(ERY EERER
EEEHE LG TEIRGTR LG TEIRGTR “aEt
Lifetime ECL
not Lifetime ECL
ZEEEK Advances to customers 12-month ECL _ credit-impaired _ credit-impaired Total
AT AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R1A1H Balance at 1 January 139,832 17,599 189,268 346,699
2 12 ([E B iTEH S EE Transfer to 12-month ECL 191 (191) } )
T S S REAV S TSI Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-impaired (9,722) 9,722 B )
BEEFURENSTEIAEAE  Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-impaired (291) (11,506) 11,797 -
P AR New financial assets originated 208,291 149 - 208,440
[ iR R o T2 Financial assets that have been
derecognised (41,630) (377) (69,260) (111,267)
=Y Write-offs - - (27,019) (27,019)
T IEE)) Changes in models i} ) . i
e Ol Unwind of discount of loans impairment loss _ i 3414 3.414
NS R Ay Foreign exchange and other movements 400 (110) (4,403) (4,113)
REEF TR Net remeasurement of loss allowance 28,995 3,023 181,071 213,089
W12H31H Balance at 31 December 326,066 18,309 284,868 629,243
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. TS SELMNEE E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
(&)
BEEEHR (8D Loss allowance reconciliation (continued)
2020
12@ANTEE JHEERENSE SERENSES
fEREE THHSE TREAESE “Est
Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
= Trade bills 12-month ECL credit-impaired _credit-impaired Total
BT E¥BTT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
W1H1H Balance at 1 January 3,926 - - 3,926
e 12 ([HHATERASEE  Transfer to 12-month ECL . . . B
T S BB S TEIIESE  Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-
impaired - - - -
T (SEREAYLSTERRSTE  Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-
impaired - - - -
HE ARERIETE New financial assets originated 4,491 . . 4,491
AR RlEE Financial assets that have been
derecognised (3,926) - - (3,926)
SFH Write-offs . . R R
AU, Changes in models . i} B )
4 N K A s Foreign exchange and other
movements 234 - - 234
BT Net remeasurement of loss
allowance (234) - - (234)
W12 H31H Balance at 31 December 4,491 - - 4,491
2019
12 HBMNHEY  FHMERRENSS EEREN S
EEER THIARS 1A THEARSR HEEt
Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
B g Trade bills 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT AT T T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
B1ATH Balance at 1 January 1,624 . i} 1,624
2 12 ([ HATER S SEsE Transfer to 12-month ECL - - _ _
B S SRR EAA S TERAESE  Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-
impaired - = - -
S (SEPREIETEESE  Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-
impaired - = - -
HE AR New financial assets originated 3,733 } . 3,733
AU ERERT R Financial assets that have been
derecognised (1,624) - - (1,624)
B Write-offs R ) _ B
TSR Changes in models B ) B )
SN FEL R, HoAthsE e, Foreign exchange and other
movements (58) - - (58)
TEEHE T Net remeasurement of loss
allowance 251 - - 251
w12 H31H Balance at 31 December 3,926 - - 3,926
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(&) (continued)

4. sRIREEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
E. TS SELMNEE E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
(&)
BEEEHR (8D Loss allowance reconciliation (continued)
2020
12@ANTEN HEERENGES FEERENSS
(B 5| THESE TREAESE st
DIBEERECAT IR 2 (57558 77 . Debt securities and Certificate Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
7 of deposits at amortised cost 12-month ECL credit-impaired _credit-impaired Total
BETT BETT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
wW1H1H Balance at 1 January 1,798 - - 1,798
2 12 (i B e S EE Transfer to 12-month ECL . . . _
B S SRR A4S S TERAESIE  Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-
impaired - - - -
B (EERENRSSTEREHE  Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-
impaired - - - -
T AR New financial assets originated . . i} }
B4 ERE R Financial assets that have been
derecognised (271) - - (271)
EaaE] Write-offs . - - -
TR Changes in models ) } ) i
o N R H Az Foreign exchange and other
movements 5 - - 5
BEAEFE TR Net remeasurement of loss
allowance 2,068 - - 2,068
w12H31H Balance at 31 December 3,600 - - 3,600
2019
12 EHBMNHEY  FHMERRENSS EEREN S
EEEHE TSR TEHARTIE HEEt
DLER AT I~ 574558 77 . Debt securities and Certificate Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
FEE of deposits at amortised cost 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BIETIT AT IT T T
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
W1H1H Balance at 1 January 334 - - 334
2 12 ([ HATER S S5 Transfer to 12-month ECL - _ _ _
A S B A S TERARSIE  Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-
impaired - = - -
E(SEPREIPAETEESE  Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-
impaired - - - -
Wi ARl New financial assets originated 41 . _ 41
AU ERERT R Financial assets that have been
derecognised (16) - - (16)
] Write-offs _ ; _ B
AR Changes in models B ) B )
SNEEELR HoAtr e Foreign exchange and other
movements (13) - - (13)
TREAEHE T Net remeasurement of loss
allowance 1,452 - - 1,452
w12 H31H Balance at 31 December 1,798 - - 1,798

106



4 & Ay

Chiyu Banking Serperation Fid.

e BRI
(8

4. CRIEREE (8)

41 EEEE (8D

E. TEHAESRRRMEIAR

(&

BEREFRIR (8D

DA PAE S L AU R
2 (RS AR

B1H1H
i 12 {E BT E B
T HE SRR B T E

MR EER(EA RS TR

AR RIEE
AR ERIAE

e

s

SN Rt
SRR

W12 31 H

BUS AL AL
i oS Rt

BR1A1TH
L 12 (E B ITEHE BSER
T HE HREA B TSR

R EER(E RS TR

HTE AR
EA PR ERIAE

e
)

SN )
S R

W12 31 H

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Debt securities and Certificate
of deposits at FVOCI

Balance at 1 January

Transfer to 12-month ECL

Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-
impaired

Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-
impaired

New financial assets originated

Financial assets that have been
derecognised

Write-offs

Changes in models

Foreign exchange and other
movements

Net remeasurement of loss
allowance

Balance at 31 December

Debt securities and Certificate
of deposits at FVOCI

Balance at 1 January

Transfer to 12-month ECL

Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-
impaired

Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-
impaired

New financial assets originated

Financial assets that have been
derecognised

Write-offs

Changes in models

Foreign exchange and other
movements

Net remeasurement of loss
allowance

Balance at 31 December

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

Loss allowance reconciliation (continued)

2020

12@ANTEN HEERENGES FEERENSS
(B 5| TSR pizt-ul i &t

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired _credit-impaired Total
AT AT BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
26,400 - . 26,400
(8,169) - 8,169 -
19,353 - - 19,353
(13,587) - - (13,587)
278 - - 278
9,019 - 336,172 345,191
33,294 - 344,341 377,635

2019

12 AR JMERRENSS EEEENSES
E5EHE THEEE TR dst

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT AT AT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
14,428 - - 14,428
9,344 - - 9,344
(4,986) - - (4,986)
(144) - - (144)
7,758 - - 7,758
26,400 - - 26,400
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Balances and placements with
central banks, banks and other
financial institutions

Balance at 1 January

Transfer to 12-month ECL

Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-
impaired

Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-
impaired

New financial assets originated

Financial assets that have been
derecognised

Write-offs

Changes in models

Foreign exchange and other
movements

Net remeasurement of loss
allowance

Balance at 31 December

Balances and placements with
central banks, banks and other
financial institutions

Balance at 1 January

Transfer to 12-month ECL

Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-
impaired

Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-
impaired

New financial assets originated

Financial assets that have been
derecognised

Write-offs

Changes in models

Foreign exchange and other
movements

Net remeasurement of loss
allowance

Balance at 31 December

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

Loss allowance reconciliation (continued)

2020

12@ANTEN HEERENGES FEERENSS
(B 5| TSR pizt-ul i &t

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired _credit-impaired Total
AT AT BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
484 - - 484
1,916 - - 1,916
(482) - - (482)
13 - - 13
(0] - - (]
1,924 - - 1,924

2019

12 AR JMERRENSS EEEENSES
E5EHE THEEE TR dst

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT AT AT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
325 - - 325
485 - - 485
(318) - - (318)
(8) - - (8)
484 - - 484
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Other financial assets

Balance at 1 January

Transfer to 12-month ECL

Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-
impaired

Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-
impaired

New financial assets originated

Financial assets that have been
derecognised

Write-offs

Changes in models

Foreign exchange and other
movements

Net remeasurement of loss
allowance

Balance at 31 December

Other financial assets

Balance at 1 January

Transfer to 12-month ECL

Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-
impaired

Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-
impaired

New financial assets originated

Financial assets that have been
derecognised

Write-offs

Changes in models

Foreign exchange and other
movements

Net remeasurement of loss
allowance

Balance at 31 December

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

Loss allowance reconciliation (continued)

2020
12@ANTEN HEERENGES FEERENSS
(B 5| TSR pizt-ul i &t
Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired _credit-impaired Total
AT AT BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
306 - 735 1,041
1 - 27 28
(1 - (40) (41)
- - (10) (10)
1" - 36 a7
3,982 - (361) 3,621
4,299 - 387 4,686
2019
12 AR JMERRENSS EEEENSES
E5EHE THEEE TR dst
Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT AT AT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
120 - 1,305 1,425
- - 175 175
- - (960) (960)
(12) - (9) (21)
198 - 224 422
306 - 735 1,041
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts
issued

Balance at 1 January

Transfer to 12-month ECL

Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-
impaired

Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-
impaired

New financial assets originated

Financial assets that have been
derecognised

Write-offs

Changes in models

Foreign exchange and other
movements

Net remeasurement of loss
allowance

Balance at 31 December

Loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts
issued

Balance at 1 January

Transfer to 12-month ECL

Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-
impaired

Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-
impaired

New financial assets originated

Financial assets that have been
derecognised

Write-offs

Changes in models

Foreign exchange and other
movements

Net remeasurement of loss
allowance

Balance at 31 December

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

Loss allowance reconciliation (continued)

2020

12@ANTEN HEERENGES FEERENSS
(B 5| TSR pizt-ul i &t

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired _credit-impaired Total
AT AT BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
26,802 1 - 26,803
33,530 - - 33,530
(6,004) (1) - (6,005)
] - - ]
(2,677) 1 - (2,676)
51,644 1 - 51,645

2019

12 EAMES  FMEERENSS EERENAS
E5EHE THEEE TR dst

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT AT AT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
8,427 22 - 8,449
(1 1 - -
14,049 - - 14,049
(1,551) (22) - (1,573)
(21) 1 - (20)
5,899 (1) - 5,898
26,802 1 - 26,803
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SV BERRIE (8)

4. CRIEREE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 TiEEE 4.2 Market risk

735 B\ 2 15 R Rl i 55 (H A%

CEESR ~ FIR ~ PR EE{EAS ~ L
{ERS ) I BN EEGRITANE ~ FlJ 2~
e SRR L R B (L R LT
HREAE A SR ARAUIRE - A5
EERAUE A TSR R - '
T B P o TR
EHIYER > RIRBA LR
BRI RIE & SRR SRR - ik
57 58 2 1Y JE B i B A FEE A AE B
EHTE > AOEH AR
srEIREE ARG - (e E

A E T IR R b B B SR E A
JFRE S - R R
EHEZERG - SE IR
REMD,BRQL - SEIHME > SEH
1 - R B ER T SRR
EHERRA - ihedEE
[T H BT TR
ARSI Y T 5 R DA B B
HEERAIMRESTIEN - WhErR
G181 By T 455 e 2 42
TEATHEZ IR R AP -

RIRTTE A TH 5 e Fe A R PR
B R SR BN
AT o £ S g fE AR AR
FHEFEER RN EREE - 18
B~ R ~ BRI T LR SRk
AT o E SR B AR A
CUE IR H ) R =(EE 4 - 7>
B EEZ S - SEEIHA
& R JE b E TR R AR AT - 2
WAL AR Y T S R b
TEAENIFRERFEIE I BHREE TS -

Market risk refers to the risk of loss arising from movements in the value of foreign
exchange, interest rate, equity and commodity positions held by the Group due to the
volatility of financial market price (foreign exchange rate, interest rate, equity price,
commodity price). The Group adopts a moderate market risk appetite to achieve a
balance between risk and return. The Group's objective in managing market risk is to
secure healthy growth of the treasury business, by effective management of potential
market risk in the Group's business, according to the Group's overall risk appetite and
strategy of treasury business on the basis of a well- established risk management
regime and related management measures.

In accordance with the Group’s corporate governance principles in respect of risk
management, the Board and RC, senior management and functional
departments/units perform their duties and responsibilities to manage the Group’s
market risk. RMD is mainly responsible for managing market risk, assisting senior
management to perform their day-to-day duties, independently monitoring the market
risk profile and compliance of management policies and limits of the Group, and
ensuring that the aggregate and individual market risks are within acceptable levels.

The Bank sets up market risk indicators and limits to identify, measure, monitor and
control market risk. Major risk indicators and limits include but are not limited to VAR,
Stop Loss, Open Position, Stress Testing and Sensitivity Analysis etc. To meet
management requirements, major risk indicators and limits are classified into three
levels, and are approved by the RC, CEO Executive Meeting and the General
Manager of RMD respectively. Business units are required to conduct their business
within approved market risk indicators and limits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

A. VAR

4. Financial risk management (continued)

The Bank uses the VAR to measure and report general market risks to the RC and
senior management on a periodic basis. The Group adopts a uniformed VAR
calculation model, using a historical simulation approach and two years of historical
market data, to calculate the VAR of the Group over a one-day holding period with
a 99% confidence level, and sets up the VAR limit of the Group.

The following table sets out the VAR for all general market risk exposure' of the

Bank.
i E=xid 24 24
Fh 12F31E REEE SEERE  PERE
Minimum Maximum
At 31 for for Average for
Year December the year the year the year
BETIT BT BETT BETT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
VAR for all market risk 2020 1,980 776 2,097 1,677
2019 793 73 798 426
VAR for foreign exchange risk 2020 1,980 776 2,097 1,677
2019 793 73 798 426
VAR for interest rate risk 2020 - - 2 -
2019 - - 1 -
Note:

1. Part of structural FX positions have been excluded.
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4. CRVEREE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 mIBERE (8
A BEEE (8
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HEZHER B HE RN B
e

4.2 Market risk (continued)

A. VAR (continued)

Although a valuable guide to market risk, VAR should always be viewed in
the context of its limitations. For example:

- BRHEETSEE AR K - the use of historical market data as a proxy for estimating future events

B 5 B P TG 5
AP - L HR — e
ik

- N RSP AIREEE AR
HERHETLDE-HAER
B SRR AEESE
B R > AL TSR
AR > ATREAR AL 1 R
FrAMRER AT A

#

- MREER - B 99% HiE
K BIER A AL E RS
KPS b BRI B

- RS E R DS R 4
MR EaT B > IR

may not encompass all potential events, particularly those which are
extreme in nature;

the use of a one-day holding period assumes that all positions can be
liquidated or hedged in one day. This may not fully reflect the market risk
arising at times of severe illiquidity, when a one-day holding period may
be insufficient to liquidate or hedge all positions fully;

the use of a 99% confidence level, by definition, does not take into
account losses that might occur beyond this level of confidence; and

VAR is calculated on the basis of exposures outstanding at the close of
business and therefore does not necessarily reflect intra-day exposures.

— X SR AE B B P LR

RIRTT 07 T R E R 5
PR - IRl > HE T AT MR A
SR AR A B F e (E R AE
HEAYTSGER o TSRS

G ] R N 2R I Y
BRWRARTE AT AV BRI > DL
B R BRSO W
1994 {FZRHIGEH - 1997 SN
SRR SR, 2008 Rl -

The Bank recognises these limitations by formulating stress test indicators
and limits to assess and manage the market risk uncovered by VAR. The
stress testing programme of the market risk includes sensitivity testing on
changes in risk factors with various degrees of severity, as well as scenario
analysis on historical events including the 1994 Bond Market Crash, 1997
Asian Financial Crisis and 2008 Financial Tsunami, etc.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

B. Currency risk

The Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in major currencies, particularly the
HK dollar, the US dollar and Renminbi. To ensure the currency risk exposure of the
Group is kept to an acceptable level, risk limits (e.g. Position and VAR limit) are used
to serve as a monitoring tool. Moreover, the Group seeks to minimise the gap between
assets and liabilities in the same currency. Foreign exchange contracts (e.g. FX swaps)
are usually used to manage FX risk associated with foreign currency-denominated

assets and liabilities.

The Group had the following net structural positions which were not less than 10% of
the total net structural foreign currency position at the end of the reporting period:

Net structural position

Net structural position

114

2020

AT TEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$

Erx AR%® IMgLEE
Total

us foreign
Dollars Renminbi currencies

1,925,020 2,171,063 4,096,083

2019

BT ITHE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$

E AR SNE4aEE
Total

us foreign
Dollars Renminbi currencies

1,933,901 1,691,215 3,625,116
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

C. Interest rate risk

FERm R e R AR - EER
RS H R B R BT A
REE R T R MIKOR E(E
HRSAREAV R - AR
bR IE EZOR &SRR - 4518
[EREY=LNEE I RS Gl

- BRCIEE A E 2R A 2
AR SRERED AT AR - BR
L e YR P2 A 75 [l R 9 5
[R&GEBRIET) - BBt
A Bl S 2 SRt 4 CP AT B ) 5
FEFARE AR FEGEHATREER)

- BRI FERBEE
AR SE NSRRI
P A A SR — TS
HRLUREIRRE (L © R

- iR AR T T A
WA - Ak, HRI T AR
Ba R AERENTTRSIE 1]
B SO RBH R 20 A AT R g ]
ST e T e ELR R — 2 & )
o B B BRI L

B -

A S o] e B B R AR R Y
FRE R ER - RIS B EH D
CGRITIRFIZ Eb & HLECR) - &
EAREEZEGARETER
SRR RGBS E R
FEEFREREH - £S5
HEET  WIEEAAEHZR
Pl H R b 2 A
BFREARRPEEE R - 5
EHITE s EIEAIREE
SHl B EE A TR BB
HRE B B BRI T B -
1] e AR L g DR R B B R &
FRACHIAR i B B R 5

Interest rate risk means the risks to a bank’s earnings and economic value
arising from movements in interest rate and term structures of the bank’s
asset and liability positions. The Group’s interest rate risk exposures are
mainly structural. The major types of interest rate risk from structural positions
are:

- gap risk: gap risk is the risk arising from the changes in the interest rates
on instruments of different maturities. The extent of gap risk depends on
whether changes to the term structure of interest rates occur consistently
across the yield curve (parallel risk) or differentially by period (non-parallel
risk);

- basis risk: different pricing basis for different transactions resulting that the
yield on assets and cost of liabilities may change by different amounts
within the same repricing period; and

- option risk: option risk arises from interest rate option derivatives or from
optional elements embedded in an authorised institution’s assets, liabilities
and / or off-balance sheet instruments, where the authorised institutions or
its customer can alter the level and timing of their cash flows. Option risk
can be further characterised into automatic option risk and behavioural
option risk.

The Group’s risk management framework applies also to interest rate risk
management. The Asset and Liability Management Committee (ALCO)
exercises its oversight of interest rate risk in accordance with the “Banking
Book Interest Rate Risk Management Policy” approved by the Board. FMD is
responsible for interest rate risk management. With the cooperation of
Financial Markets Department, FMD assists the ALCO to perform day-to-day
interest rate risk management. Its roles include, but are not limited to, the
formulation of management policies, selection of methodologies, setting of
risk indicators and limits, assessment of target balance sheet, monitoring of
the compliance with policies and limits, and submission of interest rate risk
management reports to the senior management and the RC, etc.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)
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C. Interest rate risk (continued)
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The Group sets out interest rate risk indicators and limits to identify, measure,
monitor and control interest rate risk. The indicators and limits include, but
are not limited to, repricing gap limits, basis risk, price value of a basis point
(PVBP), net interest income sensitivity ratio (NII), economic value sensitivity
ratio (EV), etc. The indicators and limits are classified into different levels,
which are approved by the RC, CEO Executive Meeting and the General
Manager of RMD accordingly. Risk-taking business units are required to
conduct their business within the boundary of the interest rate risk limits.
Before launching a new product or business in the banking book, the relevant
departments are required to go through a risk assessment process, which
includes the assessment of underlying interest rate risk and consideration of
the adequacy of current risk monitoring mechanism. Any material impact on
interest rate risk noted during the risk assessment process will be submitted
to the RC for approval.

NIl and EV assess the impact of interest rate movement on the Group’s net
interest income and capital base. They are the Group’s key interest rate risk
indicators. The former assesses the impact of interest rate movement on net
interest income as a percentage to the projected net interest income for the
year. The latter assesses the impact of interest rate movement on economic
value (i.e. the net present value of cash-flows of assets, liabilities and off-
balance sheet items discounted using market interest rate) as a percentage
to the latest capital base. Limits are set by the RC on these two indicators to
monitor and control the Group’s banking book interest rate risk.

The Group uses scenario analyses and stress tests to assess the banking
book interest rate risk that the Group would face under adverse
circumstances. Scenario analyses and stress tests are also used to assess
the impact on net interest income and economic value arising from the
optionality of savings deposits and the prepayment of mortgage loans.
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4. SREREE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 HigEkE (&) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
C. FIRER (&) C. Interest rate risk (continued)
TN T AR 12 The tables below summarise the Group’s on-balance sheet exposure to interest rate
H 31 AVSEamEn risk as at 31 December. Included in the tables are the assets and liabilities at carrying
I FRE RIS - F2P9bL amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing date and maturity date.
NEOUES S S ° A<
IRAIEY & E KA

W% EHERT R A
SEE (PR E R

#) -
2020
—% =
—EAR =EA +=ER —ZAF HEME TR HEst
Non-
Upto1 1t0 3 3to12 1t0 5 Over 5 interest
month months months years years bearing Total
AT AT AWt BETe B¥Tre BT BETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000
BE Assets
[EEATER A AT USRI T B Cash and balances with
HoAth R 45 R banks and other financial

institutions 20,078,836 - - - - 2,892,996 22,971,832
AESRTT R Hofh < Rl g Placements with banks and
—Z+{HBARFEIZ other financial institutions

EHITEI maturing between one and
twelve months - 7,384,601 55,697 - - - 7,440,298
TTESRTHE Derivative financial
instruments - - - - - 140,505 140,505
ZEER L E 5 Advances to customers and
trade bills 47,929,386 11,237,761 13,767,410 2,671,492 2,734,092 - 78,340,141
EANE Investment in securities
— SR EDL AN MBS bt — securities mandatorily
U= irsico measured at FVTPL - 9,552 95,518 72,633 60,525 62,599 300,827
— FERLIANHESEET — securities designated at
MBS 585 FVTPL - - 15,880 199,779 147,541 - 363,200
— DSBS LT AEAM — securities at FVOCI
Ealiilenwtcess 8,287,698 7,584,871 12,830,277 20,078,403 - 20,854 48,802,103
— DA T E 35S — securities at amortised
cost - 665,328 340,152 345,521 - - 1,351,001
EYHE Investment properties - - - - - 153,620 153,620
LI N ads Properties, plant and
equipment - - - - - 2,044,562 2,044,562
At & E (B EURTE K. Other assets (including
EEFRTE AR ) current and deferred tax
assets) 34,935 - - - - 1,571,349 1,606,284
B Total assets 76,330,855 26,882,113 27,104,934 23,367,828 2,942,158 6,886,485 163,514,373
=T Liabilities
$RIT R HAth SRl f# >~ 7 Deposits and balances from
G banks and other financial
institutions (14,604,011)  (2,085,395) (1,981,301) - - (1,896,928) (20,567,635)
T4 T A Derivative financial
instruments - - - - - (75,396) (75,396)
= EIER Deposits from customers (47,951,252) (34,802,381) (26,507,551) (4,442,405) - (8,869,442) (122,573,031)

HMAEE R (fFEFE  Other accounts and

(R TE R B IR TR & ) provisions (including
current and deferred tax

liabilities) (167,326) (13,862) (58,980)  (145,210) (13,105) (2,005,528)  (2,404,011)
= U=tz Total liabilities (62,722,589) (36,901,638) (28,547,832) (4,587,615) (13,105) (12,847,294) (145,620,073)
FIREBRE RO Interest sensitivity gap 13,608,266 (10,019,525) (1,442,898) 18,780,213 2,929,053 (5,960,809) 17,894,300

117



4 & Ay

Chiyu Banking Serperation Fid.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

e BRI
(8

4. GRRREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 iR (&) 4.2 Market risk (continued)

C. FlZmpx (&)

C. Interest rate risk (continued)

2019
—% =&
—{EHA =88 +=E@H BRE AFME NS “EEt
Non-
Upto1 1t0 3 3t012 1to 5 Over 5 interest
month months months years years bearing Total
AT BT B¥TIT BT B¥TIT BTt ABETT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
EFIRE RFRGR T Cash and balances with
HoAth Rl R 45 R banks and other financial
institutions 13,924,513 - - - - 4,311,475 18,235,988
TESRTT R HoAth 4 Rl isAE Placements with banks and
—ZE+ (@A RNFE>  other financial institutions
EHIEERT maturing between one and
twelve months - 3,506,091 1,313,121 - - - 4,819,212
ITESHTHE Derivative financial
instruments - - - - - 122,133 122,133
EEEH NG 5 Advances to customers and
trade bills 53,135,176 9,958,833 12,747,625 1,118,133 27,124 - 76,986,891
BHRE Investment in securities
— SRAIMEDL A ES — securities mandatorily
UN= (oo measured at FVTPL 12,536 55,340 20,549 53,407 6,318 - 148,150
— FEELIANHES ST — securities designated at
NI 5% FVTPL - - - 214,401 156,206 - 370,607
— DIAAHES + A AR, — securities at FVOCI
Eaiilienwt e 4,753,137 7,967,402 9,618,909 22,380,635 - 27,183 44,747,266
— DA TR 2585 — securities at amortised
cost - 705,422 93,230 843,745 - - 1,642,397
BB Investment properties - - - - - 237,150 237,150
YIS ~ B30 KR Properties, plant and
equipment - - - - - 2,021,072 2,021,072
HA & E (IEEURIE K Other assets (including
EIERRIE A ) current and deferred tax
assets) 21,917 - - - - 501,998 523,915
HEEE Total assets 71,847,279 22,193,088 23,793,434 24,610,321 189,648 7,221,011 149,854,781
afE Liabilities
$RIT R HAth SRl f# >~ 7 Deposits and balances from
2GR banks and other financial
institutions (7,543,112) (1,559,588)  (6,348,801) - - (2,295,962) (17,747,463)
e TE Derivative financial
instruments - - - - - (40,361) (40,361)
&Pk Deposits from customers (44,942,074) (31,812,183) (34,016,778) (1,849,932) - (3,670,467) (116,291,434)
HAETE R (f3EME  Other accounts and
(IR TE R IR IR TR & ) provisions (including
current and deferred tax
liabilities) (315,413) (11,162) (50,251)  (153,885) (17,106) (1,104,717)  (1,652,534)
AR Total liabilities (52,800,599) (33,382,933) (40,415,830) (2,003,817) (17,106) (7,111,507)(135,731,792)
FIR BRI RO Interest sensitivity gap 19,046,680 (11,189,845) (16,622,396) 22,606,504 172,542 109,504 14,122,989
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

D. Sensitivity analysis to market risk exposure of the Group

The Group is principally exposed to HK dollar, US dollar, and Renminbi in terms
of interest rate risk. As at 31 December 2020, if HK dollar, US dollar and
Renminbi market interest rates had a 100 basis point parallel upward /
downward shift of the yield curve in relevant currency with other variables held
constant, profit before tax for the year would have been HK$36,700,000 (2019:
HK$28,100,000) higher / lower. The impact on reserves would be insignificant.
The sensitivity analysis set out above is for illustration only.

Interest rate exposures in banking book

The following is a summary of possible effects of market interest rates shocks
on the interest rate exposure for major currencies in banking book.
Subsidiaries are excluded from the analysis below:

=
12 5 31 HE&
Impact on positions
at 31 December
2020 2019
EFAEE Earnings perspective BT AT
HSEER Scenarios HK$°000 HK$'000
AT R Up / down 100 basis points parallel shift in
AT ERE T2 100 BB HK dollar yield curves 182,000 / (182,000) 173,500/ (173,500)
ErER R Up / down 100 basis points parallel shift in
ST ER%TE% 100 Bk US dollar yield curves (500) / 500 (51,000) / 51,000
NERWEZE S 4R Up / down 100 basis points paralle! shift in
AT R TR 100 HE Renminbi yield curves (144,800) / 144,800  (94,400) / 94,400

R R AR R
B EIECEARIR T H G
YOFHIBH I S AR M A L
FIFPATIEE) Rt B Ryl R
AR w] REBR A SR R LR 1T
B~ PG HTARE - FrE Y
BHETERI A Ak HIEERT
S HHEEGQETEHAZRK
RHEIMIH Z AR -
Mebil v SR N S i
FR R By — o7 o

The sensitivities above are for illustration only and are based on several
assumptions, including, but not limited to, the change in the correlation
between interest rates of relevant currencies, parallel movement of interest
rates, the absence of actions that would be taken to mitigate the impact of
interest rate risk, the effectiveness of hedge accounting, all positions being
assumed to run to maturity, behavioural assumptions of products in which
actual repricing date differs from contractual repricing date or products without
contractual maturity. The above exposures form only a part of the Group’s
overall interest rate risk exposures.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk
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Liquidity risk is the risk that banks fail to provide sufficient funds to grow
assets or pay due obligations, and need to bear an unacceptable loss. The
Group maintains sound liquidity risk appetite to provide stable, reliable and
adequate sources of cash to meet liquidity needs under normal
circumstances or stressed scenarios; and to survive with net positive
cumulative cash flow in extreme scenarios, without requesting the HKMA to
act as the Contingent Term Facility.

The Group's liquidity risk management objective is to effectively manage the
liquidity of on- and off-balance sheet items with reasonable cost based on the
liquidity risk appetite to achieve sound operation and sustainable profitability.
Deposits from customers are the Group’s primary source of funds. To ensure
stable and sufficient source of funds are in place, the Group actively attracts
new deposits, keeps the core deposit and obtains supplementary funding
from the interbank market. According to different term maturities and the
results of funding needs estimated from stressed scenarios, the Group
adjusts its asset structure (including loans, bonds investment, interbank
placement, etc.) to maintain sufficient liquid assets which provides adequate
funds in support of normal business needs and ensure its ability to raise funds
at a reasonable cost to serve external claims in case of emergency. The
Group is committed to diversify the use of funds and sources and tenors of
funding to avoid excessive concentration of assets and liabilities and prevent
triggering liquidity risk due to the break of funding strand when problem
occurred in one concentrated funding source. The Group has established
intra-group liquidity risk management guideline to manage the liquidity
funding among different entities within the Group, and to restrict their reliance
of funding on each other. The Group also pays attention to manage liquidity
risk created by off-balance sheet activities, such as loan commitments,
derivatives, options and other complex structured products. The Group has
an overall liquidity risk management strategy to cover the liquidity
management of foreign currency assets and liabilities, collateral, intra-day
liquidity, intra-group liquidity, the liquidity risk arising from other risks, etc., and
has formulated corresponding contingency plan. Where necessary, in order
to mitigate liquidity risk, the Group could take different mitigation actions
which include, but are not limited to sales of bonds in the secondary market,
funding from interbank market or repo in the money market, attracting new
deposits and keeping the core deposit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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The RC is the decision-making authority of liquidity risk management, and
assumes the ultimate responsibility of liquidity risk management. As
authorised by RC, ALCO exercises its oversight of liquidity risk and ensures
the daily operations of the Group are in accordance with risk appetite and
policies as set by the Board. FMD is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
liquidity risk. It cooperates with Financial Markets Department to assist the
ALCO to perform liquidity management functions according to their specific
responsibilities.

The Group established liquidity risk management indicators and limits to
identify, measure, monitor and control liquidity risk on daily basis. These
indicators and limits include, but are not limited to liquidity coverage ratio
(LCR), net stable funding ratio (NSFR), loan-to-deposit ratio, maximum
cumulative cash outflow (MCO) and liquidity cushion. The Group applies cash
flow analysis to assess the Group’s liquidity condition under normal
conditions and also performs a liquidity stress test (including institution
specific, general market crisis and combined crisis) and other methods at
least on monthly basis to assess the Group’s capability to withstand various
severe liquidity crises. Also, relevant management information systems such
as Assets and Liabilities Management System and Basel Liquidity Ratio
Management System are developed to provide data and the preparation for
regular management reports to facilitate liquidity risk management duties.

In accordance with the requirements of Supervisory Policy Manual LM-2
“Sound Systems and controls for Liquidity Risk Management” issued by the
HKMA, the Group has implemented behaviour model and assumptions of
cash flow analysis and stress test to enhance the Group’s cash flow analysis
under both normal and stressed conditions. In cash flow analysis under
normal circumstances, assumptions have been made relating to on-balance
sheet items (such as deposits from customers) and off-balance sheet items
(such as loan commitments). According to various characteristics of the
assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items, the Group forecasts the future
cash flow based on contractual maturity date and the assumptions of
customer behaviour and balance sheet changes. The Group establishes
MCO indicator which predicts the future 30 days maximum cumulative net
cash outflow in normal situations based on the above assumptions, to assess
if the Group has sufficient financing capacity to meet the cash flow gap in
order to achieve the objective of continuing operation. As at 31 December
2020, before taking the cash inflow through the sale of outstanding
marketable securities into consideration, the Bank’s 30-day cumulative cash
flow was a net cash inflow, amounting to HK4,614,063,000 (2019:
HK$8,400,908,000) and was in compliance with the internal limit
requirements.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 nigrEe Rk (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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In the liquidity stress test, institution specific, general market crisis and combined
crisis scenario has been set up, combined crisis scenario is a combination of
institution specific and general market crisis to assess the Group’s capability to
withstand a more severe liquidity crisis, with a more stringent set of assumptions
being adopted. Stress test assumptions include the run-off rate of retail,
wholesale and interbank deposits; drawdown rate of loan commitments and trade-
related contingent liabilities; delinquency ratio and rollover rate of customer loans;
and haircut of interbank placement and marketable securities. As at 31 December
2020, the Group was able to maintain a net cash inflow under the three stressed
scenarios, indicating the Group has the ability to meet financing needs under
stressed conditions. In addition, the Group has a policy in place to maintain a
liquidity cushion which includes high quality or comparable quality marketable
securities issued or guaranteed by sovereigns, central banks, public sector
entities or multilateral development banks with 0% or 20% risk weight or
marketable securities issued by non-financial corporate with a corresponding
external credit rating of A- or above to ensure funding needs even under stressed
scenarios. As at 31 December 2020, the liquidity cushion (before haircut) was
HK$19,425,985,000 (2019: HK$24,625,303,000). A contingency plan is being
established which details the conditions to trigger the plan based on stress test
results and early warning indicators, the action plans and relevant procedures and
responsibility of various departments.

The LCR is calculated in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules effective
from 1 January 2015, the Group, being classified as category 1 authorised
institution by the HKMA, is required to calculate LCR on consolidated basis.
During the year of 2020, the Group is required to maintain a LCR not less than
100%.

The NSFRis calculated in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules effective
from 1 January 2018, the Group, being classified as category 1 authorised
institution by the HKMA, is required to calculate NSFR on consolidated basis. The
Group is required to maintain a NSFR not less than 100%.

The Group’s liquidity risk management also covers new products or business
developments. Before launching a new product or business, the relevant
departments are required to go through a risk assessment process, which
includes the assessment of underlying liquidity risk and consideration of the
adequacy of the current risk management mechanism. Any material impact on
liquidity risk noted during the risk assessment process will be reported to RC for
approval.
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4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

A. Maturity analysis

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

The tables below analyse the Group’s assets and liabilities as at 31 December into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the end of the reporting

HEHE I H o047 date to the contractual maturity date.
HNERHE EE
B AfEEEELIEE
HAFRIER HA PR 7335 -
2020
—& =z REEE
B —EARN =@A +=@A —ZEHEF HFUE HEA &gt
Up to 1to3 3to12 1to5 Over 5
On demand 1 month months months years years Indefinite Total
BETIT BT BT BT B¥TIT BN TT B¥TT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
&iE Assets
EFIR S RFTGRIT R Cash and balances with
HoAth R 45 R banks and other financial
institutions 5,217,582 15,903,303 - - - - 1,850,947 22,971,832
TR 1T R EHoAth & Rl i % Placements with banks and
—ZE+ BN EH other financial institutions
> EHAERL maturing between one
and twelve months - - 7,384,601 55,697 - - - 7,440,298
e T E Derivative financial
instruments 95,385 631 22,621 1,391 20,477 - - 140,505
PR 5 Advances to customers and
trade bills 18,474,079 2,378,205 5,333,036 24,329,934 22,208,667 5,616,220 - 78,340,141
SEEE Investment in securities
— SREIMEDL AN B B — securities mandatorily
NIFRE 7 #8% measured at FVTPL - 585 10,517 95,851 71,503 59,772 62,599 300,827
— FERDANHES ST — securities designated at
NIFRE T #% FVTPL - 610 1,210 17,434 197,959 145,987 - 363,200
— DIONHAESE s A=At — securities at FVOCI
Bl etz 53,212 6,188,368 3,759,443 14,905,206 23,875,020 - 20,854 48,802,103
— DI A T E 555 — securities at amortised
cost - 6,291 632 426,171 917,907 - - 1,351,001
EYIE Investment properties - - - - - - 153,620 153,620
WIS ~ 250 R R A Properties, plant and
equipment - - - - - - 2,044,562 2,044,562
HEE (HFEEIRIE  Other assets (including
JIRIEFRTEEFE ) current and deferred tax
assets) 987,203 448,857 123,327 21,208 - - 25,689 1,606,284
BESE Total assets 24,827,461 24,926,850 16,635,387 39,852,892 47,291,533 5,821,979 4,158,271 163,514,373
=14 Liabilities
SRIT R HoAMh S Rl > Deposits and balances from
TR GEes banks and other financial
institutions (4,406,596) (12,094,343) (2,085,395) (1,981,301) - - - (20,567,635)
TSR T HE Derivative financial
instruments (13,360) (5,670)  (26,758) (2,761)  (26,847) - - (75,396)
F PR Deposits from customers ~ (40,680,848) (16,139,846) (34,802,381) (26,507,551) (4,442,405) - - (122,573,031)
HAMBETE R4 (s Other accounts and
AR IE Ry MR AE R I provisions (including
&) current and deferred tax
liabilities) (422,344) (1,217,258) (66,855)  (400,594)  (145,210)  (13,105) (138,645)  (2,404,011)
=i k] Total liabilities (45,523,148) (29,457,117) (36,981,389) (28,892,207) (4,614,462) (13,105) (138,645) (145,620,073)
RENE RO Net liquidity gap (20,695,687) (4,530,267) (20,346,002) 10,960,685 42,677,071 5,808,874 4,019,626 17,894,300
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

A. Maturity analysis (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2019
—%& =% FHEE
BiEE —EAN =EH +fEA —E2AF  HEMULE HHA “HEt
Up to 1t03 3to12 1t05 Over
On demand 1 month months months years 5 years Indefinite Total
BT AT BTt BT BT BT BN AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Assets
Cash and balances with
banks and other financial
institutions 6,104,131 10,633,966 - - - - 1,497,891 18,235,988
Placements with banks and
other financial institutions
maturing between one
and twelve months - - 3,506,091 1,313,121 - - - 4,819,212
Derivative financial
instruments 87,106 5,259 6,763 14,805 8,200 - - 122,133
Advances to customers and
trade bills 16,224,011 3,202,383 6,801,934 23,734,721 22,269,514 4,754,328 - 76,986,891
Investment in securities
— securities mandatorily
measured at FVTPL - 12,814 50,971 20,615 57,468 6,282 - 148,150
— securities designated at
FVTPL - 613 1,215 1,770 212,356 154,653 - 370,607
— securities at FVOCI
- 3,740,834 4,382,640 10,141,356 26,455,253 - 27,183 44,747,266
— securities at amortised
cost - 8,437 1,598 135,038 1,497,324 - - 1,642,397
Investment properties - - - - - - 237,150 237,150
Properties, plant and
equipment - - - - - - 2,021,072 2,021,072
Other assets (including
current and deferred tax
assets) 145,840 230,619 144,323 304 - - 2,829 523,915
Total assets 22,561,088 17,834,925 14,895,535 35,361,730 50,500,115 4,915,263 3,786,125 149,854,781
Liabilities
Deposits and balances from
banks and other financial
institutions (4,530,452) (5,308,622) (1,559,588) (6,348,801) - - - (17,747,463)
Derivative financial
instruments (6,246)  (15,683) (1,045) (5,799)  (11,588) - - (40,361)
Deposits from customers  (27,832,051) (20,780,489) (31,812,183) (34,016,778) (1,849,933) - - (116,291,434)
Other accounts and
provisions (including
current and deferred tax
liabilities) (581,226)  (371,590)  (51,439) (292,270)  (153,966)  (17,025)  (185,018) (1,652,534)
Total liabilities (32,949,975) (26,476,384) (33,424,255) (40,663,648) (2,015,487) (17,025)  (185,018) (135,731,792)
Net liquidity gap (10,388,887) (8,641,459) (18,528,720) (5,301,918) 48,484,628 4,898,238 3,601,107 14,122,989

A LB R TRl
i, AE - WINERE
TRE S W B
7 A AT I
) 2 R 5y AR A
1 o FAAREI 2 5y
1T 48 SR 5 TR 6 S R
I BAYR B
AT B {0 A B 248 A
(arg) -

The Group has reported assets such as advances and debt securities which have
been overdue as “On demand”. In the case of an asset that is repayable by different
payments or instalments, only that portion of the asset that is actually overdue is
reported as overdue. Any part of the asset that is not due is reported according to
the residual maturity. The above assets are stated after deduction of provisions, if
any.
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4. &RiEfEEHE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
43 FErELEE (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
B. #&NEHI B o 2 RITR B. Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities
BER
(a) JEFTETEZHER (a) Non-derivative cash flows
TEMT T AEER 12 The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group as at 31 December
A 31 A I Sma for non-derivative financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturity.
BRI ELIEIIAH YR
BB -
2020
—Z =%
—EARN =EA +ZEA —EHE HEME dEEt
Up to 1t0 3 3to12 1t0 5 Over 5
1 month months months years years Total
BT BT AETT AETT BETIT BETIT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
= Financial liabilities
$RIT R H 4 Fif% Deposits and balances
W 12 R AE6e from banks and other
financial institutions (16,508,806)  (2,096,275) (2,011,615) - - (20,616,696)
& PR Deposits from customers (56,828,247) (34,870,066)  (26,684,489) (4,852,496) - (123,235,298)
Hitrsai & Other financial liabilities (1,592,607) (15,147) (210,367) (145,210) (13,105) (1,976,436)
SRE B Total financial liabilities (74,929,660) (36,981,488)  (28,906,471) (4,997,706) (13,105) (145,828,430)
2019
—% =%
—{EARN ={EA +=EH —EAHF FELLE HEEt
Up to 1t03 3to 12 1t05 Over 5
1 month months months years years Total
AT AT AT AHTIT BHTIT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
SRS E Financial liabilities
$R1T R Hfth £ Fit% Deposits and balances
W7 R4Ees from banks and other
financial institutions (9,841,190)  (1,567,829) (6,465,183) - - (17,874,202)
& PR Deposits from customers (48,633,964) (31,946,437)  (34,451,129) (2,138,214) - (117,169,744)
= Other financial liabilities (759,801) (15,108) (137,267)  (153,966) (17,025)  (1,083,167)
SR R Total financial liabilities (59,234,955) (33,529,374)  (41,053,579) (2,292,180) (17,025) (136,127,113)
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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(b) Derivative cash flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

B. Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)

The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group by remaining
contractual maturity as at 31 December for derivative financial liabilities that
will be settled on a net basis, together with all derivative financial instruments
that will be settled on a gross basis regardless of whether the contract is in an
asset or liability position. The amounts disclosed in the tables are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows, except for certain derivatives which are

disclosed at fair value.

The Group’s derivative financial instruments that will be settled on a net basis
mainly include interest rate swaps whereas derivative financial instruments
that will be settled on a gross basis mainly include currency forwards and

currency swaps.

2020
—Z =F
—EAN =@EA +=ER —ZEAFE #AFMUE H8st
Up to 1to3 3to12 1to5 Over 5
1 month months months years years Total
BETT BETI BT B%TT BETT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
RS E 2 Derivative financial
e S =Yt liabilities settled on a
net basis (14,415) (4,325) (9,787) (12,456) - (40,983)
HrHEEER S 2 Derivative financial
e =A instruments settled on a
gross basis
Total inflow 5,448,549 7,748,929 1,532,786 - - 14,730,264
Total outflow (5,453,529) (7,754,352) (1,538,816) - - (14,746,697)
2019
—Z =7
G ={EH +fEA —ZEHF AFME dEst
Up to 1t03 3to 12 1t05 Over 5
1 month months months years years Total
BT BT BT BT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
OB 4RSS E > Derivative financial
e =Yt liabilities settled on a
net basis (6,583) (1,617) (1,491) (8,336) - (18,027)
AR ESEE > Derivative financial
e =R instruments settled on a
gross basis
RN Total inflow 2,201,560 2,054,737 4,109,610 - - 8,365,907
KiViiant Total outflow (2,221,216) (2,047,317) (4,093,243) - - (8,361,776)
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4. SREREE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
43 mErEsER (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
B. #&QEHH Sz £ B. Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)

Bem (&)

(c) BEEE&FERINER (c) Off-balance sheet items
EHUKE Loan commitments
HRAAEER 2020 4 12 The contractual amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial
H 31 HRE PR ERE instruments as at 31 December 2020 that the Group commits to extend credit
R HAMREE 2 TR to customers and other facilities amounted to HK$13,508,335,000 (2019:
TH » HO%SuE n s HK$12,132,223,000).
13,508,335,000 T (2019
& 12,132,223,000
TC) °
A TS 1B R R HA A T Rl Financial guarantees and other financial facilities
AEEE 2020 /£ 12 H 31 Financial guarantees and other financial facilities of the Group as at 31
E 2 B s 4 (7 B B A A s December 2020 amounting to HK$708,155,000 (2019: HK$505,653,000) are
BB & #H B B K maturing no later than one year.

708,155,000 5= (2019
4 1 R 505,653,000 7T )
HEEAH DA —4F -
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4. GRRREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 HREH

4.4 Capital management
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) S R R A
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The major objective of the Group’s capital management is to maximise total
shareholders’ return while maintaining a capital adequacy position in relation to the
Group’s overall risk profile. The ALCO periodically reviews the Group’s capital
structure and adjusts the capital mix where appropriate to maintain an optimal
balance among risk, return and capital adequacy.

The Group has developed and maintained a sound framework of policies and
controls on capital management to support the development of the Group’s
business and to meet the statutory capital adequacy ratio requirement. The ALCO
monitors the Group’s capital adequacy requirement. The Group has complied with
all the statutory capital requirements of the HKMA for the reported periods in
respect of banking operation as further elaborated below:

In prior years, the Group adopted the foundation internal ratings-based (“FIRB”)
approach to calculate the credit risk capital charge for the majority of its non-
securitisation exposures. Since 1 October 2020, the Group has adopted the
standardised (credit risk) (“STC”) approach to calculate all the credit risk capital
charge. The Group continues to adopt the standardised credit valuation adjustment
(“CVA”) method to calculate the capital charge for the CVA risk of the counterparty.

Since April 2020, the HKMA has approved the Group to adopt the standardised
(market risk) (“STM”) approach to calculate general market risk capital charge for
foreign exchange and interest rate exposures and exclude part of our Group’s CNY
structural FX positions in the calculation of the market risk capital charge. The
Group continues to adopt the standardised (market risk) (“STM”) approach to
calculate the market risk capital charge for the remaining exposures.

The Group continues to adopt standardised (operational risk) (STO) approach to
calculate the operational risk capital charge.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 HREHE (8D

4.4 Capital management (continued)

AREEEFY 2020 LB HNE
BEARRHEREF UG & RE
FEEEBRTM FHEEER
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FOEALER - [ > AEEEIREE
FIALAY & A LR A E T AR &
[l > DUSCRSES S I i S R e
BEARRTASUER - AEERIRA
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HE o hEEREEHZAEE
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RIEAREERE SR RFHEAR
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The Group has continued to adopt an internal capital adequacy assessment
process (ICAAP) to comply with the HKMA'’s requirements in the Supervisory
Policy Manual “Supervisory Review Process” in 2020. Based on the HKMA's
guidelines on Pillar I, ICAAP has been initiated to assess the extra capital needed
to cover the material risks not captured or not adequately captured under Pillar |,
and therefore minimum Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio, minimum Tier 1 capital
ratio and minimum Total capital ratio are determined. Meanwhile, operating ranges
for the aforementioned capital ratios have also been established which enable the
flexibility for future business growth and efficiency of capital utilisation. The Group
considers this ICAAP as an ongoing process for capital management and
periodically reviews and adjusts its capital structure where appropriate in relation
to the overall risk profile.

In addition, the capital plan of the Group is drawn up annually and then submitted
to the Board of Directors for approval after endorsement of the ALCO. The plan is
built up by assessing the implications of various factors upon capital adequacy
such as the business strategies, return on equity, risk appetite, credit rating, as well
as regulatory requirements. Hence, the future capital requirement is determined
and capital sources are identified also. The plan is to ensure the Group maintains
adequate capital and appropriate capital structure which align with its business
development needs, thereby achieving an optimal balance among risk, return and
capital adequacy.
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5. Fair values of assets and liabilities
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the
financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13, “Fair value measurement”. The categorisation are determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
methods and based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

— Level 1: based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities. This category includes debt instruments issued by certain
governments and certain exchange-traded derivative contracts.

— Level 2: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly. This category includes majority of the OTC derivative contracts, debt
securities and certificates of deposit with quote from pricing services vendors. It
also includes properties with insignificant adjustments made to observable
market inputs.

— Level 3: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable. This category
includes equity investment and debt instruments with significant unobservable
components. It also includes properties with significant adjustments made to
observable market inputs.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a
recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

The Group has an established governance structure and controls framework to
ensure that fair values are either determined or validated by control units
independent of the front offices. Control units have overall responsibility for
independent verification of valuation results from front line businesses and all other
significant fair value measurements. Specific controls include verification of
observable pricing inputs; review and approval for new models and changes to
models; calibration and back-testing of models against observed market
transactions; analysis and investigation of significant daily valuation movements;
review of significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. Significant
valuation issues are reported to senior management, RC and AC.

The Group uses valuation techniques or broker / dealer quotations to determine
the fair value of financial instruments when unable to obtain the open market
quotation in active markets.

The main parameters used in valuation techniques for financial instruments held
by the Group include bond prices, interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity
and stock prices, volatilities, counterparty credit spreads and others, which are
mostly observable and obtainable from open market.
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5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value
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The technique used to calculate the fair value of the following financial
instruments is as below:

Debt securities and certificates of deposit

The fair value of these instruments is determined by obtaining quoted market
prices from exchange, dealer or independent pricing service vendors or using
discounted cash flow technique. Discounted cash flow model is a valuation
technique that measures present value using estimated expected future cash
flows from the instruments and then discounts these flows using a discount rate
or discount margin that reflects the credit spreads required by the market for
instruments with similar risk. These inputs are observable or can be
corroborated by observable or unobservable market data.

Derivatives

OTC derivative contracts include forward, swap and option contracts on foreign
exchange, interest rate, equity or commodity. The fair values of these contracts
are mainly measured using valuation techniques such as discounted cash flow
models and option pricing models. The inputs can be observable or
unobservable market data. Observable inputs include interest rate, foreign
exchange rates, equity and stock prices, commodity prices and volatilities.
Unobservable inputs such as volatility surface may be used for less commonly
traded option products which are embedded in structured deposits. For certain
complex derivative contracts, the fair values are determined based on broker /
dealer price quotations.

Credit valuation adjustments (“CVA”) and debit valuation adjustments (“DVA”)
are applied to the Group’s OTC derivatives. These adjustments reflect market
factors movement, expectations of counterparty creditworthiness and the
Group’s own credit spread respectively. They are mainly determined for each
counterparty and are dependent on expected future values of exposures, default
probabilities and recovery rates.
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5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.1 A ESTERVER TR (8

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

A DPERIFR

A. Fair value hierarchy

2020
FE FER H=ER gt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BT BTt B¥Tx
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
SRERE Financial assets
SR DA P E B LA AJEZS Investment in securities
e (MEE 23) mandatorily measured at
fair value through profit
or loss (Note 23)
- B - Debt securities - 238,228 - 238,228
- Tk - Certificates of deposit - - - -
- e - Equity securities - 62,599 - 62,599
HE BN ESE( L AIELS Investment in securities
e (MEE 23) designated at fair value
through profit or loss
(Note 23)
- BB - Debt securities - 363,200 - 363,200
e T E (FEE21) Derivative financial
instruments (Note 21) - 140,505 - 140,505
PAASEAES AT A AU Investment in securities
HHEEE (M 23) measured at FVOCI
(Note 23)
- EHEsF - Debt securities 2,064,144 37,988,869 - 40,053,013
- ke - Certificates of deposit - 8,728,236 - 8,728,236
- Rfrass - Equity securities - - 20,854 20,854
2,064,144 47,521,637 20,854 49,606,635
A= Financial liabilities
PSR T AR (FEE21) Derivative financial
Instruments (Note 21) - (75,396) - (75,396)
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5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.1 A ESTERVER TR (8

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

A NPERIEE ()

A. Fair value hierarchy (continued)

2019
BEs ETESR BEER HEst
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
SRERE Financial assets
SR DU P E B LE AJEZS Investment in securities
e (MEE 23) m_andatorlly measured_ at
fair value through profit
or loss (Note 23)
- fEEEH - Debt securities - 89,739 - 89,739
- Tk - Certificates of deposit - 58,411 - 58,411
- BefnEE sz - Equity securities - - - _
FHE R LA EEEBE AR Investment in securities
Tk (EE 23) designated at fair value
through profit or loss
(Note 23)
- EBEF - Debt securities - 370,607 - 370,607
s TE (FfEE21) Derivative financial
instruments (Note 21) - 122,133 - 122,133
DU ESE BT AEA 2 EU Investment in securities
HHEEE (M 23) measured at FVOCI
(Note 23)
- B - Debt securities 6,966,205 32,313,573 - 39,279,778
- ke - Certificates of deposit - 5,440,305 - 5,440,305
- RS - Equity securities - - 27,183 27,183
6,966,205 38,394,768 27,183 45,388,156
B == Financial liabilities

PrEsf TR (FfEk21)

REEE L S REE M AEE
NI HE—IE i&&%ﬂ: &
Z IR (2019 4 © i

Derivative financial
Instruments (Note 21)

- (40,361)

- (40,361)

There were no financial asset and liability transfers between Level 1 and Level
2 for the Group during the year (2019: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

B. Reconciliation of level 3 items

VAT ik (N R et
ZERRE

Financial assets at FVOCI

EpRgs [dEces 4t
Debt Equity
securities securities Total
BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
At 1 January 2020 - 27,183 27,183
Losses
— Other comprehensive income
— Change in fair value - (6,329) (6,329)
Purchases - - -
Sales - - -
Transfer out of Level 3 - - -
At 31 December 2020 - 20,854 20,854
DAAPEE bat A B Az
2 BRERE
Financial assets at FVOCI
Eegr REfegsr HEEt
Debt Equity
securities securities Total
T T T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 January 2019 - 21,465 21,465
Gains
— Other comprehensive income
— Change in fair value - 5,718 5,718
Purchases - - -
Sales - - -
Transfer out of Level 3 - - -
At 31 December 2019 - 27,183 27,183

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, financial instruments categorised as level

3 are mainly comprised of unlisted equity shares.
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51 N ESENSRITE (8) 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
B. E=BATEE &8 (&) B. Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

FE LT RHERY A E RIS BZR The fair values of unlisted equity shares are estimated using the

R T7 HY S L T 4 discounted cash flow model, on the basis of an analysis of the investee’s

R FEAEER G REA SRS E financial position and results, or with reference to multiples of comparable

oI LR BT A 2 P T E listed companies, such as average of the price / earning ratios of

/S BFIES > BRG]t comparables or net asset value, if appropriate comparables are not

ttiﬁﬂ’]“ﬁl R ECE R FE available. The fair value is positively correlated to the price / earning ratios
o NEBLE AT A 2 o] bR of appropriate comparables or net asset values. Had the net asset value

W%ZH:T?ZE R EFEIERR of the underlying equity investments increased / decreased by 5%, the

% - ERREREN A EET Group’s other comprehensive income would have increased / decreased

BRI 5% RIARER > & by HK$1,043,000 (2019: HK$1,359,000).

i 2= T i 2 R B D R D
1,043,000 jT (2019 4 : HH
1,359,000 jT) -

AR BEYIREIZESH TR
Valuation technique Significant unobservable Range
Input(s)

FE BRI PEE( LG A | EEFE N N
GRS TH
Unlisted equity instruments at | Net asset value Not applicable Not applicable
fair value through other
comprehensive income

BB IE(IES 17.20%

Discounted cash flow model Discount rate (2019: 11.69%)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time based on relevant
market information and information about various financial instruments. The
following methods and assumptions have been used to estimate the fair value

of each class of financial instrument as far as practicable.

Balances with / from banks and other financial institutions and trade bills

Substantially all the financial assets and liabilities mature within one year from
the end of the reporting date and their carrying value approximates fair value.

Advances to customers

Substantially all the advances to customers are on floating rate terms, bear
interest at prevailing market interest rates and their carrying value

approximates fair value.

Debt securities at amortised cost

A discounted cash flow model is used based on a current yield curve

appropriate for the remaining term to maturity.

Deposits from customers

Substantially all the deposits from customers mature within one year from the

end of the reporting date and their carrying value approximates fair value.
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5.2 JEIAESTENESMTE (&) 5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value (continued)
Bz DA_b IR AME B SEE A R Rl The following tables set out the carrying values and fair values of the financial
THEAN  PEREIELIAFES 2198 instruments not measured at fair value, except for the above with their carrying
Bl CE ZAREEMNAEE - values being approximation of fair values.
2020
AT NE
Carrying value Fair value
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000
SREE Financial assets
DUBkeRCAST E0YEE 5 Investment in securities measured at
(FF2E 23) amortised cost (Note 23) 1,351,001 1,364,469
2019
WRAIE AE
Carrying value Fair value
AT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
SREE Financial assets
DI A S B Investment in securities measured at
(FsE 23) amortised cost (Note 23) 1,642,397 1,661,545
TERIIRCHEH A FEA SR The following tables show the fair value hierarchy for financial instruments with
BZ NP ESE - fair values disclosed.
2020
F—Ek = 14 B4R &t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

AETIL BT ABRTIT  BERTT
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$’000

SEEE Financial assets
DB ER ARG EAYE 75 Investment in securities measured
at amortised cost - 1,364,469 - 1,364,469
2019
E—TEk FE B FE=JE 4G
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HERETTT HHTTT HRTT HRTT
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SEEE Financial assets
D#er AT 207555 Investment in securities measured
at amortised cost - 1,661,545 - 1,661,545
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5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.3 Non-financial assets measured at fair value
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The Group uses valuation techniques or quoted market prices in active market
to determine the fair value of non-financial assets.

Investment properties and premises

The Group’s properties can be divided into investment properties and premises.
All of the Group’s investment properties and premises were revalued as at year
end. This year, the valuations were carried out by an independent firm of
chartered surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited, who have among their staff
Fellow and Members of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent
experience in the locations and categories of properties being valued. The
Group’s Management had discussions with the surveyors on the valuation
methods, valuation assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is
performed at each interim and annual reporting date. There has been no change
in valuation methods during the year and the methods used are consistent with
last year.

(i) Valuation methods and inputs used in Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair value of properties classified as Level 2 is determined using either
the market comparison approach by reference to recent sales price of
comparable properties or the income capitalisation approach by reference to
market rent and capitalisation rate, with appropriate adjustments to reflect the
differences between the comparable properties and the subject properties.
These adjustments are considered as insignificant to the entire measurement.

The Group’s properties are located in Hong Kong and major cities in the PRC
where the property markets are considered active and transparent. Sales
price, market rent and capitalisation rate of comparable properties are
generally observable either directly or indirectly in these markets.

(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of all of the Group’s properties classified as Level 3 is
determined using either the market comparison approach or the income
capitalisation approach, adjusted for a premium or a discount specific to the
features of the Group’s properties compared to the comparable properties.
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5. EEMNAEBINARZE (8) 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.3 AR EENIEESRIEE (8) 5.3 Non-financial assets measured at fair value (continued)

EYERFE Investment properties and premises
(i) AREE=EHRAFEENE (i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (continued)
o ()
PUR B B A B SRS The valuation methods and significant unobservable inputs used in the fair
MRS =R REEYIZEFT value measurement of the Group’s properties classified as Level 3 are as
FRARASE )7 A R AR AT follows:
ZRE -
(EN=WapEs BEARNBIEEHEE hnkESEs N AT ZE R R BN AR R R
Valuation method Significant Weighted Relationship of unobservable inputs
unobservable inputs average to fair value.
THGLLEUER | YIEE S Al b S -5.37% e {ERkE - A ERS -
W AE AL bz (HrE) (2019: 5.10%) The higher the premium,
Market comparison Premium / (discount) on the higher the fair value.
approach or income features of the property
capitalisation compared to comparable rigiim » A PEBYE -
approach properties The higher the discount,
the lower the fair value.
VISEAR AL E M E b Premium / (discount) on features of the property is determined after taken into
28,/ (rfE) Ty e account various factors, such as time for market movement, location,
LN ERE EAYE accessibility, building age/condition, floor level, size, layout etc., with
5o PIaNpse ez i E) - reference to the differences in features with comparable properties.

i E ~ (M~ fle IR0 -
J& ~ HifH -~ fiREFEE -

A AP ENESR A. Fair value hierarchy
2020
TRk HEREH SBE=EHR i
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BT BTt BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
JESRIEE Non-financial assets

rEYsE (M 24)
VIS ~ dshh peast (FTEE 25)

- B

FEREE
Ry (M 24)

VI - dbt Bt (I 25)

- FE

KREE IEEMERENTENG
BE YR g M
8% (2019 4 @ %) -

Investment properties

(Note 24) - - 153,620 153,620
Properties, plant and

equipment

(Note 25)

— Premises - - 1,706,828 1,706,828

- - 1,860,448 1,860,448

2019
—fg% ETEH  FE=REEk s
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

BT BTt BTt BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Non-financial assets

Investment properties

(Note 24) - - 237,150 237,150
Properties, plant and

equipment

(Note 25)

— Premises - - 1,707,835 1,707,835

- - 1,944,985 1,944,985

There were no non-financial asset transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 for
the Group during the year (2019: Nil).
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SV BERRIE (8)

5. REMSENAHE (8D

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.3 DIAMER BRFESRIERE (8

5.3 Non-financial assets measured at fair value (continued)

B. Reconciliation of level 3 items

B. F=EHRAHEEH
2020

JEEREE

Non-financial assets

Y% - B R
Properties, plant
and equipment

KBk BE
Investment
properties Premises
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000
20201 H1H At 1 January 2020 237,150 1,707,835
ezt (E518) Gains / (losses)
- Wassk — Income statement
- LEVEAFEFEE — Net loss from fair value
7 FEsiE adjustments on
investment properties (7,330) -
- EitFEZFEE — Net loss from
revaluation of
premises - (239)
- FAtr s — Other comprehensive
income
- BB — Revaluation of
premises - (58,186)
e Depreciation - (23,192)
HE Additions - 4,410
A =gk Transfer into Level 3 - -
EEC Ay Reclassification (76,200) 76,200
PR S0 75 2H Exchange difference - -
#20204F12 H 31 H At 31 December 2020 153,620 1,706,828
#2020 4 12 A 31 HERA Total unrealised losses for
JEEREENFENE AU the year included in income
TR e statement for non-financial
K T assets held as at 31
December 2020
- BN EFEE — Net loss from fair value
SR adjustments on
investment properties (7,330) -
— EiEEIFEE — Net loss from revaluation
of premises - (239)
(7,330) (239)
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5. EEMNAEINARZE (8) 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.3 AN EAEBRIESRMEE (8) 5.3 Non-financial assets measured at fair value (continued)

B. £=j@4krEE ST (&) B. Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)
2019

JEEREE

Non-financial assets

Y3k ~ S50 R ti
Properties, plant
and equipment

By R
Investment
properties Premises
AT T AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
®20194F1 H1H At 1 January 2019 233,350 1,696,410
Wt~ (E5tE)D Gains / (losses)
- sk — Income statement
- BEYEN T — Net gain from fair value
2T AR adjustments on
investment properties 4,846 -
- EitFEZFEE — Net loss from
revaluation of
premises - 2,794
- FAtr s — Other comprehensive
income
- BEEM — Revaluation of
premises - 27,006
e Depreciation - (22,528)
HE Additions - 3,107
A =gk Transfer into Level 3 - ;
ECvan| Reclassification (1,0486) 1,046
PR S0, 75 2H Exchange difference - -
2019412 H 31 H At 31 December 2019 237,150 1,707,835
J/* 2019 4E 12 H 31 HEFAM Total unrealised gains for the
JEEFEENFENE AU year included in income
HEI R EIRSYEsE statement for non-financial
assets held as at 31
December 2019
- BEMEAN T EFE — Net gain from fair value
FPULER adjustments on
investment properties 4,846 -
- EHfiFEE T — Net gain from revaluation
of premises - 2,794
4,846 2,794
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6. JEFIEUWA

SR BRI

(continued)

FIRUA
TR (R 2 R HL A <5 Rl A A Y
A

HP L
I

3t

R,

[ 546 Rt ELA <5 Rl A A 472 T EY 73K
H

EINEEN

HEAE

FiAth

AHSHA

FELAA A Lat AR 2 &
5 7 L <l 2 {3 P 2 A A
A RS S o 3l By e
3,816,961,000 7T (2019 £ : 3
W 4,192,248,000 1) K
2,133,677,000 7T (2019 45 : 3
##% 2,189,574,000 7T.) -

6. Net interest income

Interest income
Due from banks and other financial institutions

Advances to customers and trade bills
Investment in securities
Others

Interest expense
Due to banks and other financial institutions

Deposits from customers

Lease liabilities
Others

Net interest income

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2020 2019
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
224,508 378,279

2,638,468 2,753,187
980,139 1,071,164
2,880 5,517
3,845,995 4,208,147
(175,228) (151,730)
(1,949,565) (2,030,662)
(8,360) (5,207)
(524) (1,975)
(2,133,677) (2,189,574)
1,712,318 2,018,573

Included within interest income and interest expense are HK$3,816,961,000 (2019:
HK$4,192,248,000) and HK$2,133,677,000 (2019: HK$2,189,574,000) for financial assets
and financial liabilities that are not recognised at fair value through profit or loss respectively.
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7. FRBENESKA 7. Net fee and commission income

2020 2019
BT AT
HK$°000 HK$ 000
BEERAESIA Fee and commission income
Frl Insurance 141,239 175,423
Fegs & Securities brokerage 115,087 74,216
S Loan commissions 423,120 285,575
eI Payment services 29,083 33,677
P L 4 Bills commissions 22,440 14,641
REF Safe deposit box 20,463 19,849
HE0H Funds distribution 8,193 7,789
HAth Others 75,339 56,084
834,964 667,254
BEERAESSTH Fee and commission expense
Feea Securities brokerage (17,231) (12,540)
Hoftl Others (14,310) (11,716)
(31,541) (24,256)
BPREERAESWA Net fee and commission income 803,423 642,998
HFg : Of which arise from:
JELAAN HEELET AR 2 Financial assets or financial liabilities not at fair value
EREESGE A E through profit or loss
- IR E HEUTA - Fee and commission income 445,561 300,217
- ARASE R AReS - Fee and commission expense (272) (261)
445,289 299,956
SEb M HM ZEEEE) Trust and other fiduciary activities
- eBsE AU A - Fee and commission income 6,886 6,704
- RSB B e - Fee and commission expense (1,665) (1,358)
5,221 5,346
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w

8. FXHM (BHE) /U 8. Net trading (loss) / gain

=
2020 2019
AT HTT
HK$’000 HK$’000
5 (BstR) /MosRe Net (loss) / gain from:
YNEAZ 5 Fe NERS B R b Foreign exchange and foreign exchange
products (43,903) 32,448
s DA HESE s AR Net gain / (loss) on investment in securities
2 BN (1) mandatorily measured at fair value
through profit or loss 4,314 (300)
FIETE Interest rate instruments (5,297) (6,257)
i Commodities 304 50
(44,582) 25,941
9. Hh&mi&EE > FZS 9. Net gain on other financial assets
2020 2019
BT HAETIT
HK$’000 HK$°000
DR AT B8 5ilias Net gain on investment in securities measured
at amortised cost 5,997 -
DA B bst A E At 2 mEiuk Net gain on investment in securities measured
W BB at FVoClI 306,638 69,778
Hofr Others (366) (289)
312,269 69,489
10. HEANKRBUTA 10. Other operating income
2020 2019
BB BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
AR EREEUA Dividend income from investment in securities
- JELTRANE - Unlisted investments 2,171 4,437
EEYZEZ FHELEIA Gross rental income from investment properties 4,513 6,631
HREEYIZEZ WA Incomings in respect of investment properties 227 255
HAh, Others 2,329 992
9,240 12,315

A 2020 FENERIREYIZE There are no direct operating expenses included in the outgoings in respect of investment
SR GE BN R HEE properties related to investment properties that were not let during 2020 (2019: Nil).

M EREE S (2019

) o
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1. FEREE SR 11. Net charge of impairment allowances
2020 2019
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$ 000
BEE R E S Advances to customers and trade bills 255,715 312,622
BHEE Investment in securities 352,754 13,593
FERIAT ~ ST R H A Balances with central banks, banks and other financial
RlRREAEER institutions 1,427 159
Hir e zE Other financial assets 3,608 597
HEAERIN Off-balance sheet 24,849 18,374
638,353 345,345
12. BT H 12. Operating expenses
2020 2019
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
NEEH (BEEEME) Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)
- BN R E A - Salaries and other costs 696,510 580,415
- BIREA - Pension cost 33,693 33,209
730,203 613,624
G R CRaLkE Premises and equipment expenses
) (excluding depreciation)
- FEMS - Rental of premises 59 80
- EERHY - Information technology 12,102 9,546
- Hfth - Others 11,105 13,676
23,266 23,302
#res (BfisE25) Depreciation (Note 25) 123,170 95,565
- BRYEE - S Rt - Owned properties, plant and equipment 37,909 31,529
- [FFRE&E - Right-of-use assets 85,261 64,036
T AT < Auditors’ remuneration 4,194 6,315
- FEaT IR - Audit services 3,406 2,793
- JEREETHRS - Non-audit services 788 3,522
HAn & T H Other operating expenses 239,390 206,104
1,120,223 944,910

13. EYENEEFE 13, Net (loss) / gain from fair value adjustments on investment
ZE (B /s properties

2020 2019
AT AT IT
HK$’000 HK$’000
AN RS Net (loss) / gain from fair value adjustments on
F (EE) JUEs investment properties (Note 24)
(Ff5E 24) (7,330) 4,846
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14. HE SEEY% - 28 14. Net (loss) / gain from disposal / revaluation of properties, plant and

MEEEZE (B
B) /s

VR ~ [ R S
ZAFEAR

HitBEZF (R /I
z (5L 25)

15. fR18 15.

SrRETER RN Z R TRAH R
T

AR
A
- FENEFARIH
- TEHER B A

EMIH
- FENEFARIH

RIERTIE
WA A
(BfF5E 290

EA BRI
SIS 16.5%
(2019 4 : 16.5% ) H2# -
SN2 B £
s PR AR A B
BRI 2 BT
st

equipment

Net loss from disposal of equipment, fixtures and
fittings
Net (loss) / gain on revaluation of premises (Note 25)

Taxation

Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents:

Current tax
Hong Kong profits tax
- Current year taxation
- Under-provision in prior year

Overseas taxation
- Current year taxation

Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences
(Note 29)

2020 2019
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000

(8) (71)

(239) 2,794

(247) 2,723

2020 2019
AT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000

106,965 146,318
4,631 24
111,596 146,342
89,704 79,979
201,300 226,321
(24,364) 5,048
176,936 231,369

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxation on overseas profits has

been calculated on the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates of taxation

prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.
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15.

‘»’fv’éﬂ)ﬂ‘ R M=

w

IE (8

AR E A A v A R U
FERUIH > RIS R B AR
SHRAVRIHAERAT

BRAAT A

FEF# 16.5% (2019 4F

16.5% ) STEMFIE

oAt i AR A2 AR

TR ZIA

R _EA AR F 2
(EXase i

IR EI— AR IR
NEIS it

B AT

15. Taxation (continued)

Profit before taxation

Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%)

Effect of different taxation rates in another
jurisdiction

Income not subject to taxation

Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes
Under-provision in prior year

Additional tier 1 capital securities dividend payment
Foreign withholding tax

Taxation charge

Effective tax rate
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that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong Kong is as follows:

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation that differs from the theoretical amount

2020 2019
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000

1,020,196 1,493,937
168,332 246,500
18,660 41,767
(24,202) (52,424)
23,726 12,478
4,631 24
(16,793) (16,976)
2,582 -
176,936 231,369
17.34% 15.49%
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Cr e B ERRMTEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)
16. R RZAFIR 16. Dividends and Distributions
(i) PEERAE R TS R (i) Dividends payable to equity holders attributable to the previous financial year,
FERE IR approved and paid during the year
2020 2019
57 L 571,154 k]
Per share* Total Per share Total
B BT bt BRETIT
HK$ HK$°000 HK$ HK$’'000
AL K S Final dividend in respect of
TERER AR E the previous financial
year, approved and paid
during the year 0.2 373,650 80 298,920
*2019 45 H 30 Hit » & * With effect from 30 May 2019, every one issued share in the capital of the Bank was
SRITREA T 1 B 88T subdivided into 500 subdivided shares (the “Share Subdivision”), the dividend per
B R4l By 500 BEr4mRs (7 share for the period ended 31 December 2020 was calculated by reference to the
("Bt el ) > BE issued shares after the Share Subdivision.
2020 4 12 H 31 HikHA
MY R S LAHR 4% Y
BITRETE -
(i) AFEAAIE BT REFI (i) During the year, amount paid on perpetual non-cumulative subordinated additional tier
— BRI 1 capital securities is HK$101,776,000 (2019: HK$102,882,000).

Ey &l 101,776,000 JT
(2019 4 : & ¥
102,882,000 i) -
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SEp BRI (8

17. BIRIEFI A

AEEE LG T ALEE B TSR E #
WETE LR E Gaeip]) B
O Z ISR ORaT H R o SR ORank
Zsaiiat 8 o RBRECERIRGT
# - B SRR RG2S H
PR B AR 2 5% - T L
2R R B A HEH 2 5%
E15% % (R B ZRFHE
H)- (R A FERRIR - FEATR RS
{8 F &% 11 BLAR S 42 i 104E 21
DL RSN U 100% 2 {2 12k
A IS EEN R T [RE
LR R T A% Lk AT A (Bl
BRoN) - ATULELB0% E90% 2 & 3
K - B EARURZ RO
ST EIERET) PR -

WE% (aisefRpl) 120004£12H
1H BN - A SEETR 2 E T SRR
fli Zsatiest# > Zat#l s ZeeA
B SRE RSB (R Ak (E AR &
F] > SR EE R PRI R
WAEEHARAT -

BE20205£12H31H > IR
A4810,0007T (20194 © 4
713,0007T ) Z IR U fitRKT% - IR
PRt &) 2 fEa B & R B
14,701,0007T (20194 : 44
14,892,0007% ) » [ A4 ][] 5 7
Eat B 2 ORI B
7,058,000 7 (20194F : 497
6,317,0007T )

18. EXEMiE

R (EBATIIRG) (5F6225)
36381 F /A Fl (B EFFILE
B 1 AR B AR T
A T R 5
Z RS RSB RU 2 Bi
BT

HEREE
HoA
- FEAFR B R
- BB AtAL
- Hth (BB REHEFO

AR T RILIFTH
Z B x4 R 752,360,000 7T
(2019 : 312,604,000 ) -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

17.

18.

Retirement benefit costs

Defined contribution schemes for the Group’s employees are ORSO schemes
exempted under the MPF Schemes Ordinance and the BOC-Prudential Easy Choice
MPF Scheme. Under the ORSO schemes, employees make monthly contributions to
the ORSO schemes equal to 5% of their basic salaries, while the employer makes
monthly contributions equal to 5% to 15% of the employees’ monthly basic salaries,
depending on years of service. The employees are entitled to receive 100% of the
employer’s contributions upon retirement, early retirement or termination of
employment after completing 10 years of service. Employees with 3 to 9 years of
service are entitled to receive the employer’s contributions at a scale ranging from
30% to 90% upon termination of employment for other reasons other than summary
dismissal. All employer’s contributions are subjected to MPF Schemes Ordinance.

With the implementation of the MPF Schemes Ordinance on 1 December 2000, the
Group also participates in the BOC-Prudential Easy Choice MPF Scheme, of which
the trustee is BOCI-Prudential Trustee and the investment manager is BOCI-
Prudential Manager.

The Group’s total contributions made to the ORSO schemes for the year ended 31
December 2020 amounted to approximately HK$14,701,000 (2019: approximately
HK$14,892,000), after a deduction of forfeited contributions of approximately
HK$810,000 (2019: approximately HK$713,000). For the MPF Scheme, the Group
contributed approximately HK$7,058,000 (2019: approximately HK$6,317,000) for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

Directors’ emoluments

The emoluments of the Directors of the Bank disclosed pursuant to section 383 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622) and the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation. Details of the emoluments paid
to or receivable by the directors of the Bank in respect of their services rendered for
the Bank and managing the subsidiaries within the Group during the year are as
follows:

2020 2019

BT AT

HK$°000 HK$'000

Directors’ fees 4,370 4,314
Other emoluments

- basic salaries and allowances 8,160 9,410

- discretionary bonuses - 17,429

- others (including pension contributions) 3,273 2,951

15,803 34,104

Fees of HK$2,360,000 (2019: HK$2,604,000) were paid to the Independent Non-
executive Directors during the year.
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19. EERESEERERTT 19. Cash and balances with banks and other financial institutions

B FH A BSR4
(i
2020 2019
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
EFHE Cash 216,230 281,478
IR LR TRV R Balances with central banks 3,909,384 5,591,532
FETRERTT B Eo A< R A4 G Balances with banks and other financial
&L ER institutions 2,942,926 1,729,013
TESRT S HoAth SRl — Placements with banks and other financial
&l 5 N B HHE institutions maturing within one month 15,903,903 10,634,047
22,972,443 18,236,070
TRAE Impairment allowances
- HE—TEE - Stage 1 (611) (82)
- B ISEL - Stage 2 - -
- HEIEE - Stage 3 - -
22,971,832 18,235,988

20. fFERfT R EHAh&Fit% 20. Placements with banks and other financial institutions maturing

B—=+ B RNE between one and twelve months
RAZ EHATFI
2020 2019
BT AEETTT
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETERTT B Eo A< R A4 G Balances with banks and other financial
—Z+EARNEEZ institutions maturing between one to twelve
TEHATEIT months 7,441,611 4,819,614
BB A Impairment allowances
- I EER - Stage 1 (1,313) (402)
- FHE IS - Stage 2 - -
- R =FEE - Stage 3 - -
7,440,298 4,819,212
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

21. Derivative financial instruments

21. TESRITE

AR HET IR R A FA R 074 B
THEOEHEEMEREE A -

ETEE/‘*%A*EHEEYE’%

e

B
O

e

auk \

SO AR SR R
it - HHORE AR ] S A
= CORERURIMEE) 2oL LN
FPAALE « IR RS S1
FR SR -

SNEEARE BN 7 (HEETT) B
77 (FEH) REHERFIE—FEH
AR AR —ERHANIZAT e ES H i

(FUpEHARE) E ) (RUEEIRE) —&
%&gﬂ’]’fwﬂlﬁﬂ’]ff&ﬂ CERES:D E’J
—TE ek o B REEISMNEFIFREFE - BA
FERNE JT1E I B 7 U — B AR 2 -
K%lﬂﬁ%/\zﬁméﬁiﬁ?‘rﬁf B Mihrs
BERREUE BT BT (AN S P
TEE A -

FEEZ TS/ T HEY/ 2EBEH
FHHEFIIN TR - S SR T
BHE4/ LR EE TR BRI
RARTZERZLGE > E T2 TE
ZEL HEBE AR T — (B
AR P IR 5 7 B (A 2 PHE
HIELAVERRE - (B2 - B SIRFTS K
HYARAHIER e E AT A PE > A
T RE S A S P IR 5 SRR B
miEE - BEEROTAE SR TR &40
BRI R ST S RAT B > P12E
SR LEAHE TR Fiﬁﬂ (&EE)
SR (BT AUZE > EEr il
TTHE@FﬂﬁﬁxﬁETEZ@J

REEHETHNESSIMTEE S S
FEHAERE PR - AEFEEE
5 R [ESE TS AT A AR S /R
R TR (L A S B Yy A B b B R
FHTE ©

PTARE SR E A E B SR THR AV A 2
b > RASEAE L AR EEA YT
AT I EITA S - BIPTAE SRS
JEELE Y\ AR s A4 R B DA PR 22 1
WAHIET LB RIIR - FFITEER
R EC IR A HE E’J%&"’)‘E DI T4E
F TSHEIE - s

The Group enters into exchange rate and interest rate related derivative financial
instrument contracts for trading and risk management purposes.

Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase and sell foreign currency
on a future date.

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to exchange one set of cash
flows for another. Swaps result in an exchange of currencies or interest rates (for
example, fixed rate for floating rate) or a combination of all these. Except for
certain currency swap contracts, no exchange of principal takes place.

Foreign currency options are contractual agreements under which the seller
(writer) grants the purchaser (holder) the right, but not the obligation, either to buy
(a call option) or sell (a put option) at or by a set date or during a set period, a
specific amount of the financial instrument at a predetermined price. In
consideration for the assumption of foreign exchange and interest rate risk, the
seller receives a premium from the purchaser. Options are negotiated over-the-
counter between the Group and its counterparty or traded through the stock
exchange (for example, exchange-traded stock option).

The contract/ notional amounts and fair values of derivative financial instruments
held by the Group are set out in the following tables. The contract / notional
amounts of these instruments indicate the volume of transactions outstanding at
the end of the reporting dates and certain of them provide a basis for comparison
with fair values of instruments recognised on the statement of financial position.
However, they do not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows
involved or the current fair values of the instruments and, therefore, do not
indicate the Group’s exposure to credit or market risks. The derivative financial
instruments become favourable (assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result
of fluctuations in foreign exchange rates or market interest rates relative to their
terms. The aggregate fair values of derivative financial instruments can fluctuate
significantly from time to time.

The Group trades derivative products (both exchange-traded or OTC) mainly for
customer business. The Group strictly follows risk management policies and
requirement in providing derivative products to our customers and in trading of
derivative products in the interbank market.

Derivatives are also used to manage the interest rate risk of the banking book. A
derivative instrument must be included in the approved product list before any
transactions for that instrument can be made. There are limits to control the
notional amount of exposure arising from derivative transactions, and the
maximum tenor of the deal is set. Every derivative transaction must be input into
the relevant system for settlement, mark-to-market revaluation, reporting and
control.
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21. Derivative financial instruments (continued)

The following tables summarise the contract / notional amounts and fair values of each class

HR12H3MHZ &4,/ %4 of derivative financial instrument as at 31 December:
FRBE R AR
2020
B8/ 2HEEEH AVE
Contract / Fair values
notional HE =i
amounts Assets Liabilities
BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
PERELY Exchange rate contracts
BTHA K A Spot and forwards 961,017 97,298 (15,142)
58] Swaps 14,096,968 22,146 (32,726)
SRS ZhHRE Foreign currency options
- H AR - Options purchased 8,351 23 -
- HiHHRE - Options written 8,351 - (27)
15,074,687 119,467 (47,895)
IESSES| Interest rate contracts
st Swaps 1,678,689 21,038 (27,501)
16,753,376 140,505 (75,396)
2019
G4/ R Cayt!
Contract / Fair values
notional - (z3 Aaff
amounts Assets Liabilities
BT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
PEFRELY Exchange rate contracts
BTHA K7 A Spot and forwards 1,170,736 88,544 (7,427)
40 Swaps 8,017,633 25,361 (21,307)
SR Z R Foreign currency options
- HANARE - Options purchased 1,571 6 -
- B - Options written 1,571 - (10)
9,191,511 113,911 (28,744)
IESSES| Interest rate contracts
st Swaps 2,143,257 8,222 (11,617)
11,334,768 122,133 (40,361)
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22. ZEERNEEE 22. Advances to customers and trade bills

2020 2019
BT HERTT
HK$’000 HK$’000
EPNEE Personal loans and advances 13,616,426 12,045,683
NEIERK Corporate loans and advances 64,164,220 64,021,276
HEEK Advances to customers 77,780,646 76,066,959

B P E R Advances to customers impairment allowances
- T - Stage 1 (476,643) (326,066)
- B TISEL - Stage 2 (8,637) (18,309)
- SR - Stage 3 (278,510) (284,868)
77,016,856 75,437,716
5 Trade bills 1,327,776 1,553,101

5 IR R E AR Trade bills impairment allowances

- 1ETEE - Stage 1 (4,491) (3,926)
- B ISEY - Stage 2 - -
- HEIEE - Stage 3 - -
1,323,285 1,549,175
78,340,141 76,986,891

202012731 H E & E As at 31 December 2020, advances to customers included accrued interest of
¥ E =1 F] 2 92 180,337,000 T HK$180,337,000 (2019: HK$237,214,000).

(2019 4F : %% 237,214,000

TC)°
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(continued)

23. Investment in securities

2020
BEMNDAE  AERMUAT P ick:-]
HEBLEAR EBMGEIAR  (EAEMmE DlgarA
R EEH s  EBREEZER rEZHER &=t
Investment in
securities Investment in Investment in
mandatorily securities securities at
measured at designated at fair value Investmentin
fair value fair value  through other securities at
through profit through profit comprehensive amortised
or loss and loss income cost Total
AT AT AT AT AT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Certificates of deposit:
- Listed in Hong Kong - - - - -
- Listed outside Hong Kong - - - - -
- Unlisted - - 8,728,236 - 8,728,236
- - 8,728,236 - 8,728,236
Debt securities:
- Listed in Hong Kong 82,522 40,027 6,094,516 1,013,552 7,230,617
- Listed outside Hong Kong 152,637 175,632 4,752,932 120,910 5,202,111
- Unlisted 3,069 147,541 29,205,565 220,139 29,576,314
238,228 363,200 40,053,013 1,354,601 42,009,042
238,228 363,200 48,781,249 1,354,601 50,737,278
Impairment allowances
- Stage 1 - - - (3,600) (3,600)
- Stage 2 - - - - -
- Stage 3 - - - - -
- - - (3,600) (3,600)
Total debt securities and
certificates of deposit 238,228 363,200 48,781,249 1,351,001 50,733,678
Equity securities:
- Listed in Hong Kong 51,535 - - - 51,535
- Listed outside Hong Kong 11,064 - - - 11,064
- Unlisted - - 20,854 - 20,854
Total equity securities 62,599 - 20,854 - 83,453
300,827 363,200 48,802,103 1,351,001 50,817,131
Analysed by type of issuer
as follows :
Sovereigns - - 18,872,423 - 18,872,423
Public sector entities - - 1,513,178 - 1,513,178
Banks and other financial
institutions 51,256 347,320 23,433,969 799,529 24,632,074
Corporate entities 249,571 15,880 4,982,533 551,472 5,799,456
300,827 363,200 48,802,103 1,351,001 50,817,131
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23. Investment in securities (continued)

Certificates of deposit:
- Listed in Hong Kong
- Listed outside Hong Kong
- Unlisted

Debt securities:
- Listed in Hong Kong
- Listed outside Hong Kong
- Unlisted

Impairment allowances
- Stage 1
- Stage 2
- Stage 3

Total debt securities and
certificates of deposit

Equity securities:
- Listed in Hong Kong
- Listed outside Hong Kong
- Unlisted

Total equity securities

Analysed by type of issuer
as follows :

Sovereigns

Public sector entities

Banks and other financial
institutions

Corporate entities

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2019
BHIELIAT  FERLUAF LUAE{E S
EELET AR EEETARE (S AHMS IDR: 37 55/%N
i L ST it L FOSF [alenvae FrEZEEF “ast
Investment in
securities  Investment in Investment in
mandatorily securities  securities at fair
measured at  designated at value through
fair value fair value other Investment in
through profit ~ through profit comprehensive securities at
or loss and loss income amortised cost Total
AT AT AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
58,411 - 5,440,305 - 5,498,716
58,411 - 5,440,305 - 5,498,716
59,248 39,959 8,963,966 1,106,571 10,169,744
30,491 174,442 10,428,704 252,093 10,885,730
- 156,206 19,887,108 285,531 20,328,845
89,739 370,607 39,279,778 1,644,195 41,384,319
148,150 370,607 44,720,083 1,644,195 46,883,035
- - - (1,798) (1,798)
- - - (1,798) (1,798)
148,150 370,607 44,720,083 1,642,397 46,881,237
- - 27,183 - 27,183
- - 27,183 - 27,183
148,150 370,607 44,747,266 1,642,397 46,908,420
- - 19,912,275 - 19,912,275
- - 1,415,230 - 1,415,230
81,983 354,282 18,623,804 912,851 19,972,920
66,167 16,325 4,795,957 729,546 5,607,995
148,150 370,607 44,747,266 1,642,397 46,908,420
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

23. Investment in securities (continued)

At 1 January 2020

Additions

Disposals, redemptions
and maturity

Amortisation

Change in fair value

Exchange difference

Impairment allowances

At 31 December 2020

At 1 January 2019

Additions

Disposals, redemptions
and maturity

Amortisation

Change in fair value

Exchange difference

Impairment allowances

At 31 December 2019

The movements in investment in securities are summarised as follows:

2020
BEIEDATE  FERAF DIATAE S
EHEFAR EELEIAR EPARME DA
WZH wrzEr EHlmz#EE  FERZES &t
Investment in Investment in
securities securities  Investment in
mandatorily designated at securities at
measured at fair value fair value Investment in
fair value through  through other securities at
through profit comprehensive amortised
profit or loss and loss income cost Total
AT BT T AT BT BT IT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
148,150 370,607 44,747,266 1,642,397 46,908,420
556,668 - 79,716,573 - 80,273,241
(410,971) - (76,635,834) (303,135) (77,349,940)
3,281 (106) 54,580 (1,022) 56,733
4,314 (6,319) (166,254) - (168,259)
(615) (982) 1,085,772 14,558 1,098,733
- - - (1,797) (1,797)
300,827 363,200 48,802,103 1,351,001 50,817,131
2019
BHEIMLAT SUEBLAT  DIATESE
EELET AR EEETAE st A=A DUEERECAR
L F S i L E MWz s ETEZER dast
Investment in
securities  Investment in Investment in
mandatorily securities securities at
measured at designated at fair value Investmentin
fair value fair value through other  securities at
through profit  through profit comprehensive amortised
or loss and loss income cost Total
BT BT BT OEBTIT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
- 364,604 26,592,001 1,670,901 28,627,506
150,492 - 77,786,627 134,954 78,072,073
(2,594) - (59,950,084) (150,000) (60,102,678)
985 (104) 266,651 1,194 268,726
(300) 7,307 320,578 - 327,585
(433) (1,200) (268,507) (13,175) (283,315)
- - - (1,477) (1,477)
148,150 370,607 44,747,266 1,642,397 46,908,420

156



4 & Ay

Chiyu Banking Serperation Fid.

Cr e B ERRMTEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)
24. &Y% 24. Investment properties
2020 2019
AT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
W1H1H At 1 January 237,150 233,350
NEE () s Fair value (losses) / gains (Note 13)
(KFEE13) (7,330) 4,846
B EE R - B3R Reclassification to properties, plant and
e (KFE 25) equipment (Note 25) (76,200) (1,046)
»“12 H 31 H At 31 December 153,620 237,150
&Y 2 IREE R FHLIF The carrying value of investment properties is analysed based on the remaining terms of
BREAPR T ATA0 T - the leases as follows:
2020 2019
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
EEEEE Held in Hong Kong
RIHELY (828 50 4F) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 144,920 228,250
EFBLINTE Held outside Hong Kong
HHATHAT (10 2% 50 4F) On medium-term lease (10 — 50 years) 8,700 8,900
153,620 237,150
2020412 H 31 H » 71 As at 31 December 2020, investment properties were included in the statement of financial
BRI TN 2 EY) position at valuation carried out at 31 December 2020 on the basis of their fair value by an
E RN LR Y A RVE <o =R ti] independent firm of chartered surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited. The fair value
FEHIEEI T AR A TR represents the price that would be received to sell each investment property in an orderly
2020 ££ 12 A 31 HUAF transaction with market participants at the measurement date.

EREEMET 2 HHEMS
H - S PHEEEEERE
TEA TR BRI LT [ T
L iEnEE - HITEY
SEMEHUSHIER -
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w

25. WL - SR E%t  25. Properties, plant and equipment

R2020FE1 H1HZ
BETEF(E

B

e

&s

EREHTEE (W 12)

B E R E Y
(it 24)

b 2 754

202012 H 31 H>
BRI FE

2020412 A 31 H
FERAE
e

Ratres SosiE

#2020 412 A 31 H>
FREFE

Net book value at
1 January 2020

Additions

Disposals

Revaluation

Depreciation for the year (Note 12)

Reclassification from investment
properties (Note 24)

Exchange difference

Net book value at
31 December 2020

At 31 December 2020
At cost
At valuation

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment

Net book value at
31 December 2020

158

R B ~ EE
B BE RRREEE gt
Right-of-use Equipment,
assets of fixtures and
premises Premises fittings Total
BRETIT  EBETIT AETIT BETT
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
240,083 1,707,835 73,154 2,021,072
71,917 4,410 41,836 118,163
(368) - (8) (376)
- (58,425) - (58,425)
(85,261) (23,192) (14,717) (123,170)
- 76,200 - 76,200
10,200 - 898 11,098
236,571 1,706,828 101,163 2,044,562
358,100 - 205,823 563,923
- 1,706,828 - 1,706,828
358,100 1,706,828 205,823 2,270,751
(121,529) - (104,660) (226,189)
236,571 1,706,828 101,163 2,044,562
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w

25. W2 - BB Nt 25. Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

(&)

2019151 HZ
IR HLFHE

T FH 7 2 A %5 i o AR
5 16 SRRV

WE

e

Hfh

HEHTE (M 12)

HW o BEEEREYE
(F¥E 24)

b S0 A2

HR20194E 12 31 H>Z
HRHHE

% 2019412 4311
HERAE
fEAG{E

Ratres SosiE

#2019 12 H 31 H>
FRIEFE

Net book value at
1 January 2019

Adjustment on initial application of
HKFRS 16

Additions

Disposals

Revaluation

Depreciation for the year (Note 12)

Reclassification from investment
properties (Note 24)

Exchange difference

Net book value at
31 December 2019

At 31 December 2019

At cost
At valuation

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment

Net book value at
31 December 2019
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JEEfE I BefH ~ EIE
HE JREE  EiE R dEst

Right-of-use Equipment,

assets of fixtures and
premises _ Premises fittings Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000
- 1,696,410 42,159 1,738,569
117,730 - - 17,730
188,005 3,107 40,111 231,223
- - (71) (71)
- 29,800 - 29,800
(64,036) (22,528) (9,001)  (95,565)
- 1,046 - 1,046
(1,616) - (44) (1,660)
240,083 1,707,835 73,154 2,021,072
295,876 - 164,607 460,483
- 1,707,835 - 1,707,835
295,876 1,707,835 164,607 2,168,318
(55,793) - (91,453) (147,246)
240,083 1,707,835 73,154 2,021,072
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w

25. W - BERT R ER 25. Properties, plant and equipment (continued)
(%)

B MRTAME f AR R I The carrying value of premises is analysed based on the remaining terms of the leases as
FROPHTATR follows:
2020 2019
AT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
EEEEE Held in Hong Kong
FIAFHSY (8 50 1) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 1,257,828 1,252,635
HHATHAY (10 422 50 4F) On medium-term lease (10 — 50 years) 410,700 416,200
EEEDINTE Held outside Hong Kong
FIAFHSY (8 50 1) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 33,000 33,700
HH AT (10 422 50 4F) On medium-term lease (10 — 50 years) 5,300 5,300
1,706,828 1,707,835
7+ 2020 ££ 12 H 31 H » %] As at 31 December 2020, premises were included in the statement of financial position at
M BIRRERNZ BE > T valuation carried out at 31 December 2020 on the basis of their fair value by an
(6 VAR Db S 7] independent firm of chartered surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited. The fair value
EEfTARAER 2020 £ represents the price that would be received to sell each premises in an orderly transaction
12 A 31 HELVAE AR with market participants at the measurement date.

P72 B2EAE - N PE
fEfEat B E HETAYTR
HIEIL T TS 2EE
B —THEEERSHE

F& o
TR bl EfhsER - B As a result of the above-mentioned revaluations, changes in value of the premises were
(HEEET N FEE SR recognised in the premises revaluation reserve and income statement as follows:
BB RS T
2020 2019
AT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
(fg2) /ExEEELE (Charged) / credited to premises revaluation
- BRITATE reserve, gross of tax (58,186) 27,006
EEEEZE (B I Net (loss) / gain on revaluation of premises
7 (fffaE 14) (Note 14) (239) 2,794
(58,425) 29,800
#2020 £ 12 H 31 H » & As at 31 December 2020, the net book value of premises that would have been included
o R AR E TR B E T in the Group’s statement of financial position had the premises been carried at cost less
EROBEIRRTINE - AREE accumulated depreciation and impairment losses was HK$515,312,000 (2019:
TR BRI RN > B2 HK$443,569,000).

moF EE R OB
515,312,000 j¢ (2019 4 :
A 443,569,000 7T -
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26. Htn&geE 26. Other assets
2020 2019
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
HEE Precious metals 65,179 54,525
g lol & 7E Repossessed assets 122,324 144,240
TEHEIE K AT E Accounts receivable and prepayments 1,378,479 325,551
1,565,982 524,316
TUE AR Impairment allowances
- BB PEE - Stage 1 (4,299) (306)
- R PEER - Stage 2 ) .
- BB =IRE - Stage 3 (387) (735)
1,561,296 523,275
27. ZEER 27. Deposits from customers
2020 2019
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000
IR B AL ARAT R Demand deposits and current accounts 10,065,280 7,634,868
REETK Savings deposits 30,394,687 19,524,084
TER - FHH RGm AT Time, call and notice deposits 82,113,064 89,132,482
122,573,031 116,291,434
28. HAARIE R 28. Other accounts and provisions
2020 2019
BT AT IT
HK$°000 HK$°000
oA (T HRIE Other accounts payable 1,923,601 998,403
THE AR Lease liabilities 238,449 237,823
HEffg Provisions 11,000 10,054
2,173,050 1,246,280
SR K EU R HH ReR 2 Impairment allowances of loan commitments
TRAE A and financial guarantees contracts issued
- TR - Stage 1 51,644 26,802
- HE TS - Stage 2 1 ]
- HHE=IER - Stage 3 i i
2,224,695 1,273,083
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W

29. RIEFRIE 29. Deferred taxation
RIS IRBEE BT Deferred tax is recognised in respect of the temporary differences arising between the tax
BANFE29% T FTeA 5 bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements and
B pLA E AR B AR unused tax credits in accordance with HKAS 12, “Income Taxes”.
BLETE M B iR AR HE
W T I P PR R R
FARTIEIR SRR -
M IR RN Z IR AL T The major components of deferred tax liabilities / (assets) recorded in the statement of
&/ (&E) TEEE - financial position, and the movements during the year are as follows:
DU HARAEFEN 2 S Eh A
T
2020
oEHTE
iy BEEM BEHE HEREE HAh gt
Accelerated
tax Premises Impairment
depreciation revaluation Losses  allowance Others Total

BETT AB¥TT B¥TT BT BBT BETT
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000

20201 5 1H At 1 January 2020 26,426 224,540 (390) (42,017) (25,524) 183,035
(g2t (&) s Charged / (credited) to
(FffsE15) income statement
(Note 15) 3,496 9,302 (75) (37,087) - (24,364)
EEtHA UGS Credited to other
comprehensive income - (11,068) - (30,471) (41,539)
[RE 2 72%H Exchange difference - (3,741) 413 (3,328)
#2020 £ 12 H 31 At 31 December 2020
H 29,922 222,774 (465) (82,845) (55,582) 113,804
2019
hoEsT e
BAEH FEEG &8 TRAEZER HAth “EEtT
Accelerated
tax Premises Impairment
depreciation _revaluation Losses allowance Others Total

AT BNTIT BNTT AT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000

201941 H1H At 1 January 2019 23,753 222,601 (713) (45,825) (70,871) 128,945
(e Charged to
(KtzE 15) income statement
(Note 15) 2,673 86 309 1,980 - 5,048

EReriikeialien Charged to other

comprehensive income - 1,853 - - 45,347 47,200
PE 2R Exchange difference . - 14 1,828 N 1,842
#2019 F 12 H 31 At 31 December 2019
H 26,426 224,540 (390) (42,017) (25,524) 183,035
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29. MIERIR (&)

29. Deferred taxation (continued)

EAAEREN TR ATRIE
HEEATIH A AR
AR ARSI e [R]— P B
el > RITETRHE 1A ARV AE
TUTH A B R A R TR S (A T
I - NIFE BRI
WIIIRZ &% Tt AEE
e

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset on an individual entity basis when there is a
legal right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
taxation relates to the same authority. The following amounts, determined after
appropriate offsetting, are shown in the statement of financial position:

2020 2019
AT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000
BIALIRIEE Deferred tax assets (23,499) (640)
IRAEFITE A (S Deferred tax liabilities 137,303 183,675
113,804 183,035

30. g4 . Share capital

e R A A A R B O
EESIREAIRE - WAER
TR FEE G LR -

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to
time and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Bank's residual net assets.

2020 2019

a4 BT dir {=| T
Number of Number of

shares HK$’000 shares HK$'000
m1H1H At1 Jan_uary 1,868,247,500 3,245,980 3,368,247 1,772,988
B THEZE Shares issued 349,988,500 3,331,891 368,248 1,472,992
B4R AT B2 Effect of share subdivision - - 1,864,511,005 -
#12H31H At 31 December 2.218.236,000 _ 6,577,871 1.868.247.500 _ 3.245980

RIEE A (AERBT) 55135
1 > ARERTTAYE i e e 22
HE - TmREA A
AR EAMDREAILLA - 3
AL SRIT R G i —
—EEEITIRE - FTA S
AT IRTT R ER & 7 7 Iy
Hrai%E -

ARERTT 47 14202049 H 29
H 108310 % 127328H i@
R > DUFRSER9.527T
R A R S TR - SE1X
BC & 742020429 H 29 H #17
203,994,800 f% ~ Ui HY 3
1,942,030,496 7T © E2 XD
£ 12 2020 4£ 10 A 31 & 17
10,504,200 H ~ U Hy 3 #&
99,999,984 7T K 55 3 it &
#2020 £ 12 H 28 H & 17
135,489,500 % ~ U HY 3 e
1,289,860,0407T -

In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, the ordinary
shares of the Bank do not have a par value. The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Bank. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Bank’s residual
assets.

The Bank passed the resolution on 29 September, 31 October and 28 December 2020 to
issue new shares at HK$9.52 each to its existing shareholders. The first allotment of
203,994,800 shares was issued with a consideration of HK$1,942,030,496 on 29
September 2020, the second allotment of 10,504,200 shares was issued with a
consideration of HK$99,999,984 on 31 October 2020 and the third allotment of
135,489,500 shares was issued with a consideration of HK$1,289,860,040 on 28
December 2020.
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SEE M BRI
(&)

31. BIMRATR

31. Additional equity instruments

2.5 {EFRITTAAIERETRER
BN —HEAESF

ARITH20174911 H29H
BT T EEE2.5EET
(HIBR MBS TR AR &
(B ##%1,938,000,0007T )
MK AIE R ET R EESN—
WEAES (EINEAT
H e Ik ABEINEAR T B
#20224E11 H 29 H & (i ig
ARG HEHRD SEESEFER
TEN5.25% o EERER BT
(A > ZE AR
FLEHE B AL E R A B
B & % B R F 200
LATGE TR EER

R Fﬁ!ﬁ;i*ﬂi/ﬁ{j‘éu ZIK
RITERENRIBZ AN E
IEEW%?K%E%EW%*U%
RO MACHIF EA g &
& -

B & o @A AT A
%‘ZIK%‘ [BEiE Tl

B ZEYNEA T AR
Zﬁéﬁﬁ@&éﬁuéﬁfmﬁ
TR Z HIE S T T
B -

142022511 529 H SEAT
HERRE R - R THEA
i [ R i B P S R BB Y
BYNEATR BHAZES]
B PR s AR -

202045422 H K11 H 24
HE 5 ARk E AN E AR
T E ) 2 3#1250,907,000
TT R A#450,869,0007T -

2020 2019
AT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
US$250 million perpetual non-cumulative
subordinated additional tier 1 capital securities 1,937,712 1,937,712

On 29 November 2017, the Bank issued perpetual non-cumulative subordinated additional
tier 1 capital securities (“additional equity instruments”) with a face value of US$250 million
(equivalent to HK$1,938,000,000 net of related issuance costs). The additional equity
instruments are perpetual and bear a 5.25% coupon until the first call date on 29 November
2022. The coupon will be reset every five years if the additional equity instruments are not
redeemed to a fixed rate equivalent to the then-prevailing five-year US Treasury rate plus a
fixed initial spread.

The coupon shall be payable semi-annually. The Bank has the right to cancel coupon
payment (subject to the requirement as set out in the terms and conditions of the additional
equity instruments) and the coupon cancelled shall not be cumulative.

The principal of the additional equity instruments will be written down to the amount as
directed or agreed with the HKMA if the HKMA notifies the Bank that the Bank would become
non-viable if there is no written down of the principal.

The Bank has a call option to redeem all the outstanding additional equity instruments from
29 November 2022 or any subsequent coupon payment date, but subject to restriction as
set out in the terms and conditions.

During the year, the coupons of this additional equity instruments were paid with the amount
of HK$50,907,000 and HK$50,869,000 on 22 May 2020 and 24 November 2020
respectively.
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SEE M BRI
(&)

W

32. 4TS HRERMEE  32. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement

() BREEATERFIELERAG AT

(a) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to operating cash inflow

KBHES 7 M AY before taxation
R
2020 2019
AT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
ERSTEnN il Profit before taxation 1,020,196 1,493,937
BN EREE Net loss / (gain) from fair value adjustments on
SR (U35) investment properties 7,330 (4,846)
HE EEYIE - 6 Net loss / (gain) from disposal / revaluation of
KRS TE, . (Y properties, plant and equipment
) 247 (2,723)
HEEEZFIEZH Interest on lease liabilities 8,360 5,207
s Depreciation 123,170 95,565
TRE R PR Net charge of impairment allowances 638,353 345,345
JFEEHAH & 3 EH > Change in balances with banks and other
TERLERAT B HeAt financial institutions with original maturity
B4R 2 1 E) over three months (615,528) (982,756)
JFEFEHAH & 3 EH > Change in placements with banks and other
TESRTT R At Rl financial institutions with original maturity
W E R S8 over three months 985,805 539,001
PTA SR T B> #E) Change in derivative financial instruments 16,663 (2,360)
HEERRESHEEZ Change in advances to customers and trade
S| bills (1,608,965) (27,365,223)
R ) Change in investment in securities (2,018,958) (16,394,127)
HAth &~ EE) Change in other assets (1,041,629) (68,513)
SRAT R HAtr Rl Change in deposits and balances from banks
TPk B4t 2 ) and other financial institutions 2,820,172 5,814,193
B &) Change in deposits from customers 6,281,597 37,961,919
A BRTE f HE > ) Change in other accounts and provisions 925,392 270,575
DB E) 7 g Effect of changes in exchange rates (141,837) 17,689
IS T TN Operating cash inflow before taxation 7,400,368 1,722,883
K SEH > B4 Cash flows from operating activities included:
BFE
— BRI, — Interest received 3,916,154 3,937,309
- EfIFIE ~ Interest paid (2,408,325) (1,868,326)
- U E — Dividend received 2,171 4,437
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2. BEEESREFENEE 32. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement (continued)
(&)
(b) JREMEFRSIEHE (b) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
ot
2020 2019
BT T ATT
HK$’000 HK$°000
EFRESREFIHIHE 3 Cash and balances with banks and other
E AN FER T RE financial institutions with original maturity
i RS %5 R within three months 19,809,461 15,689,145
EEHEIHE 3 [EARNZE Placements with banks and other financial
SRAT R Hofthr 45 Rl b A > institutions with original maturity within
EHFR three months 6,117,853 2,509,536
EFEHHHAE 3 EARNZ Debt securities with original maturity within
% three months 4,070,683 2,404,986
FERHHE 3EANZ Certificates of deposit with original maturity
7k within three months 1,284,877 586,132
31,282,874 21,189,799
(c) HHEE S BRI E (c) Reconciliation with the consolidated statement of financial position
&
2020 2019
BT AMETIT
HK$’000 HK$ 000
TS R R AT R B Cash and balances with banks and other
M4 BRI 45 A% financial institutions (Note 19)
(FEE19) 22,971,832 18,235,988
TESRTT R HoAth < b A s — Placements with banks and other financial
EF AN E institutions maturing between one and
BAfF (BfeE 20) twelve months (Note 20) 7,440,298 4,819,212
BHEEE Investment in securities
H EP 58 1l 14 DA SF Of which: securities mandatorily measured
L A at fair value through profit or loss
6 %% securities 238,228 148,150
H EP CSE By DL Of which: securities designated at fair
B8 Lt ABE value through profit and loss
) % 363,200 370,607
H EP DA E L Of which: securities at fair value through
HAEM W other comprehensive income
Z i8R 48,781,249 44,720,083
REN R N e Of which: securities at amortised cost 1,351,001 1,642,397
& GBI RS IR Amount shown in the consolidated statement
| of financial position 81,145,808 69,936,437
ko RAHAR A 3 @A Less: Amounts with an original maturity of
LRy %8 beyond three months (48,011,987) (47,248,747)
R ZIRE TR S Ay g Less: Cash balance with central bank subject
IRITHHELF to regulatory restriction (1,850,947) (1,497,891)
4R E e R BRI Cash and cash equivalents in the
& REERESHEE consolidated cash flow statement 31,282,874 21,189,799
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R (continued)
33. ERAREEFRIE 33. Contingent liabilities and commitments
SABE RIE S IRAE The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each significant class of
AT R LR Y &8 R IRRIVE contingent liability and commitment and the aggregate credit risk-weighted amount and
e rmdRed - HAgTHETH is prepared with reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA return of capital
A2 G4 B R RS SRR 0 adequacy ratio:
RESSEEREILN T
2020 2019
BT AT IT
HK$°000 HK$°000
H#EEEAREE Direct credit substitutes 5,147 5,147
B B 2 SR R Transaction-related contingencies 25,621 24,771
A B AR SR E(E Trade-related contingencies 677,387 475,735
REE I mAAIREIREREE > Commitments that are unconditionally cancellable
TS without prior notice 10,356,740 7,486,395
HAtRIE - [FEHIH & Other commitments with an original maturity of
-1 LT - up to one year 564,022 275,275
-1 E - over one year 2,587,573 4,370,553
14,216,490 12,637,876
lEs= eyt ve s Credit risk-weighted amount 1,225,636 1,843,553
EERE IR ERE () The credit risk-weighted amount is calculated in accordance with the Banking (Capital)
172 (BAR) #HA) 518 - 1 Rules. The amount is dependent upon the status of the counterparty and the maturity
FHEUATARZ ST 2 5 fe & characteristics of each type of contract.

G Z AR -

34. EREE 34. Capital commitments
I (B R TP P e v 4 The Group has the following outstanding capital commitments not provided for in the
ZERERESEUT ¢ financial statements:
2020 2019
BB AT
HK$°000 HK$’000
(ki Y& s S ER R Authorised and contracted for but not provided
for 22,855 13,758
EfttEEREY Authorised but not contracted for 184 18,226
23,039 31,984
PAEBEARIERTL 77 Ryl A The above capital commitments mainly relate to commitments to purchase computer
2 ERHSTEAE RR A DU S equipment and software, and to renovate the Group’s premises.

B2 e TR R -
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35. fHERE 35. Lease commitments
(a) fERARFEA (a) As lessee
TR A AT e 2 4808 The Group has commitments to make the following future minimum lease payments
HEEL) TYIRAE under non-cancellable operating leases:
B R 2R R A B R
FRZESZ AN 2 i<
2020 2019
BEWETIT BT IT
HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt R Land and buildings
- Rig# 1 & - Not later than one year 513 330
-1FED EESFERN - Later than one year but not later than five
years 23 -
536 330
AT T > 4 Certain non-cancellable operating leases included in the table above were subject to
EFHET T F R R 2R renegotiation and rent adjustment with reference to market rates prevailing at specified
Tohets HHA 2 M E agreed dates or according to the special condition as stipulated in the leases.
LI HIERF HIRRGR B
{EFH<BEHE -
(b) fERHFHEA (b) As lessor
FRIBAR ol ids - &2 The Group has contracted with tenants for the following future minimum lease
EEE T R A E receivables under non-cancellable operating leases:
HEFT G ZRKA
BATH & A 2
2020 2019
AT ATIT
HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt BT Land and buildings
- Rt 14 - Not later than one year 1,673 4,440
-1FERLEE 5 FERN - Later than one year but not later than five
years - 1,669
1,673 6,109
REFEDKEHEP A The Group leases its investment properties under operating lease arrangements, with
TS HE T leases typically for a period from one to three years. The terms of the leases generally
HEH 1FEE 3F require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for rent adjustments according
KRk — MR & 4R to the prevailing market conditions at the expiration of the lease.
B NGRS
B PRIERH S o RS
TR -
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BRI IEHREEEEAR -
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KA -

37. PWEHmE

(a) HEEFEID

RIEEEH L B = EEEH
EAMT A ASRITSER ~ 3R
TSR NI B 5RTS - SRS ARSI
AR P e S

BASRIT IR IRIT B RI9 G
PRLREAYIRITIRG - EfESEE
KBS B B SRR
n R A E SRS - IR R PRk
b~ SNBSS S TR A A o (E AR
TR R T RIS EAZ S - 1M
FEIRATHRBREEZRBEAH
FF - ENMERGR IRTEE
HESN > EATEHEENRIE
&~ FISRFIS MR » " HAth ) JE—
il > EEEEREERABHE
RV RS -

SETBARAVEEE « B~ UOA ~ S
KERR AR RN
E st B TR - o EERE
EELPE I N % SRS AR B LR
AT DAEEE ) B R ERAV R -
PSSR AR EHYE R > R REAE
BB ERREREE > LR
SR B AE - A5 A B
IR -

A5 B Y A B F R
A 3l H S E e & A R
WAAEHZERS - NIERTA SR
BB AR HEUFET R -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

36. Litigation

The Group has been served a number of claims and counterclaims by various
independent parties. These claims and counterclaims are in relation to the
normal commercial activities of the Group.

No material provision was made against these claims and counterclaims
because the directors believe that the Group has meritorious defences against
the claimants or the amounts involved in these claims are not expected to be
material.

37. Segmental reporting

(a) Operating segments information

The Group divides its businesses into three operating segments. They are
Personal Banking, Corporate Banking and Treasury. The classification of
the Group’s operating segments is based on customer segment and
product type.

Both Personal Banking and Corporate Banking provide general banking
services including various deposit products, overdrafts, loans, trade related
products and other credit facilities, investment and insurance products, and
foreign currency and derivative products. Personal Banking mainly serves
retail customers while Corporate Banking mainly deals with corporate
customers. Treasury manages the funding and liquidity, and the interest rate
and foreign exchange positions of the Group in addition to proprietary
trades. “Others” mainly represents the Group’s holdings of premises,
investment properties and equity investments.

Measurement of segment assets, liabilities, income, expenses, results and
capital expenditure is based on the Group’s accounting policies. The
segment information includes items directly attributable to a segment as
well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Inter-segment
funding is charged according to the internal funds transfer pricing
mechanism of the Group, which is primarily based on market rates with the
consideration of specific features of the product.

As the Group derives a majority of revenue from interest and the senior
management relies primarily on net interest income in managing the
business, interest income and expense for all reportable segments are
presented on a net basis.
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37. nEEHE (8D

37. Segmental reporting (continued)

(a) HEEHEY (8D

(a) Operating segments information (continued)

2020

EASHT T =g Hittr et EfHES &a

Personal Corporate

Banking Banking Treasury Others Subtotal Eliminations Consolidated

ST T SHRTIT T SHRTIT T AT

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FFIE (ZH) /U A Netinterest (expense) / income
- fhk - External (907,770) 1,407,740 1,212,348 - 1,712,318 - 1,712,318
- BT - Inter-segment 1,297,380  (239,192) (1,058,188) - - - -

389,610 1,168,548 154,160 - 1,712,318 - 1,712,318
SRR RSN Netfee and commission

/(21D income / (expense) 281,525 523,712 (2,600) 786 803,423 - 803,423
FR GRS (5 Nettrading gain/ (loss)

#) 20,093 14,700 9,841  (89,216) (44,582) . (44,582)
AERBUATESE  Netloss on financial
sEAIE G ZGR T instruments designated at fair

ISREE i value through profit or loss - - (6,319) - (6,319) - (6,319)
otz L Net gain on other financial

Tt assets - 113,424 198,845 - 312,269 - 312,269
HALRIA Other operating income - 448 550 23,435 24,433  (15,193) 9,240
PEEAURKEREEAT®  Net operating income /

KBNS (expense) before

G impairment allowances 691,228 1,820,832 354,477 (64,995) 2,801,542 (15,193) 2,786,349
TRABEZER ] Net reversal / (charge) of

(¥4 impairment allowances 18,826 (274,540) (352,754) (29,885) (638,353) - (638,353)
FRBKAS Net operating income /

GZH) (expense) 710,054 1,546,292 1,723 (94,880) 2,163,189 (15,193) 2,147,996
[ Operating expenses (411,360)  (349,860) (37,340) (336,856) (1,135,416) 15,193 (1,120,223)
KRk, (B8 Operating profit/ (loss) 298,694 1,196,432 (35,617)  (431,736) 1,027,773 - 1,027,773
HEYEE N HESHE Netloss from fair value

AR adjustments on
investment properties - - - (7,330) (7,330) - (7,330)
e EEE - 55 Net loss from disposal /
ARG 2 FHhestE revaluation of properties,
plant and equipment - - - (247) (247) - (247)
TSR] Profit / (loss) before

(EER) taxation 298,694 1,196,432 (35,617) (439,313) 1,020,196 - 1,020,196
=i Assets
SY AR Segment assets 16,363,528 72,781,881 72,806,839 1,562,125 163,514,373 - 163,514,373
i={i Liabilities
SrEEE Segment liabilities 87,484,965 51,696,763 5,807,306 631,039 145,620,073 - 145,620,073
gt Other information
B Capital expenditure (6,135)  (25,433) (103) (86,492) (118,163) - (118,163)
18 Depreciation (6,002)  (10,752) (560)  (105,856) (123,170) - (123,170)
o Amortisation of securities - - 53,453 3,280 56,733 - 56,733
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37. EHE (8)

(a) ZERE D (8D

é&?ﬁéﬁ)ﬂ‘ R

SFRIE (FH) /A Netinterest (expense) / income

- AR

- BT

P SR N
/()

FRSEI (6
1)

SR BLIATAEE
S AT SRIT
e

Hifth Rl IR

s

ET TN

DR AT P
EBBA

A P

Gz
&R (R

fitecy/E ANRIEEE

HIEE EfEYRE - 85
o Reasel 5

EtsaasH],
(52

=
Ty

&%
SrEREE

Hiftrzt
BN
#reE

- External
- Inter-segment

Net fee and commission
income / (expense)
Net trading gain / (loss)

Net gain on financial
instruments designated at
fair value through profit or
loss

Net gain on other financial
assets

Other operating income

Net operating income before
impairment allowances

Net charge of impairment
allowances

Net operating income /
(expense)

Operating expenses

Operating profit / (loss)

Net gain from fair value
adjustments on
investment properties

Net gain from disposal /
revaluation of properties,
plant and equipment

Profit / (loss) before
taxation

Assets
Segment assets

Liabilities
Segment liabilities

Other information
Capital expenditure
Depreciation
Amortisation of securities

37. Segmental reporting (continued)

(a) Operating segments information (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2019

EASRT T BT Hth, Nat EPHEH GrE

Personal Corporate
Banking Banking Treasury Others Subtotal _Eliminations Consolidated
AR AT HEETT AT HEETT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(1,150,380) 1,853,880 1,315,073 - 2,018,573 - 2,018,573
1,548,109  (519,687) (1,028,422) - - - -
397,729 1,334,193 286,651 - 2,018,573 - 2,018,573
288,014 356,302 (1,318) - 642,998 - 642,998
25,966 17,282 6,172 (23,479) 25,941 - 25,941
- - 7,307 - 7,307 - 7,307
- 22,538 46,951 - 69,489 - 69,489
- 582 592 26,215 27,389 (15,074) 12,315
711,709 1,730,897 346,355 2,736 2,791,697 (15,074) 2,776,623
(85,450)  (228,131) (13,594) (18,170) (345,345) - (345,345)
626,259 1,502,766 332,761 (15,434) 2,446,352 (15,074) 2,431,278
(432,665)  (274,115) (35,520) (217,684) (959,984) 15,074 (944,910)
193,594 1,228,651 297,241 (233,118) 1,486,368 - 1,486,368
- - - 4,846 4,846 - 4,846
- - - 2,723 2,723 - 2,723
193,594 1,228,651 297,241 (225,549) 1,493,937 - 1,493,937
14,293,027 69,974,778 63,635,494 1,951,482 149,854,781 - 149,854,781
81,679,680 45,208,054 8,068,192 775,866 135,731,792 - 135,731,792
(5,425) (34,846) (41) (190,911) (231,223) - (231,223)
(5,593) (2,739) (280) (86,953) (95,565) - (95,565)
- - 268,726 - 268,726 - 268,726
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#20204E12H31H - Ak

4 5 8 8 ZZ 45 F K
(2019 & @ # W

446,922,0007T ) » AHEEZ

HEMZERE (20194

#2441,717,00097) » jA T
L NI -

#20204E12H31H » Ak
B 3 R A E A
# W 8,730,628,607 T
( 2019 4 w O
3,316,597,0007T ) - A£5[H|
BIERILEEEmNER
& E & E OB B W
9,174,021,4155 (20194
Hk#k3,421,293,0007C ) »
MEHIEE ) AR -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

37. Segmental reporting (continued)

(b) By geographical area

The following information is presented based on the principal places of operations:

2020 2019

FEHURE TRHCRE o
EHERIZ BEERT HFHTZ K i E;;JJ

BBA vl B L
Net operating Net operating Profi
income before Profit  income before rofit
impairment before impairment before
allowances taxation allowances taxation
BT BT AT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Hong Kong 2,230,629 754,943 2,133,678 1,058,989
Mainland China 555,720 265,253 642,945 434,948
2,786,349 1,020,196 2,776,623 1,493,937
2020 2019
GEE HEE
Total assets Total assets
BT AT IT
HK$°000 HK$°000
Hong Kong 126,331,879 117,583,454
Mainland China 37,182,494 32,271,327
163,514,373 149,854,781

38. Assets pledged as security

As at 31 December 2020, there were no liabilities which were secured by bills (2019:
HK$446,922,000). There were no assets pledged (2019: HK$441,717,000) included in
“Trade bills”.

As at 31 December 2020, the liabilities of the Group amounting to HK$8,730,628,607
(2019: HK$3,316,597,000) were secured by debt securities. The amount of assets pledged
by the Group to secure these liabilities was HK$9,174,021,415 (2019: HK$3,421,293,000)
included in “investment in securities”.
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39. &R T B IEHY 39. Offsetting financial instruments
TRIRAEE TS 2 The following tables present details of the Group’s financial instruments subject to offsetting,
BT M PSS AR R A enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements:
HoA A AT B S 4 SR A < i
THR

2020

RERMBRAR TR Z
sl R
Related amounts not set
off in the statement of
financial position

R BRERS REBRERSR

ERRLH SN DR TR M . Bgmz
BEGE =Nt A SRMTH BieHm B
Gross amounts of
Gross recognised  Net amounts of
amounts of financial liabilities financial assets
recognised set off in the presented in the Cash
financial statement of statement of Financial collateral Net
assets financial position financial position instruments received amount
ARTIT AWTIT BEWETIT BEWETIT AWTIT BETT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000
&iE Assets
#5744 B Derivative financial
TE instruments 20,997 - 20,997 (20,997) - -
Hfth&ZE Other assets 496,037 (445,856) 50,181 - - 50,181
517,034 (445,856) 71,178 (20,997) - 50,181
2020
RERMBARRETEH
THRESH
Related amounts not set
off in the statement of
N . financial position
COREERRET REBRERD
EHEEER N ERRSm FIRINSRAS B EfHZ i
=itk | BERH A8 SRTH e B
Gross amounts of  Net amounts of
Gross recognised financial
amounts of financial assets liabilities
recognised set off in the presented in the Cash
financial statement of statement of Financial collateral Net
liabilities financial position financial position instruments pledged amount
BT IT AT T BT T BT T BETIT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000
i=Ci=t Liabilities
744 Fh Derivative financial
TH instruments 61,988 - 61,988 (20,997) - 40,991
Hfth& & Other liabilities 966,717 (445,856) 520,861 - - 520,861
1,028,705 (445,856) 582,849 (20,997) - 561,852
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39. Offsetting financial instruments (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

(&)
2019
FERMBEIRFTR PIESE 2 A
A
Related amounts not set off
in the statement of financial
= = position
o MBI RS R R T
CHEDER i OSSR IR e EE Bz -
HEEAEH =t TR ST HE B T
Gross amounts of
Gross recognised Net amounts of
amounts of financial liabilities financial assets
recognised set off in the presented in the Cash
financial statement of statement of Financial collateral
assets  financial position  financial position  instruments received Net amount
BT BT T BT BT BT ABETIT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
B Assets
#5744 Rk Derivative financial
TE instruments 14,277 - 14,277 (14,277) - -
HA&EZE Other assets 503,191 (416,593) 86,598 - - 86,598
517,468 (416,593) 100,875 (14,277) - 86,598
2019
FHENM IR FT PIESH 2 A
i< %R
Related amounts not set off
in the statement of financial
o o position
o RMEBRIRT RER LR
ORGSR R TSR FIRe &R e B2 -
=ik iz pE R SR TR B T
Gross Gross amounts of Net amounts of
amounts of recognised financial liabilities
recognised financial assets set presented in the Cash
financial off in the statement statement of Financial collateral Net
liabilities of financial position  financial position  instruments pledged amount
HHET L HHETTL ST BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
=i Liabilities
£74E 4R Derivative financial
TH instruments 33,032 - 33,032 (14,277) - 18,755
HAth& (& Other liabilities 422,539 (416,593) 5,946 - - 5,946
455,571 (416,593) 38,978 (14,277) - 24,701
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39. &R T H S 39. Offsetting financial instruments (continued)
(&)
WAREESETARBIMT For master netting agreements for OTC derivative transactions entered into by the Group
ETERZ G FHERE S related amounts with the same counterparty can be offset if an event of default or other
Tohad > Mt 58 A 2B AT B H At predetermined events occur.
HIRER BN RIFE—2
52 AR e A A PR
TFEHAEE -
40. EEEHR 40. Loans to directors
RBEESE (AHEIERS) 5 Particulars of loans made to directors of the Bank pursuant to section 383 of the Hong Kong
383K (AHE (HiFEESR Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
FlIZREARD) #BI ) 55 =30 Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:
FE - [ ARRITE SRR AL
ZEFGEEAT ¢
2020 2019
AT BT T
HK$°000 HK$’000
PR AREEZHR Aggregate amount of relevant transactions
L L outstanding at year end - .
NEANRMEERMZC S Maximum aggregate amount of relevant
= AR transactions outstanding during the year - -
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(a) EEATREATE
il 2 EoAh 2 EETTEY

X5

AR 2 R A
R E R A
MRAE O T HEREES
=) EREIESER
BEFEEREAIRAE
EHEIE A EF
KB AIR A HEFTE
MRS T R B

K HR oy L FIBIRR SRAT
AT IR B &H

TS o % 2020 4 12
F 31 8 AR
W e FEEA TR P BB SR AT
TR 48R o3 ) R VB
4,852,000 7T (2019 4
12 5 31 H : &
471,331,000 T ) R
180,564,000 7T (2019
12 7 31 0
2,700,491,000 T ) -
2020 FFELE FEIREIRAT
A LR R P E
AR A RS SRy
Al By 52,000 JT
(20194£12 4 31 H:
M 11,997,000 7T) R
# W 15,317,000 T
(20194£12 4 31 H:
i 91,670,000 7T)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

41. Significant related party transactions

General information of the parent companies:

The Group is indirectly controlled by Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd., which is a
Chinese commercial bank established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

(a) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies
controlled by the parent companies

The Group’s immediate holding company is Chiyu International Financial Holdings
Limited (“Chiyu International Holdings”), which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Xiamen
International Investment Limited, which is in turn wholly owned by Xiamen
International Bank Co., Ltd.

The majority of transactions with Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd. arise from
money market activities. As at 31 December 2020, the related aggregate amount due
from and to Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd. of the Group were HK$4,852,000 (31
December 2019: HK$471,331,000) and HK$180,564,000 (31 December 2019:
HK$2,700,491,000) respectively. The aggregate amount of income and expenses of
the Group arising from these transactions with Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd.
during 2020 was HK$52,000 (31 December 2019: HK$11,997,000) and
HK$15,317,000 (31 December 2019: HK$91,670,000) respectively.
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M. FEEREALIE 41. Significant related party transactions (continued)
(&)

(a) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies

(a) BEAF RBATEER

ZHAANFETIR S
(&)

RE B F P 2 H
it AR AR EE P AT
- 14 2020 4 12 H 31
H > AL BB RO R
Ml 311,784,000 7£(2019
12 § 31 0 EE
302,312,000 7t ) - 2020 4
(S INCIE LS I | AR
RIS AR T A AR
SRR B 4,586,000
JC(20194£12 431 H ¢
Hil 7,392,000 7T) ©

S YNSIPSE Rt N i
DEIIN SR ETHE RS -
2020 FREELREI SR H
filL 2 SR U S 5 A
EE AT A SR B
1,670,000 7T (2019 £ 12
A 31 H : ## 1,550,000
JL)°

HE 202012 H 31 H
Ik AEEFEABE
145,988,000 JT (2019 4
12 A 31 H : %
154,653,000 7T ) H8FEE
FEERITE THIRERAE - B E
202012 4 31 Hik » &
£ B B KB %W
239,443,000 T /5 P9 E
B2 88 77 55 17 09 18 75 38 %
(2019 &£ 12 H 31 H :
fii ) - 2020 53 FIHE R
FESRTTHEFEL 15 9,025,000
TC (2019412 H 31 H ¢
#¥% 9,000,000 7T FILE UL
AFIGE 5 PR SR 1T i HY
ki 2,287,000 I¢ (2019
£ 12 5 31 H ok
10,922,000 7T) FIEHA »

controlled by the parent companies (continued)

The majority of transactions with other companies controlled by the parent companies
arise from deposits from customers. As at 31 December 2020, the related aggregate
amount of the Group was HK$311,784,000 (31 December 2019: HK$302,312,000). The
aggregate amount of expenses of the Group arising from these transactions during 2020
was HK$4,586,000 (31 December 2019: HK$7,392,000).

The majority of transactions with parent companies and the other companies controlled
by the parent companies arise from rental service. The aggregate amount of income of
the Group arising from these transactions during 2020 was HK$1,670,000 (31 December
2019: HK$1,550,000).

As at 31 December 2020, the related aggregate amount of the Group invested in the
subordinated debt issued by Luso International Banking Limited was HK$145,988,000
(31 December 2019: HK$154,653,000). As at 31 December 2020, there were
HK$239,443,000 in debt securities issued by Xiamen International Bank (31 December
2019: Nil). The interest income gained during 2020 from Luso International Banking
Limited and Xiamen International Bank were HK$9,025,000 (31 December 2019:
HK$9,000,000) and HK$2,287,000 (31 December 2019: HK$10,922,000) respectively.
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4. FTEEREATLIS 41. Significant related party transactions (continued)
(&)

(b) FEFREAER (b) Key management personnel

A PN =Pt i=p N Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for
B E o E Ry planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly,
BT AREE ~ f5E K including directors, senior management and key personnel. The Group accepts
EEEEEB AL deposits from and grants loans and credit facilities to key management personnel in
HEES  SHEHEE the ordinary course of business. During both the current and prior periods, no material
KFEEAE - KEETF transaction was conducted with key management personnel of the Bank and its
EREGTEHZTTHE holding companies, as well as parties related to them.

= B R A HLAR
HER I EERE - 1Y
BN R AES - AR
R BAASRAT R HoARE e
NEZ EEEE AN A

HAREN LHETER
55 -
FEEEAEEE12H The compensation of key management personnel for the year ended 31 December
31 HIRAFE 2 #iian is detailed as follows:
T
2020 2019
AT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000
Hrm ~ HAt IS T Salaries, other short-term employee
TEF R R EA] benefits and post-employment benefits 50,678 84,327
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42. BABARLR R FEZSE 42, Statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity
Bk

(a) MHERIR

(a) Statement of financial position

»12H 31 H As at 31 December 2020 2019
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
HiE ASSETS
JEE A7 3R 4 S A7 ROSRT R oAt < il Cash and balances with banks and other
TERETAERR financial institutions 22,880,381 18,228,791
1ESRTT R HAth & F it — 2+ Placements with banks and other
&l 5 N B HHE financial institutions maturing between
one and twelve months 7,440,298 4,819,212
TEER T E Derivative financial instruments 140,505 122,133
BEEH N E 5 EE Advances to customers and trade bills 78,340,141 76,986,891
RAE Investment in securities 50,516,304 46,760,270
Eta ()=l Investment in subsidiaries 365,713 195,713
JREVISZBSS a8 2 B3R Amounts due from subsidiaries 227,085 192,040
EYIE Investment properties 153,620 237,150
YIZE - BN RCES A Properties, plant and equipment 1,932,855 1,909,471
USRI FE Current tax assets 20,539 -
IRIERRIE A Deferred tax assets 23,373 640
HAith &7 Other assets 1,555,958 520,449
B Total assets 163,596,772 149,972,760
b=i= LIABILITIES
PRAT R EoAth RS A7 R Deposits and balances from banks and
4heR other financial institutions 20,511,269 17,747,463
T4 TE Derivative financial instruments 75,396 40,361
BT Deposits from customers 122,783,631 116,443,676
JEEAH I 2 BRI Amounts due to subsidiaries 1,795 1,795
AR R Other accounts and provisions 2,221,801 1,272,603
JERTIHE (R Current tax liabilities 41,950 186,248
IRIERRIA & (5 Deferred tax liabilities 132,544 179,674
B4R Total liabilities 145,768,386 135,871,820
[=Z EQUITY
A Share capital 6,577,871 3,245,980
fehith Reserves 9,312,803 8,917,248
ARSI T R (G R AT A Capital and reserves attributable to the
equity holders of the Bank 15,890,674 12,163,228
HYNEART R Additional equity instruments 1,937,712 1,937,712
FALH Total equity 17,828,386 14,100,940
BR AL Total liabilities and equity 163,596,772 149,972,760

KERGH 2021 £ 4 H 26 Hid

Approved by the Board of Directors on 26 April 2021 and signed on behalf of the Board

HWAZAENT AN A EREREE by:
=y L3 MR LYU Yaoming ZHENG Wei
HH HH Director Director
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42. IR E 2SS 42. Statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity
B (E) (continued)

(b) fEZEEIR (b) Statement of changes in equity
BRI AR TR
Attributable to equity holders of the Bank
]
Reserves
FEEM  AREE
itz = B BERE RERH  HEEA T BYINRATER  BAGE
Premises Additional
Share revaluation Fair value Regulatory Translation Retained equity Total
capital reserve' reserve? reserve® reserve* earnings Total _instruments equity
AWTIT AT BRTL BT BT BE¥TT A%t BT EBETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
202041 H1H At1January 2020 3,245,980 1,227,167 588 519,987 (108,991) 7,278,497 12,163,228 1,937,712 14,100,940
AR ERF Profit for the year - - - - - 800,314 800,314 - 800,314
Hofth 4= TR Other comprehensive
income:
R Premises - (48,072) - - - - (48,072) - (48,072)

PLA g LEE A Equity instruments
H Al 4 1A U 25 2 at fair value

RS T A through other
comprehensive
income - - (6,329) - - - (6,329) - (6,329)
PLAH 2 {EEE A Debt instruments
H 2w at fair value
ERTE through other
comprehensive
income - - (85,135) - - - (85,135) - (85,135)
R Currency translation
difference - - - - 210,203 - 210,203 - 210,203
LU HEEH Total comprehensive
income - (48,072) (91,464) - 210,203 800,314 870,981 - 870,981
ST A Issuance of ordinary
shares 3,331,891 - - - - - 3,331,891 - 3,331,891
RS ETEA Transfer to retained
earnings - - - (385,262) - 385,262 - - -
Ed=) Dividends - - - - - (373,650)  (373,650) - (373,650)
LA EEANE AR T B FF Distribution to the
HHEFE holders of the
additional equity
instruments - - - - - (101,776) _ (101,776) - (101,776)

2020412 H 31 H At 31 December 2020 6,577,871 1,179,095 (90,876) 134,725 101,212 7,988,647 15,890,674 1,937,712 17,828,386
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42. ABIRICR R
#r (&)

(b) MEzEEIR (&)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

42. Statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity
(continued)

(b) Statement of changes in equity (continued)

SR AR TR
Attributable to equity holders of the Bank
(=4
Reserves
FEEME  APEE
[N fehtEs " B EEREGE MRE Y WERA st BUNEATH AR
Premises Additional
Share revaluation Fair value Regulatory Translation Retained equity Total
capital reserve’ reserve? reserve® reserve*  earnings Total __instruments equity
AT AT AR BT BT BT AR AT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
201941 H1H  At1January 2019 1,772,988 1,203,829  (218,350) 414,377 (52,304) 6,539,494 9,660,034 1,937,712 11,597,746
R Profit for the year - - - - - 1,247,784 1,247,784 - 1,247,784
HoAth 2 mES - Other comprehensive
Income:
R Premises - 23,338 - - - - 23,338 - 23,338
DL EE (B A Equity instruments
HAth 2 ks> at fair value
B fatEs T A through other
comprehensive
income - - 15,108 - - - 15,108 - 15,108
LA A2 (LEF A Debtinstruments
HAth 2 ks> at fair value
HHTHE through other
comprehensive
income - - 202,461 - - - 202,461 - 202,461
Currency translation
difference - - - - (56,687) - (56,687) - (56,687)
Total comprehensive
income - 23,338 217,569 - (56,687) 1,247,784 1,432,004 - 1,432,004
BT Issuance of ordinary
shares 1,472,992 - - - - - 1,472,992 - 1,472,992
LA SR R Transfer from retained
earnings - - - 105,610 - (105,610) - -
#2:) Dividends - - - - - (298,920) (298,920) - (298,920)
YAJEESNE AR T E#F Distribution to the
HEFE holders of the
additional equity
instruments - - - - - (102,882) (102,882) - (102,882)
R & LN {8 81 Release upon disposal
A H A4 E Y zs  of equity instruments
> s Rz T EL>  atfair value through
g 5 other comprehensive
income® - - 1,369 - - (1,369) - - -
#2019 412 F 31 H At 31 December 2019 3,245,980 1,227,167 588 519,987  (108,991) 7,278,497 12,163,228 1,937,712 14,100,940

P rE B Al GE(A Y 1L KR T AR
E Al A AT A St Bk o

NPEE G ERERA AT EE
{bat AR A 2 E U 38 75 B 2 s
P AEFEST R RaT A T HEZDNS
2 o

PR BRSS9 SEHE
FERBURE RSN - e E R
R S B A R E R (E IR
TR 2 A (B ARARK
HAA TR -

RE ARV R R E AR BR SN
HrREFTR A B -

BRE LA EE LA AH A
Bt g LRIR IR IREA A
FLUARMS HAVFE A -

Premises revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies adopted for the revaluation of premises.

Fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of fair value through other
comprehensive income securities held until the securities are derecognised.

In accordance with the requirements of the HKMA, the amounts are set aside for general banking
risks, including future losses or other unforeseeable risks, in addition to the loan impairment
allowances recognised under Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard (“HKFRS”) 9.

Translation reserve has been set up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for foreign currency translation.

The release upon disposal of equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income
was made because the investment was no longer to be held for strategic purpose.
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43. Subsidiaries of the Bank

43. ARITZHBEATE

4 2020 47 12 A 31 HASR The particulars of direct and indirect subsidiaries of the Bank as at 31 December 2020 are

TTEH M E A=A

as follows:

REYRAE
Eailipg-¢ = BT SUEREA
B iR ke H 5 FEEA FrA L FEER
Place and date of Issued share capital  Interest
Name incorporation / operation  / Registered capital held Principal activities
ERIT (REA) ARAT &E bopilEah) 100% PRERRRHS R AL B
1981411 53 H 100,000 7t
Chiyu Banking Corporation Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% Nominee service and
(Nominees) Limited 3 November 1981 HK$100,000 investment holding
HEEFEARAFE & E=iilah) 100% P PR S BRI 5E
1961412 H 11 H 2,800,000 #7T HE
Seng Sun Development Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% Investment holding and
Company, Limited 11 December 1961 HK$2,800,000 leasing of properties
to group companies
FlEARRAE wE deglibdh) 100%* TP
2001 £ 5 H 4 H 2 BT
Grace Charter Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100%* Investment holding
4 May 2001 HK$2
ERBEEERAIRAT I bopilEah) 100% PRt SRR AR R S
201743 513 H 5,000,000 &7T
Chiyu International Capital Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% Corporate finance
Limited 13 March 2017 HK$5,000,000 advisory
ERAEEHARAFE wE beilEah) 100% B EHER
201743 13 H 356,800,000 T
Chiyu Asset Management Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% Asset management
Limited 13 March 2017 HK$356,800,000
i Eeyiilah) 100%* ESREEUE S
201843 H 29 H 1 35T
Sun King Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100%* Property holding
29 March 2018 HK$1
EREGEIIEHE AT PSS By 100%* EETHAE
201941 H 22 H 100 =T
Chiyu Fund Segregated Cayman Islands Management shares 100%* Fund vehicle
Portfolio Company 22 January 2019 uUsD100
EREEHEEER D A W FEEA 100%* g 2 a=e 3
[RAE 20204 H 17 H 1,250,050 =T
(H 2021 4 3 7 29 HEEATH
SN BN E
EeEE (D ARA
Eib)
(Name changed to &£k f.5H: Shenzhen Registered capital 100%* Equity Investment
MR EAEE CGEYD A 17 April 2020 USD1,250,050
PR/ E] with effect from
29 March 2021)
ERMEER CRID ARS F= - 100% SRR - SRR K
Ei| 20209 H21H EAtFHRAR S
Shenzhen - 100% Information technology,

CAIRITRI R AR

21 September 2020

* Shares held indirectly by the Bank
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A 20204E12 H31 H > A
TZEHBER AT RER
BUFEERZER AR AT %
NP E L - o
SR A B Ry JE PR RE SR
T BAFR—FTRPEA
B L R B i e S Y P
PISEIRTT -

P e

B ST EHS
CARLEEREINZEH T -

MBS HRIZ A
AFT R 2021 47 4

26 MR EmB s
S

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

44,

45.

46.

Immediate and ultimate holding company

At 31 December 2020, the immediate holding company of the Bank is Chiyu International
Financial Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong and its ultimate holding
company is Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd., a Chinese commercial bank incorporated in
the PRC.

Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the financial statement
presentation adopted in the current year.

Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
on 26 April 2021.
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1L EEEE
1.1 MR 3 (B A Z 55K

s 3 EH Z SRR
BT ¢

FFEREEE > B

- i 3 i A e
6 {&H

- i 6 flil H e
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- 1A

i 3 fEH Z &

kB R e e

wh e R A 2
FER A ST E

bHCHE R =
vie

AR
P

) SRR R B AT
M EHEORAERER
TH TIPS B EE A S R
FEEHTEAREFHT
M EEHEZE -

742020 4£ 12 A 31 H 3%
HEEE 3 HAZHE5
S (2019 4 < i) -

Credit Risk

1.1 Advances overdue for more than three months

The gross amount of advances overdue for more than three months is analysed as

follows:
2020 2019
fEZ FERK 1% P EER
S8 WEES &5 HEESTE

% of gross
advances to

% of gross
advances to

Amount customers Amount customers
AT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
Gross advances to
customers which have
been overdue for:
- six months or less but
over three months 39,957 0.05% 2 0.00%
- one year or less but
over six months 692 0.00% 79,847 0.10%
- over one year 239,514 0.31% 120,262 0.16%
Advances overdue for over
three months 280,163 0.36% 200,111 0.26%
Specific provisions made in
respect of such advances 278,510 193,198
2020 2019
AT AT
HK$’000 HK$ 000
Current market value of collateral held
against the covered portion of such
advances to customers 28,450 28,358
Covered portion of such advances to
customers 7,703 10,372
Uncovered portion of such advances to
customers 272,460 189,739

Collateral held against overdue or impaired loans is principally represented by
charges over business assets such as commercial and residential premises for
corporate loans and mortgages over residential properties for personal loans.

As at 31 December 2020, there were no trade bills overdue for more than three

months (2019: Nil).
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(continued)
1. {EERE (8) 1. Credit Risk (continued)
1.2 ZKEAEE 1.2 Rescheduled advances
2020 2019
LT =y=¢ Y % FERR
&8 GEE L &EE EEIL
% of gross % of gross
advances to advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
BT BT IT
HK$°000 HK$°000
KEEFRFEFOFHE Rescheduled
SR e 3 (E advances to
A5, 15 customers net of
e amounts included
in “Advances
overdue for more
than three months” - - - -
KEHEHT IR EFAR Rescheduled advances are those advances that have been restructured or
Ry S I R S B R RE A1 renegotiated because of deterioration in the financial position of the borrower or of
K 4 7[5 R the inability of the borrower to meet the original repayment schedule. Rescheduled
BEFGHEZ S50 - 85T advances, which have been overdue for more than three months under the revised
ERETEITR 2 KR EH K repayment terms, are included in “Advances overdue for more than three months”.
a3 @A - Al
BIFELE Tl 3 (EH
ZER A
1.3 |gEI&EE 1.3 Repossessed assets
ALEEA 2020 412 H 31 There were HK$122,324,000 repossessed assets held by the Group as at 31
HF A e & E R B December 2020 (2019: HK$144,240,000). The repossessed assets represent
122,324,000 T 2019 4! properties in respect of which the Group has acquired access or control (e.g. through
A5HE 144,240,000 7T) - UL court proceedings or voluntary actions by the proprietors concerned) for release in
[ 78 15 2= £ B 3 2 full or in part of the obligations of the borrowers.

FHHU R B SRz I RE R )
2 (Arm AR P EE £
B A R A U7 U
) MR AR AT
R RER o
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(&) (continued)

2. SMNEREE 2.

Currency Risk

TRINHAEEANE &5
RIFEERGIMELZ EH
SN R - A2 IARAES
BINEHIZ 2B mEHEN

The following is a summary of the Group’s major foreign currency exposures arising
from trading and non-trading and is prepared with reference to the completion
instructions for the HKMA return of foreign currency position.

b ENTIE i
2020
BETIUEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$

ESW BRjT TEgE BT BLIAER ARYE  HMINE  SMNEEE

Swiss Other Total

us Euro Pound Australian Francs foreign foreign

Dollars Dollars  Sterling Dollars Dollars Renminbi currencies currencies

HE&ERE Spot assets 43,844,603 1,286,644 235,168 655,462 17,919 43,393,546 855,075 90,288,507

HEEE Spot liabilities (33,020,819)  (374,024)  (205,024)  (938,263) (4,970) (42,081,352)  (567,534) (77,191,986)

HHEA Forward purchases 2,094,802 23,349 65,390 353,383 13,474 72,578 331,968 2,954,944

T Forward sales (11,964,027)  (926,659)  (103,892) (68,419) (26,724) (1,595,124)  (619,480) (15,304,325)
&/ (F) #/5%  Netlong/ (short)

position 954,649 9,310 (8,358) 2,163 (301)  (210,352) 29 747,140

2019
AT ITEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$

E BT B BT HARD AREE  HArsME  SMREE

Swiss Other Total

us Euro Pound Australian Francs foreign foreign

Dollars Dollars Sterling Dollars Dollars Renminbi currencies currencies

HE&ERE Spot assets 46,012,705 1,500,071 293429 950,833 6703 33853064 702,740 83319545

HEAE Spot liabilities (39,018,355) (1,153,791)  (274,677)  (931,162) (7,789) (34,009,374)  (522,031) (75,917,179)

EHHE A Forward purchases 1,316,677 11,569 69,564 31,008 11,720 836,191 325031 2,601,850

EHE Forward sales (7,667,061)  (354,869) (85,932) (46,156) (10,932)  (493,329)  (508,560) (9,166,839)
&/ (J3) #8)5%  Netlong/ (short)

position 643,966 2,980 2,384 4,613 (298) 186,552 (2,820) 837,377
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(continued)

Liquidity coverage ratio

2020 2019
Average value of liquidity coverage ratio
- First quarter 224.76% 218.71%
- Second quarter 301.99% 191.46%
- Third quarter 214.89% 205.53%
- Fourth quarter 250.22% 210.17%

The average value of liquidity coverage ratio is calculated based on the arithmetic mean
of the liquidity coverage ratio as at the end of each working day in the quarter and the
calculation methodology and instructions set out in the HKMA return of liquidity position.

The additional information of liquidity coverage ratio disclosures is available under
section “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at www.chiyubank.com.

Net stable funding ratio

2020 2019
Quarter-end value of net stable funding ratio
- First quarter 143.92% 123.50%
- Second quarter 148.39% 127.14%
- Third quarter 149.48% 131.08%
- Fourth quarter 148.60% 142.44%

The quarter-end value of net stable funding ratio is calculated based on the calculation
methodology and instructions set out in the HKMA return of stable funding position.

The additional information of net stable funding ratio disclosures is available under
section “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’ s website at www.chiyubank.com.
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(continued)
5. BAEH 5. Capital management
5.1 BB AR 5.1 Basis of regulatory combination
2020 FFEEEHESFG A The consolidated basis for regulatory purposes comprises the positions of the
BETOMRE (ST (AR Bank’s local offices, overseas branches and designated subsidiaries specified by
FHD) KizeERREE the HKMA for its regulatory purposes and in accordance with the Banking (Capital)
R RE BOR A SRTT Z A3 Rules in 2020.
YRR ~ BN TT AR E
i) EEYANEI
fEgstEM 7 o R For accounting purposes, subsidiaries are consolidated in accordance with
BN AR AR A I HKFRSs and the list of subsidiaries is set out in Note 43.
@A E > HAEEMEE
43 -
BEE g A& & The particulars of subsidiaries which are included within the accounting scope of
A EEEEENE consolidation but not included within the regulatory scope of combination are as
i=xns ElEN) A= follows:
SEIFAT
2020 2019
B B s B
Z18 Name Total assets Total equity Total assets  Total equity
BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EREEERARAH Chiyu International Capital
Limited 160,108 108,342 102,258 73,108
EREEEHARNAT Chiyu Asset Management
Limited 373,804 349,817 186,820 174,720
ERFESRIEH A/ Chiyu Fund Segregated
Portfolio Company 1 1 1 1
DA B Ja A 1 69 T2 B 7% The principal activities of the above subsidiaries are set out in Note 43.
HEAHTEE 43 -
20204 12 H 31 H» JR There were also no subsidiaries which are included within both the accounting
i (- {a] it J8 N =] [E] i e kg scope of consolidation and the regulatory scope of combination where the methods
FestEHIESEEHES of consolidation differ as at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: Nil).

R [ T o S [ 4 7
75 (2019412 A 31 H -

fiE) o
T
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(continued)

5. Capital management (continued)
5.2 Capital ratio

2020 2019
CET1 capital ratio 15.66% 13.59%
Tier 1 capital ratio 17.79% 16.19%
Total capital ratio 19.23% 17.71%

The combined capital base after deductions used in the calculation of the above

capital ratios is analysed as follows:

2020 2019
AT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
CET1 capital: instruments and reserves
Directly issued qualifying CET1 capital
instruments 6,577,871 3,245,980
Retained earnings 7,933,040 7,220,972
Disclosed reserves 1,347,828 1,661,469
CET1 capital before regulatory
deductions 15,858,739 12,128,421
CET1 capital: regulatory deductions
Valuation adjustments (194) (8,610)
Deferred tax assets net of deferred tax
liabilities (23,499) (640)
Gains and losses due to changes in
own credit risk on fair valued liabilities
(12) (60)
Cumulative fair value gains arising from
the revaluation of land and buildings
(own-use and investment properties)
(1,397,685) (1,452,133)
Regulatory reserve for general banking
risks (134,725) (519,987)
Total regulatory deductions to
CET1 capital (1,556,115) (1,981,430)
CET1 capital 14,302,624 10,146,991
AT1 capital 1,937,712 1,937,712
Tier 1 capital 16,240,336 12,084,703
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5. BEAEHE (#) 5. Capital management (continued)
5.2 HARER (&) 5.2 Capital ratio (continued)
2020 2019
AT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000
TEER  FEE R CE Tier 2 capital: instruments and provisions
EEEE A ZYE RN Collective impairment allowances and
2 e R — % regulatory reserve for general banking
SRATIR LA risks eligible for inclusion in Tier 2
SOTRIRES G capital 689,395 484,445
SRR Ry —4E A Tier 2 capital before regulatory
deductions 689,395 484,445
THEAR BB Tier 2 capital: regulatory deductions
e & &R A ZHE Add back of cumulative fair value gains
AHY R A R RS arising from the revaluation of land
Y (A RISERR) and buildings (own-use and
NG N i i ligible for
S 1 (B T T A investment properties) e
LA T ilves inclusion in Tier 2 capital 628,958 653,460
T RE A B E R Total regulatory deductions to
e Tier 2 capital 628,958 653,460
ZHER Tier 2 capital 1,318,353 1,137,905
B Total capital 17,558,689 13,222,608
FEETEARLLERAOT The capital buffer ratios are analysed as follows:
2020 2019
e EE AR Capital conservation buffer ratio 2.500% 2.500%
e R WEsTERE JIEER Higher loss absorbency ratio - -
YR EE AR Countercyclical capital buffer ratio 0.689% 1.426%

2020 £ 12 5 31 H »
FEAUMEEEE R
CCyB ("JCCyB ) L&y
1.0% - #HIREFEESER
2020 4= 3 H 16 HE#tHHY
O FIEEEERE 2.0% T
FHE 1.0% o ARITH AR
15 FH U A 4 P A Y L Bk
EEERIEATER] JCCyB
EE# A 0% -

As at 31 December 2020, the applicable jurisdictional CCyB ("JCCyB") ratio in
Hong Kong was 1.0%. The ratio reduced from 2.0% in accordance with the
announcement made by the HKMA on 16 March 2020. For the rest of the
jurisdictions in which the Bank had private sector credit exposures, the applicable

JCCyB ratios were 0%.

5.3 fEELER 5.3 Leverage ratio

FEFRELSR AT - The leverage ratio is analysed as follows:
2020 2019
BT AT TT
HK$°000 HK$’000
— 4B Tier 1 capital 16,240,336 12,084,703
TERREE R E R Leverage ratio exposure 164,951,289 154,471,671
FEFRELER Leverage ratio 9.85% 7.82%

BRHEAYEE MAR LR,
B BRI AT AR T4
H www.chiyubank.com tf

CRERE ) -

The additional information of capital disclosures and leverage ratio disclosures are
available under section “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at
www.chiyubank.com.
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6. FHREE 6. International claims
PUN 53t Jh 2 IR A A B PR SR The below analysis is prepared with reference to the completion instructions for the
TS 2 2B RWENE HKMA return of international banking statistics. International claims are exposures to
Bt mamed - B AR R counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies based on the locations of the
22 5 - P AE T A g i counterparties after taking into account the transfer of risk, and represent the sum of
1% DA 50 i F 2 i 4% B b cross-border claims in all currencies and local claims in foreign currencies. For a claim
%T%E’Jﬂt@%ﬁﬁ  HAEFIEHE guaranteed by a party situated in a country different from the counterparty, the risk will
Fir Bl 2 1 B R R A st be transferred to the country of the guarantor. For a claim on an overseas branch of a
ZHNEEERE - R IR A bank whose head office is located in another country, the risk will be transferred to the
FRrAE 3t 8258 5 3 - FR1E 3t R country where its head office is located.
[&] > Rl B RS R R A
FRrAEt, - 5 (R R T = /o
G317 HJE bR e s 2 s
172 SBATFRTEHY
A (B {1 ] B R e B R Claims on individual countries or areas, after risk transfer, amounting to 10% or more
LT B o P S 12 A B P of the aggregate international claims of the Group are shown as follows:
REHEZR 10%EDL -2 L
T
2020
JESRTTRANAERE
Non-bank private sector
FESRAT E S R
SRET EJitRE SRR VNG st
Non-bank
Official financial Non-financial
Banks sector institutions private sector Total
AT AT AT AT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
o [5] A Mainland China 17,346,000 2,730,000 2,323,000 20,358,000 42,757,000
Hi Hong Kong 1,564,000 - 4,149,000 8,354,000 14,067,000
2019
FESRITRANENE
Non-bank private sector
B FESRTT FE<e R
T B ITHRE RS LN Hast
Non-bank
Official financial ~ Non-financial
Banks sector Institutions  private sector Total
BT BT T BT BT T BT
HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
o [5] A HE Mainland China 17,019,000 1,028,000 3,333,000 18,959,000 40,339,000
o Hong Kong 762,000 1,000 2,018,000 10,091,000 12,872,000
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J

7. FERTHAMERRE 7.

Non-bank Mainland exposures

HIEIRIT ST Rt
BB AR IE Z i 92 IRA
B hSE TS 2 28 R R i
SR R AT Y Z BRI 1 R
ELRE B 0 - LR AE
ST AT Z P o o

The analysis of non-bank Mainland exposures is based on the categories of non-bank
counterparties and the types of direct exposures with reference to the completion
instructions for the HKMA return of Mainland activities, which includes the Mainland
exposures extended by the Bank only.

2020
HEAE HEAR
SR FAH FHMY
HEIEH [\ bR ERERE  AERRRE
Items in On-balance Off-balance
the HKMA sheet sheet Total
return exposure exposure exposure
WM T T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
PR ~ RO EEATY  Central government, central
g - HItE AT REE government-owned entities and their
3% subsidiaries and joint ventures 1 19,312,706 190,692 19,503,398
WOFBUR ~ #OFEURFRFARY Local governments, local government-
g - HitE AT REE owned entities and their subsidiaries
3 and joint ventures 2 10,682,862 188,273 10,871,135
F RN ERECEAMfEE  PRC nationals residing in Mainland
PEEHIRERS ~ EHTE A or other entities incorporated in
HREERE Mainland and their subsidiaries and
joint ventures 3 19,291,514 669,596 19,961,110
NEFEIE FasE—1gth gt Other entities of central government
JRF I At A not reported in item 1 above 4 1,857,805 174,449 2,032,254
ReFE(E Fallss IR B Other entities of local governments
JF R E At i not reported in item 2 above 5 564,315 - 564,315
F RN REGEESNF  PRC nationals residing outside
RS > HAERRAR Mainland or entities incorporated
(535 outside Mainland where the credit is
granted for use in Mainland 6 14,961,662 47,587 15,009,249
HAxr FEF A& Other counterparties where the
AR AT ESRA T Y AT kb i exposures are considered to be
HEIE non-bank Mainland exposures 7 1,792,951 - 1,792,951
QG Total 8 68,463,815 1,270,597 69,734,412
R IR 0T E rELEA Total assets after provision 9 163,104,644
B A ERAE R RE On-balance sheet exposures as
(EEEEHE I percentage of total assets 10 41.98%
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(continued)

Central government, central
government-owned entities and their
subsidiaries and joint ventures

Local governments, local government-
owned entities and their subsidiaries
and joint ventures

PRC nationals residing in Mainland
or other entities incorporated in
Mainland and their subsidiaries and
joint ventures

Other entities of central government
not reported in item 1 above

Other entities of local governments
not reported in item 2 above

PRC nationals residing outside
Mainland or entities incorporated
outside Mainland where the credit is
granted for use in Mainland

Other counterparties where the
exposures are considered to be
non-bank Mainland exposures

Total

Total assets after provision

On-balance sheet exposures as
percentage of total assets
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Non-bank Mainland exposures (continued)

2019
EEAMA HEAMR
= RN RIMY
HEIEE BRI EBEIE  GE R
ltems in On-balance  Off-balance
the HKMA sheet sheet Total
return exposure exposure exposure
BT BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
1 11,391,905 109,021 11,500,926
2 20,609,771 342,688 20,952,459
3 13,177,149 616,563 13,793,712
4 1,794,349 429,278 2,223,627
5 677,452 - 677,452
6 11,023,885 491,581 11,515,466
7 437,719 - 437,719
8 59,112,230 1,989,131 61,101,361
9 149,909,318
10 39.43%
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(continued)

8.

Risk Management

Overview

The Group attaches a high degree of importance to risk management and
emphasises that a balance must be struck between risk control and business
development. The Group’s risk management objective is to maintain risk
exposures within acceptable level amid the Group’s efforts made to enhance
shareholders’ wealth. The Group has a defined risk appetite statement
approved by the Board, which is an expression of the types and level of risk that
the Group is willing to take in order to achieve its business goals and to meet
the expectations of its stakeholders. For details of the Group’s risk management
governance structure, please refer to Note 4 to the Financial Statements.

Credit risk management

For details of the Group’s Credit Risk Management, please refer to Note 4.1 to
the Financial Statements.

Market risk management

For details of the Group’s Market Risk Management, please refer to Note 4.2 to
the Financial Statements.

Interest rate risk management

For details of the Group’s Interest Rate Risk Management, please refer to Note
4.2 to the Financial Statements.

Liquidity risk management

For details of the Group’s Liquidity Risk Management, please refer to Note 4.3
to the Financial Statements.

Operational risk management

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal
processes, people and systems, or external events. The risk is inherent in every
aspect of business operations and confronted by the Group in its day-to -day
operational activities.

The Group has put in place effective internal control processes and has
formulated relevant policies and control procedures for all the key activities. The
Group adheres to the fundamental principle of proper segregation of duties and
authorisation. The Group adopts various operational risk management tools or
methodologies such as key risk indicators, self-assessment, operational risk
events reporting and review to identify, assess, monitor and control the risks
inherent in business activities and products, as well as purchase of insurance
to mitigate unforeseeable operational risks. Business continuity plans are
established to substantiate business operations in the event of an emergency
or disaster. Adequate backup facilities are maintained and periodic drills are
conducted.
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8.

Risk Management (continued)

Reputation risk management

Reputation risk is the risk that negative publicity about the Group’s business
practices, whether genuine or not, causes a potential decline in the customer
base, or lead to costly litigation or revenue decrease. Reputation risk is inherent
in other types of risk and every aspect of business operation and covers a wide
spectrum of issues.

In addition, the Group has put in place a comprehensive framework to
continuously monitor reputation risk incidents in the financial industry, so as to
effectively manage and mitigate any potential adverse impact from an incident.
The Group also adopts robust disclosure mechanism to keep our stakeholders
informed at all times, which helps to build confidence in the Group and to
establish a strong public image.

Legal and compliance risk management

Legal risk is the risk that unenforceable contracts, lawsuits or adverse
judgments may disrupt or otherwise negatively affect the operations or financial
conditions of the Group. Compliance risk is the risk of legal or regulatory
sanctions, financial losses or losses in reputation the Group may suffer as a
result of its failure to comply with all applicable laws and regulations. The Group
has put in place relevant rules and procedures for legal and compliance risk
management.

Strategic risk management

Strategic risk generally refers to the risks that may cause current or future
negative impacts on the earnings, or capital or reputation or market position of
the Group because of poor strategic decision-making, improper implementation
of strategies and inadequacies in response to the changing market conditions.
The Board reviews and approves the strategic risk management policy. Key
strategic issues have to be fully evaluated and properly endorsed by the senior
management and the Board.

The Group regularly reviews its business strategies to cope with the latest
market situation and developments.

Capital management

For details of the Group’s Capital management, please refer to Note 4.4 to the
Financial Statements.

Stress testing

The Group supplements the analysis of various types of risks with stress testing.
Stress testing is a risk management tool for estimating risk exposures under
stressed conditions arising from extreme but plausible market or
macroeconomic movements. These tests are conducted on a regular basis by
the Group’s various risk management units in accordance with the principles
stated in the Supervisory Policy Manual “Stress-testing” published by the
HKMA. The ALCO monitors the results against the key risk limits approved by
the RC. The RMD reports the combined stress test results of the Group to the
Board and RC regularly.
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Senior Management

Executive Director
Lyu Yaoming

Executive Director and Chief Executive
Zheng Wei

Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive
Chan Yiu Fai

Deputy Chief Executive
Fung Chi Lap Pierre

Chief Risk Officer
Ye Xin

Chief Financial Officer
Wong Siu Man
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TITHEE

Branch Network

AT
BRANCH (Br.)

AR

HONG KONG ISLAND

ST
Central Br.

EmastT
North Point Br.

BFAT
Wanchai Br.

EEROT
Sheung Wan Br.

PEET
Western Br.

R T
Quarry Bay Br.

EBFIT
Aberdeen Br.

T
KOWLOON

ALHITT
Hung Hom Br.

BOETT
Kwun Tong Br.

FKIE AT
Sham Shui Po Br.

ol 1T
San Po Kong Br.

SRR AT
Yau Ma Tei Br.

HUEDTT

Castle Peak Road Br.

TEEEDTT

Kowloon Bay Br.

LB T

Tokwawan Br.

BEUST
Tsz Wan Shan Br.

Hirht
ADDRESS

EAPIRERES 78 5%
No. 78 Des Voeux Road Central, Central, H.K.

I AL EiE 390-394 i T
G/F, No. 390-394 King's Road, North Point, H.K.

EEETEFERFE 323-331 5t~ C 1 D &
Shop C & D, G/F, No. 323-331 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, H.K.

s PERE S AGET 315-319 ST 3 SR
Shop 3, G/F, No. 315-319 Queen’s Road Central, Sheung Wan, H.K.

B £ 5 AETE 443-445 ST 13 R

Shop 13, G/F, No. 443-445 Queen's Road West, Western District, H.K.

FOEMI R 278 1065 SR ST C B
Unit C, G/F, Eastern Centre, 1065 King's Road, Quarry Bay, H.K.

T FRE 138-140 5T
GI/F, No. 138-140 Aberdeen Main Road, Aberdeen, H.K.

JURE ST L% 23-25 5 1
G/F, No. 23-25 Gillies Avenue South, Hung Hom, Kin.

JUREBUEE 398-402 St T A B fir
Unit A, G/F, No. 398-402 Kwun Tong Road, Kin.

JUREAKIS 755 F i 235-237 it T
G/F, No. 235-237 Laichikok Road, Sham Shui Po, Kin.

JUREHTH RA FE R e 61-63 SR T
G/F, No. 61-63 Hong Keung Street, San Po Kong, Kin.

JURE R B 117-119 SRt N
G/F, No. 117-119 Shanghai Street, Yaumatei, Kin.

JUREATKIS T 7S 226-228 ST
GIF, No. 226-228 Castle Peak Road, Sham Shui Po, Kin.

TBES LR BRSBTS 10 K2 10A Siéf

Shop 10 & 10A, G/F, Kai Lok House, Kai Yip Estate, Kowloon Bay, Kin.

FLBE LT8R 78-80W P& T 11-13 S
Shop 11-13, G/F, No. 78-80W To Kwa Wan Road, Kin.

JUBEZEELIT0, 7 1 T03A i
Shop 703A, 7/F, Tsz Wan Shan Shopping Centre, Kin.
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B
TELEPHONE

(852) 3556 9730

(852) 3556 9731

(852) 3556 9734

(852) 3556 9737

(852) 3556 9739

(852) 3556 9743

(852) 3556 9753

(852) 3556 9732

(852) 3556 9733

(852) 3556 9735

(852) 3556 9736

(852) 3556 9738

(852) 3556 9740

(852) 3556 9741

(852) 3556 9742

(852) 3556 9751
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Branch Network (continued)

AT
BRANCH (Br.)

HiA
NEW TERRITORIES

HTT

Tuen Mun Br.

ZERTL ST
Kwai Hing Estate Br.

KIAFIE 51T
Tai Po Tai Wo Estate Br.

REWCESTTT
Belvedere Garden Br.

BN
Tsuen Wan Br.

YRS T
Shatin Sui Wo Court Br.

LT
Ma On Shan Br.

AT
Sheung Tak Estate Br.

B,
MAINLAND CHINA

[BF953 7T

Xiamen Br.

FERIT

Xiamen Jimei Sub-Br.

JEF BB AT
Xiamen Siming Sub-Br.

KEINIITT

Fuzhou Br.

ST
Shenzhen Br.

Hirht
ADDRESS

Fry P22 el HAN.D.S N & 1 #% N-125 &
Shop N-125, Level 1, Zone N, H.A.N.D.S, On Ting Estate, Tuen Mun, N.T.

SRS LR A 1 SR

Shop 1, G/F, Hing Yat House, Kwai Hing Estate, Kwai Chung, N.T.

F SRRSO A 112-114 S
Shop 112-114, G/F, On Wo House, Tai Wo Estate, Tai Po, N.T.

WA BRI E = T 5A St

Shop 5A, G/F, Belvedere Square, Belvedere Garden Phase 3, Tsuen Wan,

N.T.

WS OIE I 131-135 gk T

G/F, No. 131-135 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan, N.T.

5 ERERSUTEAR G S5 1 4 F7 5k60
Shop F7, 1/F, Commercial Centre, Sui Wo Court, Shatin, N.T.

WS ELCBITERE B LY 3 14 313 gidh
Shop 313, Level 3, Ma On Shan Plaza, Bayshore Towers, Ma On Shan, N.T.

T SRR R A e RS 2 1 238 S
Shop 238, 2/F, Sheung Tak Shopping Centre, Sheung Tak Estate,

Tseung Kwan O, N.T.

B rE R R P BT A R RS 90 SRIL(EEEES 101-103 K 202 T
Unit 101-103 and 202, Lixin Plaza, No. 90 Hubin South Road, Siming District,

Xiamen, Fujian Province, China

TR E T A AL E 68-71 5
No. 68-71 Lehai Bei Li, Jimei District, Xiamen, Fujian Province, China

HhEE S P I B E SRR 182 5f 112-123 Bt
Unit 112-123, No. 182 Jiahe Road, Siming District, Xiamen, Fujian Province,

China

T B S R A R N T B M T UG 118 9% = BSERs b BaEs 30 f8 ~ 32 f# % 33

i

B
TELEPHONE

(852) 3988 9508

(852) 3556 9745

(852) 3556 9746

(852) 3556 9747

(852) 3988 9518

(852) 3556 9749

(852) 3556 9750

(852) 3556 9752

(86-592) 585 6288

(86-592) 619 3300

(86-592) 585 6278

30F, 32F and 33F, East Tower, Sansheng International Center, No. 118 Wusi (86-591) 2831 5555

Road, Gulou District, Fuzhou, Fujian, China

o BRI fE & 23 FHIES 6003 Sesisiarss il A # 1 g 01 Byt
Unit 1, Level 1, Block A, Rongchao Business Center, No. 6003 Yitian Road,

Futian District, Shenzhen, China
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